Moody’s S&P
Ratings Aaa AAA
(See “Ratings” herein)

Interest on the Offered Bonds s included in gross income for federal income tax purposes under
the Code.

Under the Virginia Housing Development Authority Act, income on the Offered Bonds,
including any profit made on the sale thereof, is mot included in taxable income for purposes of
income taxation by the Commonwealth of Virginia and by the municipalities and all other political
subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

$140,928,878
‘&\. VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
V H DA Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds

2015 Series A-Taxable (Pass-Through)

Maturity Principal Interest
Date Amount Rate Price CUSIP
June 25, 2042 $140,928,878 3.25% 100% 92812UQ50

Dated Date: November 1, 2015

Interest is payable on the 25th day of each month, commencing December 25, 2015, as described
herein, and at maturity or prior redemption. Interest on the Offered Bonds commences to accrue on the
Dated Date and accrues on the principal amounts and for the periods described herein. The Offered
Bonds are issuable in $1.00 denominations or any multiple (greater than 1.0) thereof upon original
issuance, and, thereafter, $0.01 denominations or any multiple (greater than 1.0) thereof. Principal on the
Offered Bonds is payable on the 25th day of each month, commencing December 25, 2015, as described
herein. The Offered Bonds are subject to optional redemption, as described herein. The Offered Bonds
will be initially available and may be purchased only in book-entry form through the facilities of DTC.
U.S. Bank National Association, Minneapolis, Minnesota, is the Trustee.

The Offered Bonds are secured, equally and ratably with the Currently Outstanding Bonds and any
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds hereafter issued (except as otherwise described herein), by Mortgage
Loans, Investment Obligations, Revenues and other Assets of the Authority pledged thereto, and are
general obligations of the Authority, subject to agreements heretofore or hereafter made with owners of
Authority obligations other than Owners, all as more fully described herein.

The Authority has no taxing power. The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds do not
constitute a debt or grant or loan of credit of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the
Commonwealth of Virginia shall not be liable thereon, nor shall the Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds be payable out of any funds other than those of the Authority.

The Offered Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to prior sale, or withdrawal or
modification of the offer without notice. The Offered Bonds are offered subject to the receipt of the
Approving Opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the
Authority, as more fully described in “Legal Matters.” Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the
Underwriters by their counsel, Kutak Rock LLP, Atlanta, Georgia. It is expected that the Offered Bonds
will be available for delivery through DTC in New York, New York on or about November 10, 2015.

Wells Fargo Securities
BofA Merrill Lynch RAYMOND JAMES

October 29, 2015



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Authority or the Underwriters to give any information or to make any
representations other than those contained herein and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having
been authorized. There shall not be any offer, solicitation or sale of the Offered Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such
person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. Information set forth herein has been furnished by the Authority and other sources which are believed to
be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by the Underwriters. Unless specified otherwise, web sites referred to herein and the
information or links contained in such websites are not incorporated into, and are not part of, this Official Statement.

The information and expressions of opinion herein speak as of their date unless otherwise noted and are subject to change without notice, and
neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of the Authority since the dates as of which information is given herein. The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this
Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their responsibility to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts
and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

PART I - THE OFFERED BONDS
INTRODUCTION

Capitalized terms used in this Official Statement, unless otherwise herein defined, shall have the meanings set forth in
a resolution adopted by the Virginia Housing Development Authority (the “Authority”) on July 15, 1986, as amended and
restated to the date of delivery of the Offered Bonds (the “Current Resolution”) authorizing the issuance and sale of the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds. The Current Resolution, as hereafter modified, amended or supplemented from time to time,
is referred to herein as the “Resolution.” See “Definitions” in “Summary of Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution” for
definitions of certain of such capitalized terms in the Current Resolution. The following terms are used in this Official Statement
to refer to the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds listed below.

Term Referenced Bonds

“Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds”...........cccccecerereruennnne. Currently Outstanding Bonds, the Offered Bonds and any bonds
hereafter issued under the Resolution

“Currently Outstanding Bonds” ..........ceceevevveververeneneennnne. Bonds previously issued under the Resolution presently outstanding as
of the date of this Official Statement

“Offered Bonds” .........coeueveveuienennirinieeererecnenenereeieeseseeenens Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, 2015 Series A-Taxable (Pass-Through)

“Taxable BONAS”.........ccoeerieieiirieeieieinieeeeeesie e Bonds, including the Offered Bonds, on which interest is included in
gross income for federal income tax purposes

“Tax Exempt AMT Bonds” ........ccoceeveieieinenieeeeeeeeeennen Tax Exempt Bonds on which the interest is treated as a preference item
in determining the tax liability of individuals, corporations and other
taxpayers subject to the alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55
of the Code

“Tax Exempt Bonds” .........cccoeivrenneineeneeceeeeece Bonds on which interest is not included in gross income for federal
income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code

“Tax Exempt Non-AMT Bonds”.........ccccoeeveviecenerenieeennnne. Tax Exempt Bonds on which the interest is not treated as a preference
item in determining the tax liability of individuals, corporations and
other taxpayers subject to the alternative minimum tax imposed by
Section 55 of the Code and is not included in the adjusted current
earnings of corporations for purposes of the alternative minimum tax

“Transitioned 1954 Code Tax Exempt Non-AMT Bonds”... Tax Exempt Bonds on which the interest is not treated as a preference
item in determining the tax liability of individuals, corporations and
other taxpayers subject to the alternative minimum tax imposed by
Section 55 of the Code and is included in the adjusted current earnings of
corporations for purposes of the alternative minimum tax

This Official Statement is being distributed by the Authority to furnish pertinent information in connection with the
initial offering of the Offered Bonds. The Offered Bonds are being offered hereby pursuant to the Virginia Housing Development
Authority Act (the “Act”), the Current Resolution, the Bond Limitations Resolution adopted by the Authority on April 14, 2015
and the Written Determinations as to the terms of the Offered Bonds. In connection with the prior issuance of Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds, the Authority has adopted Series Resolutions and Bond Limitations Resolutions and has executed Written
Determinations. The Current Resolution, as so amended, modified and supplemented to the date of delivery of the Offered
Bonds by such Series Resolutions, Bond Limitations Resolutions and Written Determinations, is referred to herein as the
“Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution.”

The Authority adopted the Current Resolution to issue Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, including the Offered Bonds,
for the principal purpose of funding its single family housing programs (see “The Single Family Programs”). The Offered Bonds
are secured equally and ratably with the Currently Outstanding Bonds and any additional Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds
hereafter issued under the Current Resolution. The Authority anticipates that additional parity Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds
will be issued in the future. The Current Resolution also permits the Authority to execute Exchange Agreements (such as swap
agreements), Enhancement Agreements (such as agreements related to bond insurance) and Other Financial Agreements under
which the Authority’s obligations are payable from Assets and are treated as Bond Obligations payable from the same sources
and on a parity basis with the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds (see “Exchange Agreements, Enhancement Agreements, and
Other Financial Agreements” in “Security”).



The Code imposes substantial requirements with respect to Tax Exempt Non-AMT Bonds and Tax Exempt AMT Bonds
which must be satisfied in order for the interest on such Tax Exempt Bonds to be excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code. Any Mortgage Loan financed in whole or in part with proceeds of
such Tax Exempt Bonds must comply with Code requirements (see Appendix D). The Authority has established procedures
under which the Authority expects such Code requirements can be met. The Offered Bonds are Taxable Bonds and, therefore,
are not subject to such Code requirements.

U.S. Bank National Association, Minneapolis, Minnesota, is the Trustee. Except in the event of the occurrence and
continuance of an Event of Default, the Authority may remove and replace the Trustee and may serve in the capacity of Trustee.

The summaries of and references herein to the Act, the Resolution, the Current Resolution, and the Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds Resolution and other documents and materials are only brief outlines of certain provisions thereof and do not
purport to summarize or describe all the provisions thereof. For further information, reference is hereby made to the Act, the
Resolution, the Current Resolution, and the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution and such other documents and
materials for the complete provisions thereof.

DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED BONDS

The proceeds of the Offered Bonds are expected to be used to redeem, pursuant to the applicable optional redemption
provisions, certain Currently Outstanding Bonds. Notwithstanding such expectation, the Authority reserves the right to apply
the proceeds of the Offered Bonds in any manner consistent with the provisions of the Resolution.

Upon the issuance of the Offered Bonds, certain existing Mortgage Loans will be allocated to the Offered Bonds.
Notwithstanding such allocation, such Mortgage Loans are Assets that are pledged as security for all Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds. (See the next succeeding paragraph for more information on the security for the Offered Bonds). Such allocated
Mortgage Loans are referred to herein as the Allocated Mortgage Loans. Summary information concerning the Allocated
Mortgage Loans is set forth below and additional information regarding the Allocated Mortgage Loans is in Appendix I. The
original principal amount of the Offered Bonds is equal to the total outstanding principal balances of the Allocated Mortgage
Loans as of November 1, 2015 (as reduced by scheduled monthly payments of principal due and payable on that day).

The Offered Bonds are secured equally and ratably with the Currently Outstanding Bonds and any Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds hereafter issued (except as otherwise described herein) by Mortgage Loans, Investment Obligations, Revenues
and other Assets of the Authority pledged thereto, and are general obligations of the Authority, subject to agreements
heretofore or hereafter made with owners of Authority obligations other than Owners, as more fully described herein. Although
payments on the Offered Bonds will be determined in relation to the Allocated Mortgage Loans as described under “Principal
Payments” below, the Allocated Mortgage Loans are not set aside as separate security for the Offered Bonds and principal
payments on Allocated Mortgage Loans are available to pay debt service on all Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds.

The Offered Bonds shall be available in the denominations and in the aggregate principal amount and shall mature on
the date (subject to earlier payment of principal as described in “Principal Payments” below and redemption as described in
“Optional Redemption” below) set forth on the front cover hereof.

Principal and interest on the Offered Bonds shall be payable to the Owner thereof as described in “Application of
Assets for Payment of Bond Amounts” in “Summary of Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution.”

The Offered Bonds will be initially available and may be purchased only in book-entry form through the facilities of
DTC. Accordingly, for the purposes of the Resolution, the Owner of the Offered Bonds shall be DTC’s partnership nominee,
Cede & Co., and all references herein to the Owners of the Offered Bonds shall refer to Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not
mean the Beneficial Owners of the Offered Bonds (See Appendix G).

For every exchange or transfer of the Offered Bonds, the Authority or the Trustee may make a charge sufficient to
reimburse it for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer.

Interest Payments

Interest on the Offered Bonds will accrue at the rate of interest set forth on the front cover hereof from the Dated Date
set forth on the front cover hereof and shall be payable on the 25" day of each month (each a “Payment Date”), commencing on
December 25, 2015, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The amount of the interest
payable on each such Payment Date will be the amount of interest accrued on the Offered Bonds for the calendar month
immediately preceding the month of such Payment Date, as more fully described under “Class Factors” below. Each interest
payment shall be paid to the Owners of the Offered Bonds as of the applicable Record Date.

Principal Payments
Principal on the Offered Bonds shall be payable on each Payment Date, commencing on December 25, 2015, until the
earlier of the maturity date or payment in full of principal on the Offered Bonds. Each principal payment shall be paid to the

Owners of the Offered Bonds as of the applicable Record Date. The principal amount to be paid on the Offered Bonds shall be
allocated among the Offered Bonds as described in “Distribution of Principal Payment Amount” below. Such principal payments
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on the Offered Bonds (the “Principal Payment Amount”) shall be amounts composed of the sum of the following amounts as
determined by the Authority: (i) the principal portion of scheduled monthly payments due on the Allocated Mortgage Loans on
the first day of the month of the Payment Date, (ii) full or partial principal prepayments (including proceeds of hazard
insurance, title insurance, or condemnation) received on the Allocated Mortgage Loans in the calendar month immediately
preceding the month of the Payment Date, (iii) principal due upon liquidations by foreclosures or deeds in lieu of foreclosure on
the Allocated Mortgage Loans occurring or delivered in the calendar month immediately preceding the month of the Payment
Date, (iv) the principal balances of delinquent or restructured Allocated Mortgage Loans removed by the Authority from the
Allocated Mortgage Loan pool during the calendar month immediately preceding the month of the Payment Date, as described
below, and (V) the principal balances of Allocated Mortgage Loans that are repurchased during the calendar month immediately
preceding the month of the Payment Date by the financial institutions that originated such Allocated Mortgage Loans, as
described below.

For any Allocated Mortgage Loan which is liquidated by foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure, the full outstanding
principal amount due on the Allocated Mortgage Loan immediately prior to such foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure will
be used in determining the component of the Principal Payment Amount described in clause (iii) above. This component of the
Principal Payment Amount will be determined without regard to the amount or timing of the receipt of the amounts received by
the Authority from the foreclosure or from the sale of the single family residences securing the Allocated Mortgage Loans
acquired by the Authority in such a foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure.

Any Allocated Mortgage Loan which is delinquent by four consecutive monthly payments or is being restructured
which results in an increase in its outstanding principal balance or an extension of its maturity date beyond the maturity date
set forth on the front cover hereof will be removed by the Authority from the Allocated Mortgage Loan pool as described in (iv)
above, and the Authority will substitute cash for such Allocated Mortgage Loan in an amount equal to its outstanding principal
balance. Any such removal of an Allocated Mortgage Loan will have the same effect on the Offered Bonds as a full prepayment
of such Allocated Mortgage Loan.

The financial institutions that originated the Allocated Mortgage Loans made certain representations and warranties
with respect to the Allocated Mortgage Loans. If there is a material breach of these representations and warranties, the
Authority will require such financial institutions to purchase the related Allocated Mortgage Loan. As set forth in (v) above, any
such purchase of an Allocated Mortgage Loan will have the same effect on the Offered Bonds as a full prepayment of such
Allocated Mortgage Loan.

The Current Resolution does not require the Authority to give notice to the Owners of the Offered Bonds of Principal
Payment Amounts.

Distribution of Principal Payment Amount

If the Offered Bonds are registered in book-entry only form and so long as DTC or a successor securities depository is
the sole registered Owner of the Offered Bonds, distributions of Principal Payment Amounts shall be made on a pro rata pass-
through distribution of principal basis in accordance with DTC procedures, provided that, so long as the Offered Bonds are held
in book-entry form, the distributions of Principal Payment Amounts shall be made in accordance with the operational
arrangements of DTC then in effect, and, if the DTC operational arrangements do not allow for the distributions of Principal
Payment Amounts on a pro rata pass-through distribution of principal basis, ownership interests in the Offered Bonds to receive
such distributions of Principal Payment Amounts will be selected, in accordance with DTC procedures, by lot.

It is the Authority’s intent that distributions of Principal Payment Amounts be made on a pro rata pass-through
distribution of principal basis as described above. However, the Authority cannot provide any assurance that DTC, DTC’s direct
and indirect participants or any other intermediary will allocate distributions of Principal Payment Amounts on such basis. If
the Offered Bonds are not registered in book-entry only form, any distribution of Principal Payment Amounts shall be allocated
among the Owners of such Offered Bonds on a pro rata basis.

Record Dates

The Record Date for each Payment Date will be the last Business Day of the calendar month preceding such Payment
Date.

Class Factors

Prior to a Payment Date, the Authority will calculate for the Offered Bonds, a class factor (“Class Factor”) expressed
as a number carried to nine decimal places that may be multiplied by the original principal amount of the Offered Bonds to
determine the outstanding principal balance after giving effect to the distribution of principal to be made on the Offered Bonds
on the following Payment Date. For example, the December 2015 Class Factor for the Offered Bonds will reflect their remaining
principal amount, after giving effect to any Principal Payment Amount to be made on December 25, 2015. The November 2015
Class Factor is 1.000000000. Class Factors will be calculated and made available on the Authority’s website (currently,
www.vhda.com/about/InvestorRelations/Pages/MBS.aspx) on or about the 10th day of each month.



For any Payment Date, the amount of principal to be paid can be calculated by multiplying the original principal
amount of the Offered Bonds by the difference between the Class Factors for the preceding and current months. The amount of
interest to be paid on the Offered Bonds on each Payment Date will equal 30 days’ interest on their outstanding principal
amount as determined by their Class Factor for the preceding month. For example, the amount of principal to be paid on the
Offered Bonds on December 25, 2015 will reflect the difference between their November 2015 and December 2015 Class
Factors. The amount of interest to be paid on the Offered Bonds on December 25, 2015 will equal 30 days’ interest accrued, at
the interest rate set forth on the front cover hereof, during the month of November 2015 on the principal amount determined by
reference to their November 2015 Class Factor.

Allocated Mortgage Loans

Upon issuance of the Offered Bonds, the Allocated Mortgage Loans will be allocated to the Offered Bonds. All of the
Allocated Mortgage Loans are fully amortizing with original terms of thirty years secured by first liens on single family real
estate in the Commonwealth of Virginia except that four of the Allocated Mortgage Loans were modified after their initial
funding and now, as modified, have terms from the date of origination ranging from 384 to 461 months. All of the Allocated
Mortgage Loans are level payment, fixed rate Mortgage Loans. No Mortgage Loans which are more than 30 days delinquent as of
the Dated Date will be included in the Allocated Mortgage Loans. For further information regarding the origination and
servicing of the Allocated Mortgage Loans, see “The Single Family Programs” below.

The terms of the Allocated Mortgage Loans do not provide for prepayment penalties.

The Authority is not precluded from participating in any refinancing of the Allocated Mortgage Loans and may conduct
marketing activities, including the solicitation of Mortgagors, that will offer and/or encourage such refinancing by the Authority
or others of Allocated Mortgage Loans. Any such refinancings will result in the prepayments of the Allocated Mortgage Loans so
refinanced.

The following chart provides summary information concerning the Allocated Mortgage Loans. Solely for the
convenience of the purchasers of the Offered Bonds, certain original information on the individual Allocated Mortgage Loans is
available upon request to the Authority at (804) 343-5843 and on the Authority’s web site. (To access the information on the
Authority’s web site, go to www.vhda. com, then click on the Investor Information link which is under the heading “Business
Resources,” then click on the Mortgage Backed Securities link, then scroll down to “VHDA CMB 2015A” and click on the
Original Loan Pool link that is next to it.) The data located at such link is the only data on the Authority’s website that is
incorporated by this reference into this Official Statement. The Authority intends to continue to make such original information
as of its original date available, upon request and on its website, but is not obligated to do so.

Allocated Mortgage Loans

Unpaid principal balance $140,928,878
Original principal balance $167,014,118
Number of Allocated Mortgage Loans 1,226
Smallest principal balance $69,369
Median principal balance $106,254
Largest principal balance $288,386
Lowest coupon 3.750%
Weighted average coupon 4.767%
Highest coupon 5.250%
Shortest calculated maturity 117
Weighted average calculated maturity 264
Longest calculated maturity 319
Earliest initial scheduled payment date January 1, 2003
Latest initial scheduled payment date December 1, 2011

All of the Allocated Mortgage Loans are First Mortgage Loans (as defined in Part II of this Official Statement). There
are outstanding Second Mortgage Loans (as defined in Part II of this Official Statement) which were financed in connection
with some of the Allocated Mortgage Loans.

See Appendix I for additional information on the Allocated Mortgage Loans.

Reference is hereby made to the following pass-through bonds the Authority has previously issued. The structures of
these pass-through bonds may be different from the structure of the Offered Bonds. Information about these bonds and the
mortgage loans allocated to them is currently available on the Authority’s website



www.vhda.com/about/InvestorRelations/Pages/MBS.aspx and through Bloomberg Business News". The Authority intends to
provide similar information for the Offered Bonds.

Series Settlement Date CUSIP
2002 Series B March 20, 2002 927823AG9
2002 Series E December 17, 2002 92812TW31
2004 Series B June 10, 2004 92812T8P9
2006 Series A April 27, 2006 92812ULR7
2006 Series B April 27, 2006 92812ULSH
2006 Series C June 8, 2006 92812ULT3
2008 Series A March 25, 2008 92812UXA1
2008 Series B April 10, 2008 92812UXB9
2008 Series C November 18, 2008 92812UYL6 and 92812UYM4
2013 Series A** March 27, 2013 92813TEEG6
2013 Series B May 21, 2013 92812UK56
2013 Series C October 24, 2013 92812UM21
2013 Series D December 19, 2013 92812UQ35
2014 Series D December 11, 2014 92812UQ43

*#* The 2013 Series A bonds were issued under the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds Resolution. All of the other series are
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds.

Average Life of Offered Bonds

The average life of the Offered Bonds is uncertain due to the early repayment risk associated with the Allocated
Mortgage Loans. Allocated Mortgage Loans may be terminated prior to final maturity as a result of prepayment, default, sale,
condemnation, casualty loss or modification as described under “Principal Payments” above. There is no way to predict with
certainty (or provide assurances as to) the early repayment characteristics of the Allocated Mortgage Loans and the resulting
effect on the average life of the Offered Bonds.

The maturity date of the Offered Bonds has been fixed based on the latest maturity date of the Allocated Mortgage
Loans without regard to any receipt of regularly scheduled principal payments or prepayments on such Allocated Mortgage
Loans; however, regularly scheduled principal repayments on such Allocated Mortgage Loans will be received each month, and
it is anticipated that significant early repayments of such Allocated Mortgage Loans will in fact occur so that the Offered Bonds
will be paid in advance of their maturity date. The projected weighted average lives set forth in the table below assume all of
the Allocated Mortgage Loans remain current in their payments and pay not later than the first (1st) day of each month.

“Weighted average life” refers to the average amount of time that will elapse from the date of issuance of a security
until each dollar of principal of such security will be repaid to the investor. The weighted average life of the Offered Bonds will
be influenced by the rate of principal payment of the Allocated Mortgage Loans. Principal payments may be in the form of
scheduled principal payments or prepayments (for this purpose, the term “prepayment” includes prepayments and liquidations
due to default or other disposition of the Allocated Mortgage Loans, including removals of loans which are delinquent for four
consecutive months or subject to certain loan modifications as described under “Principal Payments” above). Prepayments on
loans such as the Allocated Mortgage Loans are commonly measured by a prepayment standard or model. The models used in
the following discussion are the PSA Rate model and the CPR model. Information regarding the PSA Rate model is included in
the next succeeding paragraph, and the PSA Rate is defined below in “Sources of Payment” in “Security.” The constant percent
prepayment rate formula (the “CPR Rate”) and the CPR Rate model are defined below in this section.

PSA Rate model: As used in the following table, “0% PSA” assumes no prepayments on the principal of the Allocated
Mortgage Loans. “50% PSA” assumes the principal of the Allocated Mortgage Loans will prepay at a rate one-half as fast as the
prepayment rates for 100% of the PSA Rate model. “150% PSA” assumes the principal of the Allocated Mortgage Loans will
prepay at a rate one and a half times as fast as the prepayment rates for 100% of the PSA Rate model. “200% PSA” assumes the
principal of the Allocated Mortgage Loans will prepay at a rate twice as fast as the prepayment rates for 100% of the PSA Rate
model. “250% PSA” assumes the principal of the Allocated Mortgage Loans will prepay at a rate 2.5 times as fast as the
prepayments rates for 100% of the PSA Rate model. “300% PSA” assumes the principal of the Allocated Mortgage Loans will
prepay at a rate 3 times as fast as the prepayment rates for 100% of the PSA Rate model. “400% PSA” assumes the principal of
the Allocated Mortgage Loans will prepay at a rate 4 times as fast as the prepayment rates for 100% of the PSA Rate model.
“600% PSA” assumes the principal of the Allocated Mortgage Loans will prepay at a rate 5 times as fast as the prepayment rates
for 100% of the PSA Rate model. “600% PSA” assumes the principal of the Allocated Mortgage Loans will prepay at a rate 6
times as fast as the prepayment rates for 100% of the PSA Rate model. “800% PSA” assumes the principal of the Allocated
Mortgage Loans will prepay at a rate 8 times as fast as the prepayment rates for 100% of the PSA Rate model.

Although Bloomberg Business News is listed here as a possible source for information, the Authority does not endorse any particular private
source of information, such as Bloomberg Business News, nor does the Authority accept any responsibility for any information disseminated by
any such private source beyond the information provided by the Authority to the general public, which information is available on its website.



CPR Rate model: The CPR Rate model is based on prepayments of principal for a mortgage loan pool assumed to
occur at a constant percentage rate. CPR Rate is stated as an annualized rate and is calculated as the percentage of the loan
amount outstanding at the beginning of a period, after applying scheduled payments, that prepays during that period. The CPR
Rate model assumes that a given pool of loans will prepay in each month according to the following formula:

Monthly Prepayments = (loan pool balance after scheduled payments) x (1-(1-CPR)"'?)

Accordingly, monthly prepayments, assuming a $1,000 balance after scheduled payments would be as follows for
various levels of CPR Rate:

0% CPR 2% CPR 4% CPR 6% CPR 8% CPR
Monthly Prepayment  $0.00 $1.68 $3.40 $5.14 $6.92

Neither the PSA Rate model nor the CPR Rate model purports to be a projection of the anticipated rate of prepayment
of the Allocated Mortgage Loans. There can be no assurance that prepayments of Allocated Mortgage Loan principal will
conform to any level of the PSA Rate model or the CPR Rate model. The rate of principal prepayments on pools of single family
mortgage loans is influenced by a variety of economic, geographic, social and other factors, including the level of mortgage
interest rates and the rate at which homeowners sell their homes or default on their mortgage loans. In general, if prevailing
interest rates fall significantly, mortgage loans are likely to be subject to higher prepayment rates than if prevailing rates remain
at or above the interest rates on such mortgage loans. Conversely, if interest rates rise, the rate of prepayment would be
expected to decrease. Other factors affecting prepayment of mortgage loans include changes in mortgagors’ housing needs, job
transfers, unemployment and mortgagors’ net equity in the mortgaged properties. In addition, as homeowners move or default
on their mortgage loans, the houses are generally sold and the mortgage loans prepaid, although under certain circumstances
the mortgage loans may be assumed by a new buyer. Mortgage loans may also be terminated prior to final maturity as a result
of condemnation, or casualty loss. Mortgagors may also make unscheduled partial principal payments from time to time
resulting in curtailment of the principal balance of the applicable mortgage loan. There is no reliable statistical base with which
to predict the level of prepayment in full or other early termination of the Allocated Mortgage Loans and the resulting effect on
the average life of the Offered Bonds. Because of the foregoing and since the rate of prepayment of principal of the Offered
Bonds will depend on the rate of repayment (including prepayments) of the Allocated Mortgage Loans, the actual maturity of
any Offered Bond cannot be predicted, but is likely to occur earlier than its stated maturity.

The figures in the table set forth below were computed assuming the following constant PSA and CPR rates, and that
Offered Bonds will not be optionally redeemed. There can be no assurance that such assumptions will in fact prove accurate.

Tables of Projected Weighted
Average Lives

CPR PSA
CPR Rate Model  Weighted Average PSA Rate Model Weighted Average
Assumption Life (in years) Assumption Life (in years)
0% 13.0 0% 13.0
3% 10.3 50% 10.3
6% 8.4 100% 8.4
9% 6.9 150% 6.9
12% 5.8 200% 5.8
15% 4.9 250% 4.9
18% 4.3 300% 4.3
24% 3.3 400% 3.3
30% 2.6 500% 2.6
36% 2.2 600% 2.2
48% 15 800% 15

The projected weighted average lives reflect a weighted average of the periods of time that the principal amount of the
Offered Bonds will be outstanding. They are not intended to indicate that the entire principal amount of the Offered Bonds will
remain outstanding until, and not shorter or longer than, the number of years indicated. At each level of prepayment
assumption, some portions of the principal amount of the Offered Bonds will remain outstanding for periods shorter than the
projected weighted average life, while some will remain outstanding for longer periods of time. Tables indicating the projected
approximate Class Factors of the Offered Bonds at each prepayment assumption provided above are included in Appendix L.

Optional Redemption

The Offered Bonds are subject to optional redemption at the election of the Authority, in whole on any Payment Date,
if the aggregate principal balance of the Offered Bonds on such Payment Date, subsequent to giving effect to the Principal
Payment Amount payable on such Payment Date, is equal to or less than 5% of the original principal amount of the Offered
Bonds. The Redemption Price shall be the principal amount of the Offered Bonds to be redeemed. Accrued and unpaid interest
through the calendar month immediately preceding the month of the redemption date will be paid on the Offered Bonds to be
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redeemed. Such Redemption Price and interest shall be paid to the Owners of the Offered Bonds as of the applicable Record
Date. If the Offered Bonds are to be so redeemed, the Class Factor for the month of the redemption date will be zero and will
be made available by the Authority as described under “Class Factors” above.

Notice to Owners

The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution does not require the Authority to give notice to the Owners of the
Offered Bonds of either the monthly Principal Payment Amount or an optional redemption.

Defeasance
The Written Determinations for the Offered Bonds will prohibit the defeasance of the Offered Bonds.
Purchase

In lieu of the redemption of any Commonwealth Mortgage Bond, the Authority may direct the Trustee in an Officer’s
Certificate to purchase such Bond from any Owner willing to sell such Bond. In addition, the Authority may at any time direct
the Trustee in an Officer’s Certificate to purchase, with Assets or other assets of the Authority, any Commonwealth Mortgage
Bond from any Owner willing to sell such Bond. In either case, the purchase price shall be determined by, or in accordance
with the directions of, the Authority.

SECURITY
Pledge of Assets

The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, including the Offered Bonds, are secured, to the extent and as provided in the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution, by a pledge of the Assets, which consist of Mortgage Loans (see “Data on
Commonwealth Bond Mortgage Loans” in Appendix B for certain information concerning the Mortgage Loans), Authority
Property, Revenues and Investment Obligations, and, to the extent made subject to the pledge or lien of the Resolution,
Enhancement Agreements, Exchange Agreements and Other Financial Agreements (see “Assets and the Pledge Thereof” in
“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution”). The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution imposes no
requirements on the Authority as to a minimum amount or type of Assets.

The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution permits the Authority to (i) purchase, sell, exchange, transfer and
modify Assets, (ii) apply Assets to the payment of Expenses, and (iii) withdraw Assets from the Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds Resolution thereby releasing such Assets from the lien and pledge created by the Resolution subject only to the
satisfaction of the Revenue Test (see “Withdrawal of Assets; Limited Operating Covenants”). The Authority may contribute
single family mortgage loans to the Resolution that become Mortgage Loans (and also Assets) following such contribution.
Since the date of the most recent financial statements (audited or unaudited) in Appendix A the Authority has withdrawn
$17,988,502 in Assets from the Resolution and has contributed no single family mortgage loans to the Resolution. The Authority
can give no assurances that it will or will not make any future withdrawals or contributions.

The Act provides that any pledge made by the Authority is valid and binding from the time such pledge is made and
that the Authority’s interest, then existing or thereafter obtained, in revenues, moneys, mortgage loans, receivables, contract
rights or other property or proceeds so pledged shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical
delivery or further act, and the lien of such pledge shall be valid and binding against all parties having claims of any kind in tort,
contract or otherwise against the Authority, irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. The Act further provides
that no instrument by which a pledge is created need be recorded nor shall any filing be required with respect thereto. The
Authority does not expect to record or file any deed of trust, mortgage or other instrument creating or evidencing the pledge or
lien created by the Resolution or any future supplemental resolution with respect to any Asset or other Asset hereafter pledged
to secure the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds. The Authority does not expect to physically deliver Assets to the Trustee.

The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution does not require the establishment and funding of any debt service
reserve fund or any other reserve fund, and the Authority does not expect to establish or fund any such reserve fund.

Mortgage Loans

The Mortgage Loans are Assets that are subject to the lien and pledge of the Resolution. See “The Single Family
Programs” and see “Data on Commonwealth Mortgage Loans” in Appendix B for certain information concerning the Mortgage
Loans.

Exchange Agreements, Enhancement Agreements, and Other Financial Agreements

The Current Resolution permits the Authority to execute Exchange Agreements (such as swap agreements),
Enhancement Agreements (such as agreements related to bond insurance) and Other Financial Agreements under which the
Authority obligations are payable from Assets on a parity basis with the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds (see “Incurrence of
Additional Obligations Payable from Assets” in “Summary of Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution”). Any Enhancement
Agreements, any Exchange Agreements or any Other Financial Agreements, including those made subject to the pledge or lien
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of the Resolution, are subject to the risk that the other parties to such Agreements may not satisfy their obligations set forth in
such Agreements. The Current Resolution does not establish minimum rating requirements for such other parties. There are no
outstanding Exchange Agreements under which the Authority’s obligations are payable from Assets. As of June 30, 2015,
approximately $22.2 million of Outstanding Bonds are insured, at the request of the Authority, by a third party. The annual
premium on such insurance is, and any premiums on any future insurance may be, payable from Assets.

In addition, the Authority may, in connection with the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities and Fannie Mae securities
(see “Ginnie Mae Financing” and “Fannie Mae Financing” in “The Single Family Programs”), enter into Other Financial
Agreements under which the Authority agrees with securities dealers to deliver such securities in specified amounts and by
specified dates and is liable to the securities dealers for loss due to failure to so deliver such securities. Any such liability would
be payable from Assets. As of June 30, 2015, the Authority was obligated to deliver $236.5 million of such securities under such
Other Financial Agreements.

In order to provide additional funds for its programs and other legally permissible purposes, the Authority considers
from time to time the sale of existing or newly originated single family mortgage loans allocated or to be allocated to its general
fund (the “General Fund”) or the Resolution. In connection therewith, the Authority may enter into one or more Other
Financial Agreements with the purchaser of such mortgage loans that would secure the Authority’s obligations to such
purchaser to repurchase such single family mortgage loans and to fund any payment deficiencies or otherwise compensate the
purchaser upon occurrence of certain events, such as a specified number of delinquent monthly payments on the mortgage
loans or breaches of the representations and warranties by the Authority with respect to the mortgage loans. No assurances can
be given whether the Authority will enter into such Other Financial Agreements or as to the amounts or terms thereof or the
amounts that would be payable from Assets.

Investment Obligations

The Authority maintains a substantial portion of Assets as Investment Obligations. Investment Obligations that are
eligible under the Resolution are set forth in the definition thereof in “Definitions” in “Summary of Certain Provisions of the
Current Resolution” and include (i) any investment (debt or other contractual obligation or equity interest) which, in the
determination of an Authorized Officer, is a suitable investment, in light of the amount and timing of Bond Obligation payments,
the amount of Assets, and the availability of monies to pay Bond Obligations as they become due, at the time of acquisition
thereof, and (ii) certain investments which bear, or the obligor(s) or guarantor(s) of which bear, an investment grade rating
assigned by a nationally recognized rating agency. See “Investments” and “The Common Fund” in “The Authority” for additional
information concerning Investment Obligations.

Sources of Payment

The scheduled payments of Bond Amounts, including the principal of and the interest on the Offered Bonds and any
Enhancement Agreements, any Exchange Agreements or any Other Financial Agreements that are payable from Assets, have
been or are expected to be based upon the assumed receipt by the Authority of principal and interest or other payments on or
with respect to Mortgage Loans and Investment Obligations, any Revenue with respect to Authority Property (excluding such
income to be applied to the payment of operating expenses or to be deposited into reserve or escrow funds for such Authority
Property), payments with respect to any Enhancement Agreement, any Exchange Agreement or any Other Financial
Agreements pledged as Assets, and net assets of the Authority, including net assets pledged under the Resolution.

The ability of the Authority to pay Bond Amounts, including principal and interest on the Offered Bonds, may be
adversely affected by several factors including (i) failure to receive principal and interest or other payments or income when
due or any time thereafter with respect to Mortgage Loans, Investment Obligations and any Enhancement Agreement, Exchange
Agreement or Other Financial Agreement pledged as Assets, (ii) terminations and prepayments of Mortgage Loans at times and
at rates not anticipated by the Authority, (iii) Mortgage Loans, Investment Obligations and other assets not being made,
financed or acquired at the times, interest rates or prices, as applicable, contemplated by the Authority or not being made,
financed or acquired at all, and (iv) losses from the sale or other disposition of Assets. A portion of such Mortgage Loan
terminations are due to foreclosure, deed in lieu of foreclosure, and assignment to mortgage loan companies. The Authority
does not necessarily receive cash upon the occurrence of such terminations. The receipt of cash for such terminations may
occur at a later time and may be for an amount less than the amount which was due under the Mortgage Loan.

In establishing the principal amounts and dates of the maturities and Sinking Fund Installments for the Currently
Outstanding Bonds the Authority has assumed certain levels of prepayments of Mortgage Loans, a substantial portion of which
will be used to pay such principal amounts and Sinking Fund Installments. Such assumed levels are percentages (0% or higher)
of the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association prepayment rate model (commonly referred to as the “PSA Rate”).
For this purpose, revenues received by the Authority as a result of defaults on Mortgage Loans are treated as prepayments. The
PSA Rate is a model that utilizes an assumed rate of prepayment each month relative to the then outstanding principal balance
of a pool of mortgage loans. The PSA Rate assumes constant prepayment rates of 0.2% per annum of the then outstanding
principal balance of such mortgage loans in the first month of the life of the mortgage loan and an additional 0.2% per annum in
each month thereafter until the thirtieth month. Beginning in the thirtieth month and in each month thereafter during the life of
the mortgage loans, the PSA Rate assumes a constant prepayment rate of 6% per annum. The PSA Rate does not purport to be a
historical description of prepayment experience or a prediction of the anticipated rate of prepayment of any pool of mortgage
loans, including the Mortgage Loans financed by the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds.



Set forth below are the percentages (if any) of the PSA Rates used or expected to be used by the Authority in assuming
the above described levels of prepayments of Mortgage Loans financed by the Currently Outstanding Bonds. The Series of
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds marked “pass-through” each have monthly Sinking Fund Installments or principal payment
obligations equal to the sum of (or a specified percentage of the sum of) scheduled principal payments on the Mortgage Loans
allocated to such series, prepayments received on such allocated Mortgage Loans and certain other payments relating to such
allocated Mortgage Loans and have a stated maturity date corresponding to the date of the last scheduled payment on any such
allocated Mortgage Loan.

Pass-through or Percentage

Bond Series PSA Rate Assumed
2002 Series B pass-through
2002 Series E pass-through
2004 Series B pass-through
2006 Series A pass-through
2006 Series B pass-through
2006 Series C pass-through
2006 Series DEF 50%
2007 Series ABCD 47%
2008 Series A pass-through
2008 Series B pass-through
2008 Series C pass-through
2009 Series A not applicable
2012 Series ABC 20%
2013 Series B pass-through
2013 Series C pass-through
2013 Series D pass-through
2014 Series A pass-through

The past events represented by the PSA Rate are not necessarily indicative of future events. As a result, there can be
no assurance that the prepayment experience of the Authority will substantially parallel those of the PSA Rate. The Authority’s
exercise of its rights to redeem some of the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds may change the percentage of the PSA Rate
required to meet scheduled debt service on the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds on or after the redemption dates of such
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds.

In estimating investment income to be received on moneys held under the Resolution, the Authority assumes the
investment of such funds at such interest rates as are deemed reasonable based on market conditions at the time of such
estimate.

On the basis of the foregoing facts and assumptions, the Revenues and other income to be received with respect to the
Offered Bonds and the Currently Outstanding Bonds are expected by the Authority to be in excess of the scheduled debt service
thereon. Certain excess Revenues must be used to redeem Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds and any other excess Revenues
may be used to purchase or redeem Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds that are subject to redemption, including optional
redemption, from excess Revenues. In reaching such expectation in the first sentence of this paragraph, the Authority has not
considered the issuance of additional Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds or the application or investment of the proceeds thereof.
The Authority believes its assumptions regarding the Offered Bonds and the Currently Outstanding Bonds to be reasonable, but
the Authority can give no assurance that the actual receipt of Revenues (including principal prepayments) will correspond with
its estimates of available money to pay debt service on the Offered Bonds and the Currently Outstanding Bonds.

Amendments to Resolution; Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Acquired by the Authority

The Current Resolution authorizes amendments to certain provisions therein by supplemental resolution of the
Authority without the consent of Owners. Pursuant to such authorization, the Authority may, subject to the Revenue Test
described below, amend the Current Resolution in any respect, except as described in subsection (7) in “Amendments” in
“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution.” The Current Resolution, including the Revenue Test, also may be
amended with the consent of the Owners of at least sixty percent (60%) of the Bond Obligation. Any of the foregoing
amendments may adversely affect the security for the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds (see “Amendments” in “Summary of
Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution”).

Pursuant to the Act and the Current Resolution, the Authority may purchase or otherwise acquire the actual or
constructive ownership of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds prior to the maturity or redemption thereof with the intent and
effect that such Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds shall remain Outstanding, subject to any terms and conditions determined by
the Authority or otherwise required by law. Any Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds so owned by the Authority shall be entitled to
vote or give consents under the Resolution, except with respect to amendments to the Resolution, and with respect to remedies
and appointment and removal of the Trustee upon an Event of Default. Any such vote or consent may adversely affect the
security for the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds.



General Obligations of the Authority

The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds are also general obligations of the Authority payable out of any of its revenues,
moneys or assets, subject to agreements heretofore or hereafter made with owners of Authority obligations other than the
Owners pledging particular revenues, moneys or assets for the payment thereof. The Authority has a long-term general
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obligation rating of “Aal” from Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) and a long-term Issuer Credit rating of “AA+” from
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (“Standard & Poor’s” or “S&P”). See “Ratings.” The security provided the Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds by the Authority’s general obligation should be evaluated in connection with the performance of other loan
programs of the Authority and such pledging of particular revenues, moneys or assets. See “The Multi-Family Program” and
“Miscellaneous Programs.” See also “Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Position” and “General Fund and Other Net

Assets,” both in “General Information About The Authority.”

The general obligation of the Authority provides additional security for payment of the Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds by imposing legal liability on the Authority to make payments, when due, on the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds. The
ability of the Authority to make such payments from sources other than the Assets will depend upon the financial strength of
the Authority, in particular the ability of the Authority to make such payments from its net assets in the other bond resolutions
described below under “Other Bond Resolutions” and from net assets in its General Fund. The net assets in such other bond
resolutions are pledged as security under those bond resolutions and are subject to restrictions and limitations described below
on the withdrawals of such assets from the lien and pledge of such resolutions. The net assets in the Authority’s General Fund
are not currently pledged as security for any bondholders and are not currently subject to any restrictions or limitations, but no
assurance can be given that the Authority will not in the future subject such assets to limitations or restrictions for the benefit
of obligors of the Authority or any other persons other than Owners of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds. The future amount
and value of the net assets in the other bond resolutions and the net assets in the Authority’s General Fund will depend upon the
ongoing success of the Authority’s multi-family and single family mortgage loan programs and operations, including the use and
investment of such net assets. For additional information concerning the financial status of the Authority as of June 30, 2015
and such net assets, see the financial statements in Appendix A.

The Authority has no taxing power. The Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds do not constitute a debt or grant or loan of
credit of the Commonwealth, and the Commonwealth shall not be liable thereon, nor shall the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds
be payable out of any funds other than those of the Authority. The Authority has not created a capital reserve fund to secure the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds and therefore the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds are not subject to the provision in the Act
that both requires the Governor to include in the Governor’s budget funds to cover any deficiency in the capital reserve funds of
the Authority and authorizes the General Assembly to appropriate funds therefor.

Other Bond Resolutions

At present, the principal source of funds for the Authority’s multi-family loan program described in “The Multi-Family
Program” are bonds (“Rental Housing Bonds”) issued and to be issued under the general bond resolution adopted by the
Authority on March 24, 1999, as amended and supplemented to the date of delivery of the Offered Bonds (the “Rental Housing
Bonds Resolution”). The Rental Housing Bonds Resolution authorizes the Authority to apply assets thereunder to make,
purchase, finance or refinance mortgage loans for multi-family developments. The Rental Housing Bonds Resolution also
authorizes the Authority to acquire, rehabilitate, construct, finance or refinance property owned by the Authority which, under
the terms of the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution includes real property and improvements thereon or an ownership share in a
cooperative housing association or a leasehold interest under a lease and any personal property attached to or used in
connection with any of the foregoing owned by the Authority and either financed or refinanced pursuant to the Rental Housing
Bonds Resolution or acquired by the Authority by purchase or foreclosure of a mortgage loan or by deed in lieu thereof. The
Rental Housing Bonds Resolution requires that each mortgage loan must be either (i) a loan evidenced by an interest-bearing
obligation secured by a mortgage for financing the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation and/or ownership of multi-family
residential housing (which housing may be economically mixed housing described below) and any nonhousing building or
buildings as authorized by the Act, (ii) an obligation, certificate or instrument for which such a loan secured by a mortgage is
the security or the source of payment, or (iii) a participation or other ownership interest in either a loan described in (i) or an
obligation, certificate or instrument described in (ii) with another party or parties or with another source of funds of the
Authority not pledged pursuant to the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution. The multi-family mortgage loans financed by the
Rental Housing Bonds are required by the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution to be secured by liens on the multi-family
developments. Upon the financing of multi-family mortgage loans or Authority owned property with the proceeds of Rental
Housing Bonds, such mortgage loans or property are pledged by the Authority as security under the Rental Housing Bonds
Resolution. The other assets attributable to the Rental Housing Bonds are also pledged under the Rental Housing Bonds
Resolution as security for the Rental Housing Bonds. The Rental Housing Bonds are general obligations of the Authority.

The Authority also has financed single family mortgage loans under another resolution (the “Homeownership
Mortgage Bonds Resolution”) authorizing the issuance of the Authority’s Homeownership Mortgage Bonds in connection with
the New Issuance Bond Program of the U. S. Department of the Treasury, all as more fully described in “New Issuance Bond
Program and Homeownership Mortgage Bonds” in “The Single Family Programs.” The Homeownership Mortgage Bonds
Resolution pledges the mortgage loans and assets attributable to the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds as security for the
payment of such Bonds. The Homeownership Mortgage Bonds are general obligations of the Authority.
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The scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Rental Housing Bonds and the Homeownership Mortgage
Bonds have been based upon the assumed receipt by the Authority of principal and interest or other payments on or with
respect to the assets pledged thereto. In so scheduling such payments of principal and interest on the Rental Housing Bonds,
the Authority has assumed that no prepayments of principal would be received with respect to the mortgage loans. In
establishing the payments of principal and interest on the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds, the Authority has assumed certain
levels of prepayments of the single family mortgage loans, a substantial portion of which will be used to pay such principal
amounts, based upon percentages (10% or higher) of the PSA Rate described in “Sources of Payment” in “Security.” Based upon
such assumptions, the Authority believes that the principal and interest or other payments on or with respect to the respective
assets pledged to the Rental Housing Bonds and the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds will be sufficient to pay, when due, the
scheduled debt service on such respective Bonds but the Authority can give no assurance that the actual receipt of payments
will correspond to the Authority’s assumptions.

The ability of the Authority to pay such principal and interest on the Rental Housing Bonds and the Homeownership
Mortgage Bonds may be adversely affected by (i) failure to receive principal and interest or other payments or income when
due or any time thereafter with respect to the respective mortgage loans, investment obligations and any other asset pledged
thereto, (ii) in the case of Rental Housing Bonds, receipt of income with respect to developments owned by the Authority and
financed by the Rental Housing Bonds in amounts less than expected by the Authority, (iii) in the case of Homeownership
Mortgage Bonds, terminations (including foreclosures, deeds in lieu of foreclosure, and assignments to mortgage insurance
companies) and prepayments of single family mortgage loans at times and at rates not anticipated by the Authority, (iv)
mortgage loans, investment obligations and other assets not being made, financed or acquired at the times, interest rates or
prices, as applicable, contemplated by the Authority or not being made, financed or acquired at all, and (v) receipt of net
proceeds from the sale or other disposition of respective assets pledged thereto in amounts less than expected by the Authority.
In the case of Rental Housing Bonds, the ability of a mortgagor to make principal and interest payments on a mortgage loan may
be adversely affected by reductions (or the failure to receive adequate increases) in federal subsidy payments with respect to
any developments financed by the Rental Housing Bonds and assisted by such subsidy payments, as well as by general
economic conditions. In the case of Homeownership Mortgage Bonds, the Authority does not necessarily receive cash upon the
occurrence of terminations described in (iii) above, and the receipt of cash for such terminations may occur at a later time and
may be for an amount less than the amount which was due under the single family mortgage loan.

Any excess funds under the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution or the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds Resolution may
be used to redeem (if then permitted by the terms of such resolution) Rental Housing Bonds or Homeownership Mortgage
Bonds, respectively, to finance mortgage loans or to acquire investments to be held under such resolution. At present, excess
funds or assets may be withdrawn from the lien and pledge of such resolution, subject to satisfaction of a revenue test in each
such resolution which has the same terms as the Revenue Test. No assurance can be given that in the future any such excess
funds or assets can or will be so withdrawn by the Authority from the lien and pledge of either the Rental Housing Bonds
Resolution or the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds Resolution or will be available for payment of principal or interest on the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds.

The Act permits the Authority to issue bonds and incur indebtedness in addition to the Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds, the Rental Housing Bonds and the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds.

WITHDRAWAL OF ASSETS; LIMITED OPERATING COVENANTS

Except for the Revenue Test, the Current Resolution imposes no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to transfer
Assets to the Authority (thereby releasing such Assets from the lien and pledge of the Resolution), and no requirements on the
Authority as to the minimum amount or type of Assets, nor does it impose any requirements on the Authority with respect to
annual income or net worth. The Current Resolution does require that certain actions, including transfer of all or any portion of
any Asset to the Authority (thereby releasing such Asset or portion from the lien and pledge of the Resolution), can be
undertaken only pursuant to the Revenue Test set forth in the Current Resolution. The Revenue Test requires an Authorized
Officer of the Authority, based on such assumptions as such Authorized Officer shall deem reasonable and subject to certain
other conditions, to determine that subsequent to taking such action, Revenues, as defined in the Resolution, “shall be at least
sufficient to pay all Bond Amounts as such Amounts are or are anticipated to become due and payable (by purchase,
redemption, or otherwise).” See “Revenue Test” in “Summary of Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution.”

To the extent that pursuant to an Officer’s Certificate the Authority pledges any funds which are not then subject to
the pledge of the Resolution and which are expected to be thereafter used to finance Mortgage Loans until the issuance of
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds therefor, an amount of Assets equivalent to such funds, plus a reasonable charge for interest
on such funds if and as determined by an Authorized Officer, may be subsequently withdrawn and transferred to the Authority
without regard to the satisfaction of the Revenue Test.

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CURRENT RESOLUTION

The following statements are brief summaries of certain provisions of the Current Resolution. Such statements are
qualified in each case by reference to the Current Resolution.

Capitalized items not previously defined in this Official Statement and not defined in this Summary shall have the
meanings set forth in the Current Resolution. Words importing the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter genders,
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words importing persons include firms, associations and corporations, and words importing the singular number include the
plural number, and vice versa.

Definitions

“1986 Amended Resolution” means the resolution adopted by the Authority on July 15, 1986, entitled “A Resolution
Providing for the Issuance of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds of the Virginia Housing Development Authority and for the
Rights of the Holders Thereof,” as amended and supplemented prior to the effective date of the Restated Bond Resolution.

“Act” means the Virginia Housing Development Authority Act, being Chapter 1.2 of Title 36 of the Virginia Code of
1950, as amended before or after the date of the Restated Bond Resolution.

“Asset” means any Mortgage Loan, Authority Property, Investment Obligation, Revenue, and, to the extent subject to
the pledge or lien of the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution or the 1986 Amended Resolution as of the effective date of
the Restated Bond Resolution or thereafter, any cash, Exchange Agreement, Enhancement Agreement or Other Financial
Agreement. Funds and investments on deposit in any Payment Account and Defeasance Obligations in any Defeasance Account
are not Assets.

“Authority Designations” means the one or more designations given to a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds as set forth in or determined pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior
Written Determinations or such other designations as may be deemed necessary or convenient by an Authorized Officer or by
the Trustee with the consent of an Authorized Officer.

“Authority Property” means real property and improvements thereon or an ownership share in a cooperative housing
association or a leasehold interest under a lease and any personal property attached to or used in connection with any of the
foregoing which, as of the effective date of the Restated Bond Resolution or thereafter, is owned by the Authority and is either
financed pursuant to the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution or the 1986 Amended Resolution or acquired by the
Authority by purchase or foreclosure of a Mortgage Loan or by deed in lieu thereof.

“Authorized Officer” means the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Managing Director of Finance and
Administration, Finance Director, General Counsel, any functionally equivalent successor position to any of the aforementioned
positions but which bears a different title, or any other person authorized by resolution of the Authority to act as an Authorized
Officer under the Current Resolution.

“Bond Amount” means the one or more payments of principal and interest, including any Compounded Amount,
Purchase Price, Redemption Price or Sinking Fund Installment, if applicable, due and payable from time to time with respect to
a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond from its date of issuance to its maturity, tender or redemption date, or any payment required
to be made by the Authority pursuant to an Exchange Agreement, Enhancement Agreement or Other Financial Agreement to
the extent such payment thereunder is payable from Assets.

“Bond Limitations Resolution” means a resolution adopted by the Authority setting forth the limitations required by
the Current Resolution and such other limitations and matters as may be deemed appropriate by the Authority. The limitations
required by the Current Resolution include (1) the maximum principal amount of the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds to be
issued or to be Outstanding subject to such Bond Limitations Resolution, (2) the latest date by which the Authority may enter
into one or more contracts providing for the sale of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, and (3) the minimum purchase price for
the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds upon the issuance thereof.

“Bond Obligation” means, as of a specific date of calculation, the aggregate of (1) all interest due or accrued on
Outstanding Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, (2) all unpaid principal on Outstanding Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, (3) the
amount of the payment, if any, the Authority would be obligated to make on any Exchange Agreement payable from Assets if
such Exchange Agreement were terminated on such date of calculation, and (4) all amounts owed by the Authority with respect
to any Enhancement Agreement or Other Financial Agreement payable from Assets.

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday on which banking institutions in Virginia,
or the state in which the Principal Office of the Trustee is located, are authorized to remain closed and other than any day on
which the New York Stock Exchange or a security depository with respect to a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond is closed.

“Capital Appreciation Bond” means a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond the interest on which is payable only at maturity
or prior redemption as a component of its Compounded Amount.

“Chairman” means the Chairman of the Authority.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any successor code, including the applicable
temporary, proposed and permanent regulations, revenue rulings and revenue procedures.

“Commonwealth” means the Commonwealth of Virginia.
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“Compounded Amount” means, with respect to a Capital Appreciation Bond, a Delayed Interest Bond or any other
Commonwealth Mortgage Bond so determined in or pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written
Determinations, the sum of principal and accrued interest with respect to such Bond, as of any date, as set forth in or
determined pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.

“Dated Date” means the date on which a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond initially begins to accrue interest as set forth
in or determined pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.

“Defeasance Account” means a trust account or other financial arrangement whereby the Trustee holds Defeasance
Obligations in trust for the payment of all Bond Amounts due and payable or to become due and payable at maturity or upon
earlier redemption with respect to one or more Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds and all fees and expenses of the Trustee with
respect to the administration of such trust account or other financial arrangement.

“Defeasance Obligation” means cash, any direct obligation of the United States of America, any direct federal agency
obligation the timely payment of the principal of and the interest on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the
United States of America, and any Certificates of Accrual on Treasury Securities or Treasury Investors Growth Receipts;
provided, however, that the foregoing are not subject to redemption, call or prepayment, in whole or in part, prior to their
respective maturity dates.

“Delayed Interest Bond” means a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond the interest on which accrues and compounds, from
its Dated Date and at an interest rate and compounding interval specified in or determined pursuant to the applicable Written
Determinations or Prior Written Determinations, to a date specified in such applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written
Determinations on which date such Bond shall reach its full Compounded Amount, and with respect to which, from and after
such date, interest on such Bond is to be payable on such Compounded Amount on the dates and at the interest rate specified in
or determined pursuant to such applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company.

“Enhancement Agreement” means an agreement with one or more third parties which sets forth the terms and
conditions upon which such third party or parties will provide for the payment of all or a portion of one or more Bond Amounts
with respect to a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or a payment to the Authority. The obligations of and any receipts by the
Authority with respect to such Enhancement Agreement shall or shall not, as and to the extent set forth in or determined
pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations or an Officer’s Certificate, be payable from
Assets or constitute an Asset, as applicable.

“Event of Default” means any of the events set forth in “Events of Default” below.

“Exchange Agreement” means an agreement with one or more third parties which sets forth the terms and conditions
upon which such third party or parties and the Authority will exchange or make payments to the other party or parties. The
obligations of and any receipts by the Authority with respect to such Exchange Agreement shall or shall not, as and to the
extent set forth in or determined pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations or an
Officer’s Certificate, be payable from Assets or constitute an Asset, as applicable.

“Executive Director” means the Executive Director of the Authority.

“Expense” means any expenditure payable or reimbursable by the Authority which is directly or indirectly related to
the authorization, sale, delivery, issuance, remarketing, enhancement, monitoring, purchase, redemption or trusteeship of any
Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or Asset.

“External Trustee” means a Trustee other than the Authority.

“Finance Director” means the Finance Director of the Authority.

“General Counsel” means the General Counsel of the Authority.

“Interest Payment Date” shall mean any date, as set forth in or determined pursuant to the applicable Written
Determinations or Prior Written Determinations, on which interest is due and payable with respect to a Commonwealth
Mortgage Bond.

“Investment Obligation” means any of the following acquired or pledged, as of the effective date of the Restated Bond
Resolution or thereafter, pursuant to the Current Resolution or the 1986 Amended Resolution or pursuant to an Officer’s
Certificate, except to the extent limited by any amendments to the Act:

(A) direct general obligations of the United States of America;

(B) direct obligations of any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or the District of
Columbia bearing a Rating;
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(C) obligations the payment of the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United
States of America;

(D) obligations which bear a Rating and the payment of the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed by any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or the District of Columbia;

(E) bonds, debentures, participation certificates or notes or other obligations (including asset backed securities)
issued by any one or any combination of the following: Federal Financing Corporation, Federal Farm Credit Banks (Bank for
Cooperatives and Federal Intermediate Credit Banks), Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal National Mortgage
Association, World Bank, Export-Import Bank of the United States, Student Loan Marketing Association, Farmer’s Home
Administration, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government National Mortgage Association, Inter-American
Development Bank, International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Small Business Administration, Washington
Metropolitan Area Transit Authority, Resolution Funding Corporation, Tennessee Valley Authority, or any other agency or
corporation which has been or may after the date of the Restated Bond Resolution be created by or pursuant to an Act of the
Congress of the United States as an agency or instrumentality thereof the bonds, debentures, participation certificates or notes
or other obligations (including asset backed securities) of which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of
America or bear a Rating;

(F) certificates of deposit, banker’s acceptances, investment contracts, and any interest-bearing time deposits which
are issued by any member bank or banks of the Federal Reserve System or banks the deposits of which are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation;

(G) Eurodollar time deposits and Eurodollar certificates of deposit the issuers of which have obligations which, at the
time of acquisition of such deposits or certificates, bear a Rating;

(H) obligations, including investment contracts, of corporations which have obligations which, at the time of
acquisition of such obligations including investment contracts, bear a Rating;

(D any other investments which, at the time of acquisition thereof, bear a Rating and are legal investments for
fiduciaries or for public funds of the Authority, the Commonwealth and/or its political subdivisions;

(J) repurchase agreements with respect to any of the other Investment Obligations; and

(K) any other investment (debt or equity), investment agreement, Exchange Agreement, Other Financial Agreement,
swap contract, futures contract, forward contract or other obligation which, in the determination of an Authorized Officer, is a
suitable investment under the Current Resolution, in light of the amount and timing of Bond Obligation payments, the amount of
Assets, and the availability of monies to pay Bond Obligations as they become due, at the time of acquisition thereof.

“Managing Director of Finance and Administration” means the Managing Director of Finance and Administration of the
Authority.

“Mortgage” means a mortgage deed, deed of trust, or other security instrument which secures a Mortgage Loan and
which shall constitute a lien on real property and improvements thereon or on an ownership share in a cooperative housing
association or on a leasehold interest under a lease and may also constitute a lien on or security interest in any personal
property attached to or used in connection with any of the foregoing.

“Mortgage Loan” means each of the following financed or pledged, as of the effective date of the Restated Bond
Resolution or thereafter, pursuant to the Current Resolution or the 1986 Amended Resolution and the Act or pursuant to an
Officer’s Certificate: (1) a loan evidenced by a financial instrument or obligation secured by a Mortgage for financing the
acquisition, construction, rehabilitation and/or ownership of single family residential housing as authorized by the Act, (2) an
obligation, certificate or instrument for which such a loan secured by a Mortgage is the security or the source of payment, or (3)
a participation or other ownership interest in either a loan described in (1) or an obligation, certificate or instrument described
in (2) with another party or parties or with another source of funds of the Authority not pledged under the Current Resolution.

“Mortgagor” means the obligor or obligors on a Mortgage Loan.
“Officer’s Certificate” means a certificate signed by an Authorized Officer.

“Other Financial Agreement” means any type of agreement or arrangement not otherwise referred to in the Current
Resolution that is provided for in a Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations. The obligations of and any receipts
by the Authority with respect to such Other Financial Agreement shall or shall not, as and to the extent set forth in or
determined pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations or an Officer’s Certificate, be
payable from Assets or constitute an Asset, as applicable.

“Outstanding” means, when used with reference to Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds and as of any particular date, all
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds theretofore and thereupon being issued except (1) any Commonwealth Mortgage Bond for
which funds for the payment of all Bond Amounts due and payable or to become due and payable with respect to such Bond
have been paid to the Owner thereof or are held in a Defeasance Account or Payment Account, and (2) any Commonwealth
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Mortgage Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which another Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or Bonds shall have been
delivered. If an Officer’s Certificate shall have been delivered with respect to a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond that the
Authority is the Owner thereof stating the Authority’s intent that such Commonwealth Mortgage Bond shall remain outstanding,
such Bond does not cease to be Outstanding.

“Owner” means the party set forth in the Registration Books as the owner of a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or any
other party due a Bond Amount.

“Payment Account” means any trust account or other financial arrangement with the Trustee in which payments made
by the Authority to the Trustee with respect to Bond Amounts then due and payable are held in trust by the Trustee pending
disbursement to the Owners thereof.

“Principal Office” means the office so designated by the Trustee as its office for administering its duties with respect to
the Current Resolution.

“Prior Written Determinations” means any written determinations that, as of the effective date of the Restated Bond
Resolution, have been made pursuant to any Series Resolution with respect to Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds that are
Outstanding on such effective date.

“Purchase Price” means the purchase price, including accrued interest, of a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond on a
Tender Date as set forth in or determined pursuant to the applicable Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.

“Rating” means an investment grade rating assigned by a nationally recognized rating agency to an Investment
Obligation or, if such Investment Obligation is not rated, an investment grade rating assigned to the obligor or guarantor of such
Investment Obligation.

“Record Date” means the date or dates established as described in “Record Dates” below.

“Redemption Price” means the principal or Compounded Amount of a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or portion
thereof to be redeemed plus the applicable redemption premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof.

“Registration Books” means the records of the Trustee and the Authority which set forth the Owner of any
Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or any other party due a Bond Amount and such other information as is usual and customary in
the securities industry or as specifically directed by the Authority.

“Restated Bond Resolution” means the resolution adopted by the Authority on September 21, 2004, amending and
restating the 1986 Amended Resolution. The effective date of the Restated Bond Resolution was July 19, 2006.

“Revenues” means all net proceeds from the sale or other disposition of any Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or Asset,
payments of principal of and interest on Mortgage Loans (including any moneys received by the Authority and applied to such
principal and interest) and Investment Obligations, fees and penalties charged or assessed by the Authority with respect to a
Mortgage Loan (excluding processing, financing, prepayment or other similar fees), income received by the Authority as owner
of Authority Property (excluding such income to be applied to the payment of operating expenses or to be deposited into
reserve or escrow funds for such Authority Property), and payments received with respect to an Enhancement Agreement,
Exchange Agreement or Other Financial Agreement payable from Assets.

“Revenue Test” means the test set forth in “Revenue Test” below.

“Series Resolution” means any series resolution (including any amendments thereto) which, as of the effective date of
the Restated Bond Resolution, had been adopted pursuant to the 1986 Amended Resolution and pursuant to which Bonds were
Outstanding as of the effective date of the Restated Bond Resolution.

“Sinking Fund Installment” means the amount of principal or Compounded Amount of any particular Term Bonds to be
redeemed or retired prior to the maturity date of such Term Bonds all as set forth in or determined pursuant to the applicable
Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.

“Supplemental Bond Resolution” means any resolution of the Authority amending or supplementing the Current
Resolution adopted and becoming effective in accordance with the terms of the Current Resolution on or after the effective date
of the Restated Bond Resolution.

“Tax Covenant” means the covenant set forth in the last paragraph under “Covenants” below.

“Term Bonds” means the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds as so designated in or pursuant to the applicable Written
Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.

“Tender Date” means any date on which a Commonwealth Mortgage Bond is subject to tender to the Trustee or the

Authority or any other party serving as tender agent for purchase as set forth in or determined pursuant to the applicable
Written Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.
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“Trustee” means the trustee appointed by or pursuant to the provisions of the Current Resolution.
“Vice Chairman” means the Vice Chairman of the Authority.

“Written Determinations” means one or more determinations made in writing by an Authorized Officer which sets
forth those terms and conditions authorized by the Current Resolution to be contained therein and such other terms and
conditions as an Authorized Officer may deem appropriate and as shall not be inconsistent with the Current Resolution and the
applicable Bond Limitations Resolution. Any such Written Determinations may be amended by an Authorized Officer from time
to time prior to the issuance of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds designated therein and may thereafter be amended as provided
in Current Resolution. Any Written Determinations shall be subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in or determined
pursuant to the applicable Bond Limitations Resolution.

Assets and the Pledge Thereof

Subject only to the right of the Authority to withdraw, transfer, sell, exchange or otherwise apply Assets in accordance
with the provisions of the Current Resolution, a pledge of Assets is made by the Current Resolution to secure the payment of
the Authority’s obligations with respect to the Current Resolution, including any and all Bond Amounts; and subject to such
right of the Authority, such Assets, regardless of their location or method of identification, are and shall be held in trust for the
purposes and under the terms and conditions of the Current Resolution.

Funds and investments on deposit in any Payment Account and Defeasance Obligations in any Defeasance Account
are not Assets; however, a pledge of funds and investments in any Payment Account and Defeasance Obligations in any
Defeasance Account is made by the Current Resolution to secure the payment of the Authority’s obligations (including any and
all Bond Amounts) on the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, any Enhancement Agreement, any Exchange Agreement and any
Other Financial Agreement with respect to which such funds and investments and Defeasance Obligations are so deposited.

Application of Assets for Payment of Bond Amounts

On any day on which a Bond Amount is due and payable (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next Business Day
thereafter), the Authority shall pay such Bond Amount from Assets or other funds of the Authority to either, at the Authority’s
option, the Trustee or to the Owner of such Bond Amount. No such payment shall be made unless the Authority shall pay, in
full, all Bond Amounts due and payable on such date. Any such payment to the Trustee shall be in the form of cash or
Investment Obligation which is a cash equivalent and the Trustee shall make payment of such Bond Amount to the Owner
thereof in accordance with the immediately succeeding paragraph. Any such payment to the Trustee shall, pending
disbursement thereof to the Owner thereof, be deposited into a Payment Account.

Each Bond Amount shall be payable to the Owner thereof by check draft, electronic funds transfer or other means
determined by an Authorized Officer (which payment methodology can vary depending upon the amount of the Bond Amount,
the Owner of such Bond Amount and the usual and customary practices in the securities industry as determined by an
Authorized Officer) in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the
payment of public and private debts, unless otherwise set forth in or determined pursuant to the applicable Written
Determinations or Prior Written Determinations.

Funds and investments on deposit in any Payment Account shall not be Assets and shall be unavailable for payment to
Owners other than the Owners of the Bond Amounts with respect to which such funds and investments were deposited by the
Authority or the Trustee in such Payment Account, and the Owners of any such Bond Amounts shall no longer have a lien on or
the benefit of a pledge of the Assets with respect to such Bond Amounts but shall have a lien on, and the benefit of the pledge
of, the funds and investments in such Payment Account and shall look only to such funds and investments for payment. No
funds and investments shall be withdrawn from any Payment Account other than to pay the applicable Bond Amounts.

Withdrawal, Transfer, Sale, Exchange and Modification of Assets

On any date, the Authority may either directly or by direction to the Trustee (i) apply Assets to make, purchase,
finance or refinance Mortgage Loans, to acquire, rehabilitate, construct, finance or refinance Authority Property, to purchase
Investment Obligations and make any required payments associated therewith, to make payments pursuant to any agreement
associated, related or entered into with respect to the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, to make payments to any party to
comply with the Tax Covenant, to purchase any Commonwealth Mortgage Bond, to pay any Expense, or to make any other
withdrawal, transfer, sale, exchange or other application of Assets required, permitted or contemplated by the Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds Resolution, or (ii) subject to satisfaction of the Revenue Test described below, transfer all or any portion of
any Asset to the Authority. Assets so transferred to the Authority shall not thereafter be subject to the lien or pledge created by
the Current Resolution.

The Authority shall be authorized to sell or exchange any Asset to or with any party (including the Authority) at a price
and/or for other assets equal to such Asset’s fair market value, or subject to satisfaction of the Revenue Test described below, at
any price and/or for any assets.

The Authority may modify or amend, in any manner it deems appropriate in its sole judgment, the terms and
conditions of any Asset, subject to satisfaction of the Revenue Test described below or subject to the determination of an
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Authorized Officer that such modification or amendment is either (i) not materially adverse to the payment of any Bond
Amount, or (ii) in the best interests of the Owners.

To the extent that pursuant to an Officer’s Certificate the Authority pledges any funds which are not then subject to
the pledge of the Current Resolution and which are expected to be thereafter used to finance Mortgage Loans until the issuance
of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds therefor, an amount of Assets equivalent to such funds, plus a reasonable charge for interest
on such funds if and as determined by an Authorized Officer, may be subsequently withdrawn and transferred to the Authority
without regard to the satisfaction of the Revenue Test.

Revenue Test

The Revenue Test requires that, prior to effecting any proposed action which is subject thereto, an Authorized Officer
shall, based on such assumptions as such Authorized Officer shall deem reasonable (but without taking into account any future
issuances of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds and any Assets derived therefrom, or any future execution of Exchange
Agreements, Enhancement Agreements or Other Financial Agreements payable from Assets), determine that, subsequent to the
effecting of such action, the anticipated Revenues (including Revenues anticipated to be derived from any acquisition, sale,
transfer, exchange, withdrawal or other application or prepayment of any Asset and taking into account any default in the
payment of Revenues which such Authorized Officer reasonably expects) to be derived from all Assets which are to remain or
anticipated to become subject to the lien or pledge of the Current Resolution shall be at least sufficient to pay all Bond Amounts
as such Bond Amounts are or are anticipated to become due and payable (by purchase, redemption, or otherwise).

Investment of Funds
Funds pledged pursuant to the Current Resolution may be invested in Investment Obligations.
Covenants

Except funds and investments in any Payment Account and Defeasance Obligations in any Defeasance Account, an
asset or property may be acquired (by purchase or exchange) or financed pursuant to the Current Resolution only if such asset
or property constitutes an Asset.

Subject to the Tax Covenant set forth in the following paragraph, the Authority shall do all such acts as may be
reasonably necessary in the sole judgment of the Authority to receive and collect Revenues and to enforce the terms and
conditions relating to the Assets.

The Authority shall at all times do and perform all acts required by the Code in order to assure that interest paid by the
Authority on a Tax Exempt Bond shall not be included in gross income of the Owner thereof pursuant to the Code.

Incurrence of Additional Obligations Payable from Assets

The Current Resolution permits the issuance of additional Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds and the execution of
Exchange Agreements, Enhancement Agreements and Other Financial Agreements payable from Assets. The Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds and any Exchange Agreements, Enhancement Agreements or Other Financial Agreements payable from Assets,
regardless of the time or times of their issuance, execution or maturity, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or
distinction, except as otherwise expressly provided in or determined pursuant to a Supplemental Bond Resolution in
accordance with subparagraph (8) in “Amendments” below.

Amendments

Amendments to the Current Resolution may be made by a Supplemental Bond Resolution. Supplemental Bond
Resolutions which become effective upon filing with the Trustee may be adopted for any one or more of the following purposes:

(@8] To cure any ambiguity, supply any omission, or cure or correct any defect or inconsistent provision in the
Current Resolution;

2) To include such provisions as are deemed by an Authorized Officer to be necessary or desirable and are not
contrary to or inconsistent with the Current Resolution as theretofore in effect;

3 To add other covenants, agreements, limitations, or restrictions to be observed by the Authority which are
not contrary to or inconsistent with the Current Resolution as theretofore in effect;

(€)) To add to the rights or privileges of the Owners;

) To surrender any right, power or privilege reserved to or conferred upon the Authority by the Current
Resolution;

6) To comply with any provision of the Code or federal or state law or regulation;
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) To modify or amend the Current Resolution in any respect, subject to satisfaction of the Revenue Test;
provided, however, that no such modification or amendment pursuant to this Subsection (7) shall modify or
delete, or shall authorize or permit any deletion or modification of, any of the following: (i) any of the
covenants, rights or remedies pursuant to the Tax Covenant or the provisions of the Current Resolution
relating to remedies on default, (ii) the definition of Revenue Test, (iii) any requirement for satisfaction of the
Revenue Test, (iv) the definition of Defeasance Obligation, (v) the provisions of the Current Resolution
relating to the constitution of the Current Resolution as a contract, the general obligation of the Authority and
the pledge of Assets, (vi) the provisions of the Current Resolution which set forth those provisions permitting
amendments to the Current Resolution, (vii) the provisions of the Current Resolution relating to the removal
of the Trustee, (viii) the provisions of the Current Resolution relating to defeasance, (ix) any requirement for
notice to or consent, approval or direction of Owners, or (x) the terms of redemption or the due date or
amount of payment of any Bond Amount without the consent of the Owner of such Bond Amount; or

®) To set forth the amendments to the Current Resolution necessary or desirable to provide for the issuance of
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds or the execution of Exchange Agreements, Enhancement Agreements or
Other Financial Agreements payable from Assets, (i) on which the payment of the Bond Amounts may be
subordinate to the payment of the Bond Amounts with respect to other Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds or
Exchange Agreements, Enhancement Agreements or Other Financial Agreements payable from Assets, (ii)
which may have the payment of their Bond Amounts conditional upon the happening of certain events, (iii)
which may not be general obligations of the Authority, (iv) which may not be secured by all or any of the
Assets, or (v) whose Owners do not have all of the rights or benefits of the other Owners.

Other Supplemental Bond Resolutions may become effective only if (1) on the date such Resolution becomes effective,
no Commonwealth Mortgage Bond issued prior to the adoption of such Resolution remains Outstanding and no Exchange
Agreement, Enhancement Agreement or Other Financial Agreement in existence prior to the adoption of such Resolution
remains payable from Assets, or (2) with consent of the Owners of at least sixty percent (60%) of the Bond Obligation
responding to the request for consent within the time period as shall be established (and as may be extended) by the Trustee.
No such Resolution shall permit a change in the terms of redemption or in the due date or amount of payment of any Bond
Amount without the consent of the Owner of such Bonds Amount or lower the percentage of percentage of the Owners required
to effect any such amendment.

Defeasance

If (i) Defeasance Obligations shall have been deposited in a Defeasance Account, (ii) the principal of and interest on
such Defeasance Obligations at maturity, without reinvestment, shall be sufficient, in the determination of an Authorized
Officer, to pay all Bond Amounts when due at maturity or upon earlier redemption with respect to a Commonwealth Mortgage
Bond and all fees and expenses of the Trustee with respect to such Defeasance Account, and (iii) any notice of redemption, if
applicable, shall have been given to the Owner thereof or provisions satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the
giving of such notice, then notwithstanding any other provision of the Current Resolution to the contrary, the Owner of such
Commonwealth Mortgage Bond shall no longer have a lien on, or the benefit of a pledge of, the Assets, and such
Commonwealth Mortgage Bond shall no longer be deemed Outstanding under the Current Resolution. If the foregoing
requirements shall have been satisfied with respect to all Outstanding Bonds and no Enhancement Agreement, Exchange
Agreement or Other Financial Agreement remains payable from Assets, then the lien, pledge, covenants, agreements and other
obligations under the Current Resolution shall, at the election of the Authority, be discharged and satisfied, and the Trustee
shall thereupon deliver to the Authority all Assets held by it.

Defeasance Obligations shall not be Assets and shall be unavailable for payment to Owners other than the Owners of
the Bond Amounts with respect to which such Defeasance Obligations shall have been deposited by the Authority in the
applicable Defeasance Account. The Owners of such Bond Amounts so deposited shall have a lien on, and the benefit of the
pledge of, the Defeasance Obligations in such Defeasance Account and shall look only to such Defeasance Obligations for

payment.

No Defeasance Obligation shall be withdrawn from any Defeasance Account other than to pay, when due, the
applicable Bond Amounts or the fees and expenses of the Trustee with respect to such Defeasance Account. If any Defeasance
Obligation remains in a Defeasance Account subsequent to the payment of all the applicable Bond Amounts and all fees and
expenses of the Trustee with respect to such Defeasance Account have been paid, such Defeasance Obligations shall be
transferred to the Authority free of any lien or pledge of the Current Resolution.

For the purpose of defeasance, interest on any Commonwealth Mortgage Bond on which the interest is or may be
payable at a variable rate shall be calculated at the maximum interest rate (or, if none, the estimated maximum interest rate as
determined by an Authorized Officer in an Officer’s Certificate) payable on such Bond.

Cash on deposit in a Defeasance Account shall, upon the direction of an Authorized Officer, be invested by the Trustee
in Defeasance Obligations or any repurchase agreement fully collateralized, as determined by an Authorized Officer, by any
Defeasance Obligations.
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Trustee

Any Trustee appointed under the Current Resolution must be (1) a bank, trust company or national banking
association, having trust powers, or (2) with the prior approval of its Commissioners, the Authority. U.S. Bank National
Association currently is acting as External Trustee under the Current Resolution. The rights, responsibilities and duties of the
Trustee under the Current Resolution are vested in said Trustee in trust for the benefit of the Owners. Any successor Trustee
shall signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it by the Current Resolution by executing and delivering
to the Authority a written instrument of acceptance thereof. The External Trustee shall not be liable in connection with the
performance of its duties and responsibilities under the Current Resolution, except for its own negligence or default.

Unless otherwise provided by contract between an External Trustee and the Authority, the Trustee may at any time
resign and be discharged of its duties and obligations created by the Current Resolution by giving not less than ninety (90) days’
written notice to the Authority. Such resignation shall take effect upon the day specified in such notice unless previously a
successor shall have been appointed by the Authority as provided in the Current Resolution, in which event such resignation
shall take effect immediately on the effective date of the appointment of such successor. Notwithstanding anything in the
Current Resolution to the contrary, the resignation of the Trustee shall not take effect until a successor Trustee shall have been
appointed and shall have accepted its duties and obligations as of the effective date of such resignation.

Any Trustee may be removed at any time by the Owners of a majority of the Bond Obligation by an instrument or
concurrent instruments in writing signed and duly acknowledged by such Owners or by their attorneys duly authorized in
writing and delivered to the External Trustee, if any, and to the Authority. The Authority may remove any External Trustee at
any time, except during the existence and continuance of an Event of Default. In the event of the occurrence and continuance of
an Event of Default and in the event that the Authority is serving in the capacity of the Trustee, the Authority shall immediately
appoint a successor Trustee or shall, or any Owner may, petition a court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor
Trustee, and the Authority shall resign as Trustee as of the effective date of the appointment of such successor Trustee. No
Trustee shall be removed unless, on or prior to the effective date of removal of the Trustee, the Owners, the Authority or a court
of competent jurisdiction, as the case may be, shall have appointed a successor Trustee and such successor Trustee shall have
accepted its duties and obligations under the Current Resolution as of the effective date of such removal. Any successor Trustee
shall have the qualifications described above.

Events of Default

The Current Resolution provides that each of the following is an Event of Default: (i) a Bond Amount shall become due
on any date and shall not be paid by the Authority to either the Trustee or party due such Bond Amount on said date; or (ii) a
default shall be made in the observance or performance of any covenant, contract or other provision of the Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds or Current Resolution, and such default shall continue for a period of ninety (90) days after written notice to
the Authority from Owners of twenty-five percent (25%) of the Bond Obligation or from the Trustee specifying such default and
requiring the same to be remedied; or (iii) there shall be filed by or against the Authority as debtor a petition in bankruptcy (or
other commencement of a bankruptcy or similar proceeding) under any applicable law or statute now or hereafter in effect.

Remedies

Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default described in clause (i) in the prior paragraph entitled
“Events of Default,” the Trustee may, after notice to the Authority, and upon the written request of the Owners of not less than
25% of the Bond Obligation with respect to which such Event of Default has happened, shall, proceed to protect and enforce its
rights and the rights of the Owners under applicable law or the Current Resolution. Pursuant to the Act, in the event that the
Authority shall default in the payment of principal of or interest on any issue of the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds and such
default shall otherwise continue for 30 days or in the event that the Authority shall fail to comply with the provisions of the
Current Resolution, the Owners of 25% in aggregate principal amount of such issue of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds may
appoint a trustee to represent the Owners of such issue of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, and such trustee may, and upon
written request of the Owners of 25% in aggregate principal amount of such issue of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds shall, in its
name declare all such issue of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds due and payable.

Upon the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default, the Trustee may, after notice to the Authority, and upon
the written request of the Owners of not less than 25% of the Bond Obligation, shall, proceed to protect and enforce its rights
and the rights of the Owners under applicable law or the Current Resolution as described in the prior paragraph.

No Owner shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcement of any
provision of the Current Resolution or for the execution of any trust thereunder or for any other remedy thereunder, unless (i)
(a) such Owner previously shall have given to the Authority and the Trustee written notice of the Event of Default on account of
which such suit, action or proceeding is to be instituted, (b) after the occurrence of such Event of Default, written request shall
have been made of the Trustee to institute such suit, action or proceeding by the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent
(25%) of the Bond Obligation or, if such Event of Default is an Event of Default described in clause (i) in the prior section
entitled “Events of Default,” by the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the Bond Obligation with respect to
which such Event of Default has happened, and there shall have been offered to the Trustee security and indemnity satisfactory
to it against the costs and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and (c) the Trustee shall have refused or neglected to
comply with such request within a reasonable time, or (ii) (a) such Owner previously shall have obtained the written consent of
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the Trustee to the institution of such suit, action or proceeding, and (b) such suit, action or proceeding is brought for the ratable
benefit of all Owners subject to the provisions of the Current Resolution. No Owner shall have any right in any manner
whatever by his action to affect, disturb or prejudice the pledge of Assets under the Current Resolution, or, except in the
manner and on the conditions described in this paragraph, to enforce any right or duty under the Current Resolution.

However, nothing in the Current Resolution shall affect or impair the right of any Owner to enforce the payment of any
Bond Amount due such Owner.

In any action, suit or other proceeding by the Trustee, the fees and expenses of the Trustee and its counsel allowed by
a court of competent jurisdiction, shall be a first lien on the Assets.

All Assets collected by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the Current Resolution described in this “Remedies”
section shall, unless otherwise directed by a court of competent jurisdiction, be held in trust by the Trustee for the benefit of
the Owners, and shall be applied in a manner determined by the Trustee to comply with the terms of the Current Resolution.

In the event that the Assets held by the Authority or Trustee shall be insufficient for the payment of Bond Amounts as
such become due and payable, such Assets shall be applied to the payment to the Owners entitled thereto of all Bond Amounts
which shall have become due and payable, ratably, according to the amounts due and payable, without any discrimination or
preference unless otherwise expressly provided in or determined pursuant to the Current Resolution.

No remedy by the terms of the Current Resolution conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to Owners is intended
to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute, except as provided in the Current
Resolution.

In the case of an Event of Default, the Owners of a majority of the Bond Obligation, shall have the right, subject to the
provisions of the Current Resolution, by an instrument in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time,
method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power
conferred upon the Trustee; provided, however, that the Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction if
the Trustee shall be advised by counsel that the action or proceeding so directed may not lawfully be taken, or if the Trustee in
good faith shall determine that the action or proceeding so directed would involve the Trustee in personal liability or be unjustly
prejudicial to Owners not parties to such direction.

Record Dates

The Trustee shall establish such Record Date(s), which the Authority may require to be subject to its prior approval,
for the purposes of determining the Owner of any Commonwealth Mortgage Bond or Bond Amount or determining the Owners
who are eligible to give their consent or who are to receive notices of certain events under the Current Resolution or who may
exercise certain rights under the Current Resolution.

Registration

The Authority and the Trustee may deem and treat the party in whose name any Commonwealth Mortgage Bond shall
be registered upon the Registration Books on an applicable Record Date as the absolute Owner of such Commonwealth
Mortgage Bond, whether such Commonwealth Mortgage Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of
any Bond Amount due and payable during the time period such person is the Owner of said Commonwealth Mortgage Bond,
and for all other purposes, and all such payments so made to any such Owner or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to
satisfy and discharge the liability with respect to such Commonwealth Mortgage Bond to the extent of the Bond Amount(s) so
paid, and neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Law Applicable

The laws of the Commonwealth shall be applicable to the interpretation and construction of the Current Resolution,
except to the extent that the laws of another jurisdiction are determined in or pursuant to the applicable Written
Determinations or Prior Written Determinations to be applicable.

Effect of Restated Bond Resolution on Bonds Outstanding on Effective Date

Except as specifically set forth in the Restated Bond Resolution, nothing contained therein shall modify, supersede or
otherwise affect the terms of the Series Resolutions or the terms of the Prior Written Determinations. Further, notwithstanding
anything in the Restated Bond Resolution to the contrary, Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds issued under the 1986 Amended
Resolution shall be subject to redemption as provided in the 1986 Amended Resolution, the Series Resolutions and the Prior
Written Determinations originally applicable to such Bonds.

However, the Restated Bond Resolution provides that:
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1. All funds and accounts established under or pursuant to the Series Resolutions or the Prior Written
Determinations shall be governed by the terms of the Restated Bond Resolution and shall not be subject to the terms
of the Series Resolutions and the Prior Written Determinations;

2. All references in the Series Resolutions and the Prior Written Determinations to the tax covenant in the
1986 Amended Resolution or to the “Tax Covenant” as defined in the Series Resolutions shall be deemed to refer to the
Tax Covenant as set forth in the Restated Bond Resolution;

3. The Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement specified in each Series Resolution or each Prior Written
Determinations shall be $0; and

4. The Mortgage Loans which are Assets under the Restated Bond Resolution shall be governed by the
provisions of the Restated Bond Resolution and shall not be subject to the covenants, requirements, restrictions, limits
and other provisions relating thereto in the Series Resolutions and the Prior Written Determinations, except as
required to comply with the Tax Covenant in the Restated Bond Resolution.

Notwithstanding the foregoing exceptions, the covenants of the Authority in such Prior Written Determinations to
deposit into Taxable Revenue Accounts (as established pursuant to the Series Resolutions) (i) funds in amounts equal to the
outstanding principal balances of any Mortgage Loans that are delinquent by four consecutive monthly payments or are
restructured by having delinquent payments added to their outstanding principal balances and (ii) proceeds from the purchase
by financial institutions of Mortgage Loans in the event of any material breach of any of their representations or warranties to
the Authority with respect to such Mortgage Loans shall remain in full force and effect, provided that the Authority may deposit
such funds and proceeds in any other fund and account that is to be used for the payment of principal and interest on the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds that financed such Mortgage Loans.

The 1986 Amended Resolution established the Revenue Fund and a Bond Payment Fund, and the Series Resolutions
and Prior Written Determinations established other accounts in connection with the issuance of Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds. The Authority maintains the Revenue Fund in accordance with the terms of the Restated Bond Resolution and, as
permitted by the Restated Bond Resolution, no longer maintains the Bond Payment Fund or the accounts established by the
Series Resolutions or Prior Written Determinations. However, in order to comply with the terms of the 1986 Amended
Resolution governing the special redemption of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds issued pursuant to the Series Resolutions or
Prior Written Determinations, the Authority is required by the Restated Bond Resolution to establish and comply with
accounting practices and procedures that will ensure that any special redemptions of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds issued
under the Series Resolutions or Prior Written Determinations shall be effected in the same or lesser amount and on the same or
later date as could have been effected if such Funds and Accounts had been maintained.

TAX MATTERS
Federal Taxes

The Offered Bonds are Taxable Bonds; therefore, interest on the Offered Bonds is included in gross income for federal
income tax purposes pursuant to the Code.

The following discussion is a brief summary of certain United States federal income tax consequences of the
acquisition, ownership and disposition of Offered Bonds by original purchasers of the Offered Bonds who are “U.S. Owners”, as
defined herein. This summary (i) is based on the Code, Treasury Regulations, revenue rulings and court decisions, all as
currently in effect and all subject to change at any time, possibly with retroactive effect; (ii) assumes that the Offered Bonds will
be held as “capital assets”; and (iii) does not discuss all of the United States federal income tax consequences that may be
relevant to an owner in light of its particular circumstances or to owners subject to special rules, such as insurance companies,
financial institutions, tax-exempt organizations, dealers in securities or foreign currencies, persons holding the Offered Bonds
as a position in a “hedge” or “straddle”, owners whose functional currency (as defined in Section 985 of the Code) is not the
United States dollar, owners who acquire Offered Bonds in the secondary market, or individuals, estates and trusts subject to
the tax on unearned income imposed by Section 1411 of the Code. Owners of Offered Bonds should consult with their own tax
advisors concerning the United States federal income tax and other consequences with respect to the acquisition, ownership
and disposition of Offered Bonds as well as any tax consequences that may arise under the laws of any state, local or foreign tax
jurisdiction.

Disposition and Defeasance. Generally, upon the sale, exchange, redemption, or other disposition (which would
include a legal defeasance) of an Offered Bond, an owner generally will recognize taxable gain or loss in an amount equal to the
difference between the amount realized (other than amounts attributable to accrued interest not previously includable in
income) and such owner’s adjusted tax basis in the Offered Bond. The Authority may cause the deposit of moneys or securities
in escrow in such amount and manner as to cause the Offered Bonds to be deemed to be no longer outstanding under the
Resolution (a “defeasance”). (See “Defeasance” in “Summary of Certain Provisions of the Current Resolution”). For federal
income tax purposes, such defeasance could result in a deemed exchange under Section 1001 of the Code and a recognition by
such owner of taxable income or loss, without any corresponding receipt of moneys. In addition, the character and timing of
receipt of payments on the Offered Bonds subsequent to any such defeasance could also be affected. The Written
Determinations for the Offered Bonds will prohibit the defeasance of the Offered Bonds.
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Backup Withholding and Information Reporting. In general, information reporting requirements will apply to non-
corporate owners with respect to payments of principal, payments of interest, and the accrual of original issue discount and the
proceeds of the sale of an Offered Bond before maturity within the United States. Backup withholding may apply to owners of
Offered Bonds under Section 3406 of the Code. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules from a payment to a
beneficial owner, and which constitutes over-withholding, would be allowed as a refund or a credit against such beneficial
owner’s United States federal income tax provided the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service (the
“IRS”).

U.S. Owners. The term “U.S. Owner” means a beneficial owner of an Offered Bond that is: (i) a citizen or resident of
the United States, (ii) a corporation, partnership or other entity created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or
of any political subdivision thereof, (iii) an estate the income of which is subject to United States federal income taxation
regardless of its source or (iv) a trust whose administration is subject to the primary jurisdiction of a United States court and
which has one or more United States fiduciaries who have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

Original Issue Discount. In general, if Original Issue Discount (“OID”) is greater than a statutorily defined de minimis
amount, an owner of an Offered Bond must include in federal gross income (for each day of the taxable year, or portion of the
taxable year, in which such owner holds such Offered Bond) the daily portion of OID, as it accrues (generally on a constant
yield method) and regardless of the owner’s method of accounting. “OID” is the excess of (i) the “stated redemption price at
maturity” over (ii) the “issue price”. For purposes of the foregoing: “issue price” means the first price at which a substantial
amount of the Offered Bond is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in
the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers); “stated redemption price at maturity” means the sum of all
payments, other than “qualified stated interest”, provided by such Offered Bond; “qualified stated interest” is stated interest that
is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt instruments of the issuer) at least annually at a single fixed rate;
and “de minimis amount” is an amount equal to 0.25 percent of the Offered Bond’s stated redemption price at maturity
multiplied by the number of complete years to its maturity. An owner may irrevocably elect to include in gross income all
interest that accrues on an Offered Bond using the constant-yield method, subject to certain modifications.

Bond Premium. In general, if an Offered Bond is originally issued for an issue price (excluding accrued interest) that
reflects a premium over the sum of all amounts payable on the Offered Bond other than “qualified stated interest” (a “Taxable
Premium Bond”), that Taxable Premium Bond will be subject to Section 171 of the Code, relating to bond premium. In general,
if the owner of a Taxable Premium Bond elects to amortize the premium as “amortizable bond premium” over the remaining
term of the Taxable Premium Bond, determined based on constant yield principles (in certain cases involving a Taxable
Premium Bond callable prior to its stated maturity date, the amortization period and yield may be required to be determined on
the basis of an earlier call date that results in the highest yield on such bond), the amortizable premium is treated as an offset to
interest income; the owner will make a corresponding adjustment to the owner’s basis in the Taxable Premium Bond. Any such
election is generally irrevocable and applies to all debt instruments of the owner (other than tax-exempt bonds) held at the
beginning of the first taxable year to which the election applies and to all such debt instruments thereafter acquired. Under
certain circumstances, the owner of a Taxable Premium Bond may realize a taxable gain upon disposition of the Taxable
Premium Bond even though it is sold or redeemed for an amount less than or equal to the owner's original acquisition cost.

Virginia Taxes

Under the Act, income on the Offered Bonds, including any profit made on the sale thereof, is not included in taxable
income for purposes of income taxation by the Commonwealth and by the municipalities and all other political subdivisions of
the Commonwealth. All potential purchasers should consult their tax advisors regarding tax treatment of the Offered Bonds by
the Commonwealth.

Proposed Legislation and Other Matters

Tax legislation, administrative actions taken by tax authorities, or court decisions, whether at the federal or state level,
may adversely affect the tax exempt status of interest on the Offered Bonds under state law and could affect the market price or
marketability of the Offered Bonds.

Prospective purchasers of the Offered Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the foregoing matters.
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Authority has covenanted for the benefit of the Holders and the Beneficial Owners, as each term is defined in the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement, of the Offered Bonds, to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to
the Authority by not later than 180 days following the end of the Authority’s Fiscal Year (the “Annual Financial Information™),
and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events. See Appendix H for a Summary of the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, including defined terms. The Continuing Disclosure Agreement provides that the Annual Financial
Information and notices of such events shall be filed by the Authority in the manner prescribed by the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) which currently requires filing with the Electronic Municipal Markets Access (“EMMA”)
system established by the MSRB. EMMA'’s website address currently is www.emma.msrb.org.
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The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Financial Information or the required event
notices and other terms of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement are summarized in Appendix H. These covenants have been
made in order to assist the Underwriters to comply with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Rule”).

The rights of the Trustee and of Owners, including Beneficial Owners, to enforce the provisions of the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement are limited as described more fully in “Enforcement” in Appendix H and any failure by the Authority to
comply with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement will not constitute an Event of Default under the Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds Resolution.

The Continuing Disclosure Agreement requires the Authority to provide only limited information at specified times and
may not require the disclosure of all information necessary for determining the value of the Offered Bonds.

The Authority periodically compiles certain information on its bond and mortgage loan programs which is available on
its website, www.vhda.com. Although the Authority presently intends to continue to compile such information and make it
available on its website, it is not obligated to do so pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to the authorization and validity of the Offered Bonds will be the subject of the approving
opinion (the “Approving Opinion”) of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the Authority.
The proposed form of Approving Opinion is attached hereto as Appendix J. Bond Counsel has not been engaged to investigate
the financial resources of the Authority or its ability to provide for payment of the Offered Bonds, and the Approving Opinion
will not make any statement as to such matters or as to the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement generally. In
addition, certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Kutak Rock LLP, counsel to the Underwriters, in its
opinion to be delivered on the date of delivery of the Offered Bonds. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Authority by
its General Counsel, Paul M. Brennan, Esquire.

UNDERWRITING

The Offered Bonds are being purchased by the underwriters listed on the front cover of this Official Statement as
delivered in its final form (the “Underwriters”). The Underwriters have agreed, pursuant to certain terms and conditions with
respect to the Offered Bonds, to purchase at the price set forth on the cover hereof all of the Offered Bonds if any are
purchased. In connection with said purchase and underwriting, the Underwriters are to receive a fee of $730,922.29.

The information regarding initial public offering price or yield set forth on the front cover of this Official Statement as
delivered in its final form has been provided by the Underwriters. Said initial public offering price or yield may be changed by
the Underwriters with respect to the Offered Bonds. In connection with the offering of the Offered Bonds, the Underwriters
may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the Offered Bonds, including transactions to
(i) overallot in arranging the sales of the Offered Bonds and (ii) make purchases and sales of the Offered Bonds, for long or
short account, on a when-issued or other basis at such prices, in such amounts and such manner as the Underwriters may
determine. Such actions by the Underwriters, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

The information in the following paragraphs has been provided by the Underwriters.

The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities,
which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, investment management, principal investment,
hedging, financing and brokerage services. The Underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed,
and may in the future perform, various investment banking services for the Authority, for which they received or will receive
customary fees and expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or
hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities, which may
include credit default swaps) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of
their customers and may at any time hold long and short positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment and
securities activities may involve securities and instruments of the Authority.

The Underwriters and their respective affiliates may also communicate independent investment recommendations,
market color or trading ideas and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such assets, securities or
instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they should acquire, long and/or short positions in such
assets, securities and instruments.

Wells Fargo Securities is the trade name for certain securities-related capital markets and investment banking services
of Wells Fargo & Company and its subsidiaries, including Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (“WFBNA”). WFBNA, one of
the underwriters of the Offered Bonds, has entered into an agreement (the “Distribution Agreement”) with its affiliate, Wells
Fargo Advisors, LLC (“WFA”), for the distribution of certain municipal securities offerings, including the Offered Bonds.
Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, WFBNA will share a portion of its underwriting or remarketing agent compensation, as
applicable, with respect to the Offered Bonds with WFA. WFBNA also utilizes the distribution capabilities of its affiliate, Wells

23



Fargo Securities, LLC (“WFSLLC”), for the distribution of municipal securities offerings, including the Offered Bonds. In
connection with utilizing the distribution capabilities of WFSLLC, WFBNA pays a portion of WFSLLC’s expenses based on its
municipal securities transactions. WFBNA, WFSLLC, and WFA are each wholly-owned subsidiaries of Wells Fargo & Company.

RATINGS

As noted on the front cover, the Offered Bonds received long-term ratings of “Aaa” from Moody’s and “AAA” from
Standard & Poor’s. It is a condition to the Underwriters’ obligation to purchase the Offered Bonds that Moody’s and Standard &
Poor’s shall have assigned such long term ratings and that neither rating agency shall have lowered, withdrawn or suspended its
rating prior to the Date of Delivery.

An explanation of the significance of these ratings and the ratings noted in “General Obligations of the Authority” in
“Security” may be obtained from the rating agencies. The ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Offered
Bonds and should be evaluated independently. There is no assurance that the ratings will be maintained for any period of time
or that the ratings may not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances so
warrant. Circumstances that could cause a downgrade include, but are not limited to, adverse economic conditions and adverse
changes to the Authority’s financial condition. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of a rating could have an adverse
effect on the market price of the Offered Bonds.

LITIGATION

No litigation of any nature as of the date hereof is pending against the Authority or, to the Authority’s knowledge,
threatened against the Authority (i) to restrain or enjoin the issuance and delivery of any of the Offered Bonds, (ii) to in any
material way restrain or enjoin the collection and application of Assets pledged pursuant to the Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds Resolution, (iii) in any way contesting or affecting any authority for the issuance or validity of the Offered Bonds or the
validity of the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution, (iv) in any material way contesting the existence or powers of the
Authority, or (v) in any material way contesting or affecting the Assets pledged for the payment of the Offered Bonds.

LEGAL INVESTMENT

The Act provides, in part, that the Authority’s bonds (which would include Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds) are legal
investments in which all public officers and public bodies of the Commonwealth and its political subdivisions, all municipalities
and municipal subdivisions in the Commonwealth, and all insurance companies and associations, banks, bankers, banking
associations, trust companies, savings banks, savings associations, savings and loan associations, building and loan
associations, investment companies, administrators, guardians, executors, trustees and other fiduciaries in the Commonwealth
may properly and legally invest funds, including capital, in their control or belonging to them. The Act further provides that the
Authority’s bonds are also securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by all public officers and
bodies of the Commonwealth or any agencies or political subdivisions of the Commonwealth and all municipalities and public
corporations in the Commonwealth for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds or other obligations of the Commonwealth
is now or may hereafter be authorized by law. However, such entities or persons may be subject to other laws or legal
restrictions limiting investment of funds or the types of securities that may be deposited or received for particular purposes.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Authority has furnished all information in this Official Statement relating to the Authority. The financial
statements of the Authority in Appendix A as of June 30, 2015 and for the year then ended have been examined by KPMG LLP,
independent certified public accountants, to the extent set forth in their report, without further review to the date hereof.
KPMG LLP, the Authority’s independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform and has not performed, since the date of its
reports included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in those reports. KPMG LLP also has not
performed any procedures relating to this Official Statement.

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not expressly so
stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement contains statements which, to the extent
they are not recitations of historical fact, constitute “forward looking statements.” In this respect, the words “estimate,”
“project,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward looking statements.
A number of important factors affecting the Authority could cause actual results to differ materially from those stated in the
forward looking statements. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the Authority
and the Owners of the Offered Bonds being offered hereby.

The distribution of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the Authority.

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
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PART II - SUMMARY OF PROGRAMS
THE SINGLE FAMILY PROGRAMS

The information that follows is provided to explain the Authority’s current programs of making or purchasing single
family mortgage loans pursuant to the Authority’s bond resolutions (including the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution),
from net assets and through the issuance of Government National Mortgage Association (“Ginnie Mae”) and Federal National
Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”) securities or the sales of single family mortgage loans to Fannie Mae, all as described
herein. The types, terms, security (including mortgage insurance), origination procedures, underwriting criteria and servicing
(including loan modifications) of and for the Authority’s single family mortgage loans are generally as described herein. Also
described are the Authority’s obligation to make timely payment of principal and interest on the single family mortgage loans
included in the pools of such loans represented by Ginnie Mae securities for which the Authority acts as servicer, the
Authority’s obligation to repurchase certain single family mortgage loans included in the pools represented by Fannie Mae
securities, and the Authority’s potential liability for its failure to deliver Ginnie Mae or Fannie Mae securities to purchasers. This
information should not be considered to be comprehensive or definitive. The limits, amounts of financial reserves, rules and
criteria described herein are not required by any bond resolution and at any time may be modified, changed or waived by the
Authority, in whole or in part, and with respect to any particular single family mortgage loan.

General Description of Single Family Programs

Under its single family programs, the Authority has made and purchased single family mortgage loans for financing
and/or refinancing (including the refinancing of any existing single family mortgage loan and any equity in the single family
residential housing in excess of any such existing single family mortgage loan) the ownership or rehabilitation, or ownership
and rehabilitation, of owner-occupied single family residential housing consisting of not more than four dwelling units,
including condominium units, intended for occupancy by persons and households of low and moderate income. As discussed
below, effective April 1, 2008, the Authority suspended the financing of certain rehabilitation and improvement costs. Also,
effective April 1, 2008, the Authority suspended its then existing program for the financing of single family mortgage loans that
refinance single family homes; however, the Authority currently refinances single family mortgage loans as discussed in “Fannie
Mae Financing” and “FHA and VA Streamline Refinance Programs” below and from July 1, 2013 through September 30, 2013
offered refinancing of Interest Only Mortgage Loans as discussed in “Single Family Mortgage Loan Terms” below.

Summary of Types of Single Family Mortgage Loans

Below is a summary of each of the types of single family mortgage loans financed by the Authority under the single
family program as more fully described herein.

Type of Single Family Mortgage Loan Description
First Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which is secured by a lien which is not

subordinate to a lien for another mortgage loan. All single family mortgage loans,
except Second Mortgage Loans, are First Mortgage Loans. First Mortgage Loans
may be Insured Mortgage Loans or Self-Insured Mortgage Loans.

Second Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which is secured by a lien which is subordinate to
a lien securing another single family mortgage loan (including an Authority
single family mortgage loan). FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans, Homebuyer
Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans and Home Stride Second Mortgage Loans are
Second Mortgage Loans. All Second Mortgage Loans are Self-Insured Mortgage
Loans.

FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loan A Second Mortgage Loan which is originated in conjunction with a FHA insured
First Mortgage Loan.

Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loan A Second Mortgage Loan which is originated in conjunction with a FHA insured
First Mortgage Loan and which has a 0% interest rate and no monthly payments
for the initial 12 months.

Home Stride Second Mortgage Loan A Second Mortgage Loan, in the maximum principal amount of $25,000, which is
originated in conjunction with an Authority financed First Mortgage Loan in
certain high cost areas and which has a 0% interest rate and no monthly
payments for the initial three years.

Insured Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which is insured or guaranteed by a federal
government entity or private mortgage insurance company.
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Type of Single Family Mortgage Loan Description

Self-Insured Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which is not insured or guaranteed by a federal
government entity or private mortgage insurance company. All Interest Only
Mortgage Loans (and the single family mortgage loans that refinance such
Interest Only Mortgage Loans), FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans, Homebuyer
Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans, and Home Stride Second Mortgage Loans are
Self-Insured Mortgage Loans. Any Fannie Mae Mortgage Loan (as defined below
in “Fannie Mae Financing”) that is purchased by the Authority but has not yet
been securitized through Fannie Mae or is repurchased by the Authority
pursuant to the Authority’s agreement with Fannie Mae is or will be a Self-
Insured Mortgage Loan. The Authority has previously financed other single
family mortgage loans which are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans. The Authority has
previously financed and currently finances single family mortgage loans having a
loan to value ratio at or below 80% without requiring that the loan be insured or
guaranteed.

Level Payment Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which has substantially equal monthly principal
and interest payments for the entire or remaining term of the mortgage loan.
Level Payment Mortgage Loans include single family mortgage loans that were
originally Non-Level Payment Mortgage Loans but which now have substantially
equal principal and interest payment schedules for their remaining terms.

Non-Level Payment Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which has future monthly principal and interest
payments which are not substantially equal. Interest Only Mortgage Loans, Step
Rate Mortgage Loans, Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans and Home
Stride Second Mortgage Loans are Non-Level Payment Mortgage Loans on the
date of their origination.

Interest Only Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which has scheduled interest only payments for
the initial seven years and is thereafter a Level Payment Mortgage Loan for the
remaining 23 years of the loan term. The interest rate is fixed for the life of the
mortgage loan. Interest Only Mortgage Loans are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans.

Step Rate Mortgage Loan A single family mortgage loan which has an interest rate that increases by 1.0%
at the end of the first year and by another 1.0% at the end of the second year and
remains at such interest rate for the balance of the term of the mortgage loan.
Typically, the initial interest rate was set at 1.50% below the interest rate on the
Authority’s standard Level Payment Mortgage Loans.

The above descriptions are qualified by the more detailed descriptions herein of the types of single family mortgage loans.
Single Family First Mortgage Loans Currently and Previously Financed

The Authority has used and currently uses proceeds of its bonds and other funds (such as net assets) to finance First
Mortgage Loans that finance single family homes in amounts not to exceed (i) 97% of the lesser of (a) the sales price (if
applicable) or (b) the appraised value of the single family homes or (ii) in the case of single family mortgage loans insured or
guaranteed by the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”), Veterans Administration or Department of Veterans’ Affairs (“VA”)
or Rural Development (“RD”), such amounts (which may exceed 100% of the sales price or appraised value) as are permitted by
FHA, VA or RD. The Authority has adopted changes to its regulations that permit the Authority to establish a lower percentage
to be financed by its First Mortgage Loans if necessary to protect its financial interests or enable it to effectively and efficiently
allocate its current and anticipated financial resources. The Authority has not established any such lower percentages but can
give no assurance that it will not do so in the future. The Authority has previously financed First Mortgage Loans in amounts not
to exceed 104% of the lesser of (a) or (b) above. See “FHA and VA Streamline Refinance Programs” below for a discussion of
FHA insured and VA guaranteed First Mortgage Loans that may be financed by the Authority in amounts in excess of the above
described limits. See also “Single Family Mortgage Loan Terms” below for a discussion of the Authority’s program that offered
the refinancing of its Interest Only Mortgage Loans in amounts that could exceed the above described limits.

Single Family Second Mortgage Loans Currently and Previously Financed

The Authority has used and currently uses proceeds of its bonds and other funds (such as net assets) to finance
Second Mortgage Loans. Second Mortgage Loans are not insured or guaranteed by the federal government or private mortgage
insurance companies. One type of Second Mortgage Loan provides financing, in conjunction with the origination of an Authority
financed First Mortgage Loan insured by FHA, to fund part of the mortgagors’ down payment and closing costs not financed by
the related FHA insured First Mortgage Loan. Such type of Second Mortgage Loan is referred to as the “FHA Plus Second
Mortgage Loan.” Each FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loan may, when combined with the related FHA insured First Mortgage
Loan, be in a principal amount not to exceed 103.25% of the lesser of the sales price or the appraised value of the single family
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home and is secured by the lien of a deed of trust subordinate to the lien of the deed of trust securing the FHA insured First
Mortgage Loan. The maximum principal amount described in the preceding sentence changes whenever FHA changes the
maximum up-front mortgage insurance premium that FHA allows the FHA insured First Mortgage Loan to fund. The term and
the interest rate on the FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans are the same as those on the related FHA insured First Mortgage
Loan. Pursuant to changes to the Authority’s regulations, FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans are permitted to be financed in
conjunction with the origination of a first mortgage loan financed by a lender other than the Authority. The Authority has not
financed, and has no plans to finance such FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans, but no assurance can be given that the Authority
will not commence the financing of FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans in conjunction with such other lenders’ first mortgage
loans.

Effective June 2009, the Authority began originating another type of Second Mortgage Loan which provided financing,
in conjunction with the origination of a First Mortgage Loan insured by FHA and in anticipation of the eligibility of the
mortgagors for the federal first-time homebuyer tax credit, to fund part of the mortgagors’ down payment and closing costs not
financed by the related FHA insured First Mortgage Loan. Such type of Second Mortgage Loan is referred to as the “Homebuyer
Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loan.” Each Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loan could, when combined with the related FHA
insured First Mortgage Loan, be in a principal amount not to exceed 104% of the lesser of the sales price or the appraised value
of the residence and is secured by the lien of a deed of trust subordinate to the lien of the deed of trust securing the FHA
insured First Mortgage Loan. Each Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loan bore a 0% interest rate and did not require any
monthly payments for the initial 12 months, after which the term and interest rate were the same as those on the related FHA
insured First Mortgage Loan. Because of the expiration of the federal first-time homebuyer tax credit, the Authority suspended
originating Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans on September 30, 2010 and, in the case of such loans to certain qualified
members of the military, on January 31, 2011; however, no assurance can be given whether the Authority will recommence the
financing of such Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans.

Prior to July 1, 2008, the Authority also financed another type of Second Mortgage Loan which was a Subsidized
Mortgage Loan (as defined in “General Fund and Other Net Assets” in “General Information About The Authority”), was only
made in conjunction with a First Mortgage Loan, and had a maximum principal amount of $25,000. Such type of Second
Mortgage Loan was referred to as the “Home Stride Second Mortgage Loan.” Home Stride Second Mortgage Loans were
available only in certain high costs areas identified by the Authority. For the initial three years, the Home Stride Second
Mortgage Loans had a 0% interest rate and no monthly payments were due during such three years. Following the initial three
years, the interest rate changed to 5% and monthly payments commenced at a level that will fully amortize such mortgage loan
over its remaining 27 years. The combined amounts of the First Mortgage Loan and the Home Stride Second Mortgage Loan
typically exceeded both the sales price and the appraised value of the single family home. Effective July 1, 2008, the Authority
suspended the financing of Home Stride Second Mortgage Loans. No assurance can be given whether the Authority will
recommence the financing of Home Stride Second Mortgage Loans.

Other Single Family Mortgage Loan Financings Prior to April 1, 2008

Prior to April 1, 2008, the Authority financed mortgage loans that refinanced single family homes. In the case of such
mortgage loans, the loan amount (plus all subordinate debt secured by the property after closing of such mortgage loan) could
not exceed the lesser of the then current appraised value of the single family home or the sum of (i) the payoff (if any) of the
applicant’s or applicants’ existing first mortgage loan; (ii) the payoff (if any) of applicant’s or applicants’ subordinate mortgage
loans (provided such loans did not permit periodic advancement of loan proceeds) closed for not less than 12 months preceding
the date of the closing of the Authority mortgage loan and the payoff (if any) of applicant’s or applicants’ home equity line of
credit loan (i.e. loan which permitted periodic advancement of proceeds) with no more than $2,000 in advances within the 12
months preceding the date of the closing of the Authority mortgage loan, excluding funds used for the purpose of documented
improvements to the residence; (iii) the cost of improvements which were performed to the property after the closing of the
Authority mortgage loan and for which loan proceeds were escrowed at closing; (iv) closing costs, discount points, fees and
escrows payable in connection with the origination and closing of the Authority mortgage loan; and (v) up to $500 to be payable
to the applicant or applicants at closing. In addition, if the applicant or applicants requested to receive loan proceeds at closing
in excess of the limit set forth in (v) above, the loan amount (plus all subordinate debt secured by the property after closing of
the Authority mortgage loan) could be increased to finance such excess cash up to a loan amount not in excess of 95% of the
current appraised value. If the applicant’s or applicants’ existing mortgage loan to be refinanced was an Authority mortgage
loan, the applicant or applicants could request a streamlined refinance of such existing mortgage loan in which the Authority
required less underwriting documentation (e.g. verification of employment) and charged reduced points and fees. For such
streamlined refinances, the loan amount (plus all subordinate debt secured by the property after closing of the new Authority
mortgage loan) was limited to (i) the payoff of the existing mortgage loan and (ii) required closing costs, discount points, fees
and escrows payable in connection with the origination and closing of the new Authority mortgage loan; provided, however,
that the loan amount (plus all subordinate debt to be secured by the property after closing of the new Authority mortgage loan)
could not exceed 100% of the greatest of original appraised value, current real estate tax assessment, current appraised value or
other alternative valuation method approved by the Authority. Such mortgage loans are First Mortgage Loans. Effective April 1,
2008, the Authority suspended the financing of mortgage loans that refinance single family homes as described above. No
assurance can be given whether the Authority will recommence the financing of any such loans (see “Fannie Mae Financing”
below for a discussion of the single family mortgage loans that are being financed through Fannie Mae, including mortgage
loans that refinance existing single family mortgage loans; see “FHA and VA Streamline Refinance Programs” below for a
discussion of the refinancings by the Authority of its FHA insured and VA guaranteed single family mortgage loans; and see
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“Single Family Mortgage Loan Terms” below for a discussion of the refinancing by the Authority of its Interest Only Mortgage
Loans).

Prior to April 1, 2008, the Authority also financed single family mortgage loans that included (a) costs of rehabilitation
and improvements completed subsequent to the closing of such mortgage loan, subject to a maximum loan-to-value ratio of
105% of the lesser of the sales price (in the case of mortgage loans that financed the acquisition of a single family home) or
appraised value and (b) costs of retrofitting or adding accessibility features to accommodate the needs of disabled occupants
up to an additional 5% of the lesser of the sales price (in the case of mortgage loans that financed the acquisition of a single
family home) or the appraised value. The Authority would also finance the costs of rehabilitation not in excess of 50% of the as-
completed appraised value, provided that the principal amount of the single family mortgage loan did not exceed 100% of (a) in
the case of a mortgage loan that financed the acquisition of a single family home, the lesser of the sum of the sales price plus the
rehabilitation costs or the as-completed appraised value or (b) in the case of a mortgage loan that refinanced a single family
home, the lesser of the sum of the outstanding principal balance thereof plus the rehabilitation costs or the as-completed
appraised value. The single family mortgage loans that include the financing of costs described in this paragraph are First
Mortgage Loans and are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans. Effective April 1, 2008, the Authority suspended the financing of the
single family mortgage loans that include the financing of the above described costs. No assurance can be given whether the
Authority will recommence the financing of such costs.

Prior to April 1, 2008, the Authority also financed Step Rate Mortgage Loans which bore interest rates approximately
one and one-half percentage points below the customary fixed rates and such initial interest rate increased by one percentage
point at the end of the first year of the Step Rate Mortgage Loan and by another percentage point at the end of the second year
of the Step Rate Mortgage Loan and remain at that rate for the remaining life of the Step Rate Mortgage Loan. Effective April 1,
2008, the Authority suspended the financing of such Step Rate Mortgage Loans. No assurance can be given whether the
Authority will recommence the financing of such Step Rate Mortgage Loans.

In September 2004, the Authority implemented a program (which it suspended on April 1, 2008) to finance single
family mortgage loans on which interest only will be payable for seven years and which will thereafter be fully amortized over
the remainder of the 30-year term of the mortgage loan (each an “Interest Only Mortgage Loan”). The interest rate on each such
Interest Only Mortgage Loan is fixed during its term. The maximum principal amount of each Interest Only Mortgage Loan at
the time of origination was 100% of the lesser of the sales price or the appraised value of the single family home. Interest Only
Mortgage Loans are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans. No assurance can be given whether the Authority will recommence the
financing of Interest Only Mortgage Loans.

Single Family Mortgage Loan Terms

Substantially all existing single family mortgage loans have, and future single family mortgage loans are expected to
have, original terms of approximately 30 years and bear, or are expected to bear, interest at fixed rates. Exceptions include the
Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans, the Home Stride Second Mortgage Loans, the Step Rate Mortgage Loans and the
Interest Only Mortgage Loans, none of which is currently offered by the Authority. For a discussion of these loans, see “Single
Family Second Mortgage Loans Currently and Previously Financed” and “Other Single Family Financings Prior to April 1, 2008”
above. For data on the outstanding balances for all single family mortgage loans, including those described above, see Appendix
B. As shown in Appendix B, the mortgage loans in the Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans program, the Home Stride
Second Mortgage Loans program, the Step Rate Mortgage Loans program and the Interest Only Mortgage Loans program are
counted in the Level Payment Mortgage Loans category under the applicable resolution when they convert to fixed rates and
level payments. All of the Non-Level Payment Mortgage Loans are Commonwealth Bonds Mortgage Loans and they constitute
less than one half of one percent of the Commonwealth Bonds Mortgage Loans.

The Authority made restructuring offers to all mortgagors of Interest Only Mortgage Loans (See “Other Single Family
Mortgage Loan Financings Prior to April 1, 2008”, above) which were scheduled to commence principal payments in 2011,
which was the first year that any Interest Only Mortgage Loans were scheduled to commence principal payments. Such
restructuring offers, if accepted by the mortgagors, modified their Interest Only Mortgage Loans and resulted in Level Payment
Mortgage Loans with new full 30 year terms or extensions of the periods during which interest only is payable. The Authority
has offered and anticipates continuing to offer, on a case-by-case basis, similar restructuring on Interest Only Mortgage Loans
that were or are scheduled to commence principal payments in the years 2012 and later. As of June 30, 2015, approximately
$43.0 million of outstanding principal balance of Interest Only Mortgage Loans which were scheduled to commence principal
payments in 2011 through 2015 had been restructured. In addition, the Authority commenced on July 1, 2013, the
implementation of a program that offered to the mortgagors of Interest Only Mortgage Loans new single family mortgage loans
that would refinance the principal balance (regardless of the loan-to-value ratio) of their Interest Only Mortgage Loans (plus an
amount not to exceed $5,000 to be applied to no more than $3,000 of closing costs and no more than two months of delinquent
monthly payments, if any) at lower fixed interest rates and for amortization terms of 30 years. Such refinancing mortgage loans
are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans. On September 30, 2013, the Authority terminated this refinancing program but can give no
assurance that it will not recommence such program in the future. The Authority funded such refinancing mortgage loans with
assets of the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution including proceeds of Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds. The
approximate outstanding principal balance (in millions of dollars and as of June 30, 2015) of remaining Interest Only Mortgage
Loans scheduled to commence principal payments are shown below by calendar year in which such principal payments will
commence (excluding those restructured into Level Payment Mortgage Loans and including those restructured with extensions
of the periods during which interest only is payable):
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Year Outstanding Principal Balance

2015 $ 04
2016 2.5
2017 and later _ b8
Total $8.7

See Appendix B for the amount of Non-Level Payment Mortgage Loans (including Interest Only Mortgage Loans and
other single family mortgage loans that were modified to provide for a period during which interest only is payable) that the
Authority has outstanding. All of the Interest Only Mortgage Loans are Commonwealth Bonds Mortgage Loans.

The Authority requires the applicant to pay, at the time of closing, between 0 and 3 points, with each point being equal
to 1% of the principal amount of the First Mortgage Loan. The number of points depends on the interest rate option selected by
the applicant (the applicants have the option of paying less or more points in exchange for having a higher or lower interest rate
on the mortgage loan). The yield that the Authority realizes on First Mortgage Loans is affected by the amount of points paid
and the rate of prepayments of such First Mortgage Loans. If the First Mortgage Loan is originated by an Originating Lender (as
defined in “Single Family Mortgage Loan Origination Procedures and Underwriting” below) and the applicant pays less than 1
point, the Authority will pay the difference between 1 point and the amount paid by the applicant to the Originating Lender so
that such Originating Lender receives the equivalent of 1 point.

Some single family mortgage loans are funded entirely from a single source of funding (e.g., proceeds of Tax-Exempt
Bonds, Taxable Bonds or net assets of the Authority) and other single family mortgage loans are funded from a combination of
such sources. Except for certain Subsidized Mortgage Loans, the interest rate (or, if multiple sources of funding, the blended
interest rate) on each single family mortgage loan is expected to be higher than the interest rate cost (or, if multiple sources of
funding, the blended interest rate costs) of the corresponding source or sources of funds. The Code imposes limits on the
interest rates that can be charged on single family mortgage loans that are funded, in whole or in part, with the proceeds of Tax-
Exempt Bonds (see Appendix D).

Security for Single Family Mortgage Loans

In addition to the requirements described above, the Authority requires every loan in the single family program to be
secured with a mortgage. The mortgages that are to secure the single family mortgage loans made or purchased by the Authority
are to be in the form of deeds of trust, in accordance with Virginia practice, and are to constitute and create first liens (except in
the case of Second Mortgage Loans that are secured by second liens) on single family residential housing.

Single Family Mortgage Loan Insurance

The Authority’s bond resolutions do not require that single family mortgage loans be insured or guaranteed. The
Authority’s program guidelines currently require that First Mortgage Loans financed, in whole or in part, with the proceeds of
Tax-Exempt Bonds and having a loan to value ratio in excess of 80% be either (i) subject to private mortgage insurance, or (ii)
insured or guaranteed by the VA, FHA, RD or other entity of the federal government. However, the Authority’s program
guidelines do not require any mortgage insurance or guaranty for (i) Interest Only Mortgage Loans or the single family mortgage
loans that have refinanced such Interest Only Mortgage Loans, (ii) single family mortgage loans financed solely with the
proceeds of Taxable Bonds (except for mortgage loans with loan to value ratios in excess of 80% that finance manufactured
housing) or Authority net assets, or (iii) Second Mortgage Loans. Such mortgage loans described in the preceding sentence that
are not insured or guaranteed are referred to herein as “Self-Insured Mortgage Loans.” The Authority’s program guidelines also
do not require any mortgage insurance or guarantee for Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans (as defined in “Fannie Mae Financing”
below). The Authority’s bond resolutions permit the Authority to modify its program guidelines with regard to mortgage
insurance at its discretion.

The federal Homeowners Protection Act of 1998 (the “1998 Act”) permits a borrower to cancel private mortgage
insurance (for which the borrower pays the premium) on the date on which the principal balance of the single family mortgage
loan is scheduled to reach 80% of the original value of the residence or on the date on which the principal balance actually
reaches 80% of the original value of the residence. The original value is the lesser of the sales price or the appraised value at the
time the single family mortgage loan transaction was consummated. In order to effect such cancellation, the borrower must
request in writing that the cancellation be initiated, must have a good payment history with respect to the mortgage loan (i.e., no
mortgage payment was, during the year beginning two years prior to cancellation, 60 or more days delinquent, and no mortgage
payment was, during the year beginning one year prior to cancellation, 30 or more days delinquent), and must satisfy any
requirements of the lender for evidence that the value of the residence has not declined below its original value and for
certification that the borrower’s equity in the residence is not encumbered by a subordinate loan. The 1998 Act further provides
for automatic termination of private mortgage insurance on the date on which the principal balance of the single family
mortgage loan is scheduled to reach 78% of the original value of the residence, or if the borrower is not then current on his
mortgage loan payments, on the date on which the borrower subsequently becomes current on such payments. These
termination and cancellation provisions do not apply to single family mortgage loans characterized as high risk loans. Even if
the private mortgage insurance is not canceled or terminated as described above, private mortgage insurance must be
terminated on the first day of the month immediately following the date that is the midpoint of the amortization period of the
mortgage loan if the mortgagor is then current on his mortgage loan payments. The 1998 Act also requires that borrowers be
provided with certain disclosures and notices regarding termination and cancellation of private mortgage insurance. The 1998
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Act applies to single family mortgage loans closed on or after July 29, 1999. The Authority provides the same right to borrowers
whose single family mortgage loans closed prior to such effective date. The Authority has also previously provided the same
rights to borrowers of FHA-insured mortgage loans, however, on February 1, 2013, FHA announced that, in the case of new
mortgage loans assigned an FHA case number after June 3, 2013, the mortgage insurance premium for FHA mortgage insurance
must continue to be collected until the earlier of the end of the mortgage term or (i) 11 years in the case of a mortgage loan
having an original loan-to-value ratio not greater than 90%, or (ii) 30 years in the case of a mortgage loan having an original loan-
to-value ratio of greater than 90%, and as a result, the Authority will not be permitting the cancellation of FHA mortgage
insurance prior to the termination of the applicable period for collection of the premium. The Authority also permits the
cancellation of mortgage insurance if the balance of the single family mortgage loans (other than FHA-insured mortgage loans
described in the preceding sentence) is equal to or less than 80%, or such lesser percentage determined by the Authority, of the
current property value, subject to the satisfaction of such criteria, requirements and conditions as the Authority may impose for
such cancellation. The Authority cannot currently predict what will be the effect, if any, on future losses incurred on single
family mortgage loans as a result of the 1998 Act or as a result of its application of the 1998 Act to mortgage loans closed prior
to July 29, 1999 or to FHA-insured single family mortgage loans (when permitted by FHA) or of the cancellation of mortgage
insurance described in the preceding sentence.

Pursuant to the Authority’s regulations, the Authority may impose minimum ratings on the issuers of private mortgage
insurance policies; however, no assurance can be given whether the Authority will commence requiring such ratings.

The Authority has previously financed and currently finances Self-Insured Mortgage Loans having a loan-to-value ratio
at or below 80%. Prior to April 1, 2008, the Authority also financed Self-Insured Mortgage Loans with loan to value ratios above
80% but not in excess of 100%. The Authority’s regulations authorize the financing of an additional 5% for closing costs and fees
(but the Authority has not provided such financing for closing costs and fees) and for rehabilitation and improvements to be
completed after the closing and an additional 5% may be financed for costs of retrofitting or adding accessibility features to
accommodate the needs of a disabled occupant and when the Authority has made loans pursuant to such regulations they have
been Self-Insured Mortgage Loans. Effective April 1, 2008, the Authority suspended the financing of Self-Insured Mortgage
Loans, except FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans, Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans (see “Single Family Second
Mortgage Loans Currently and Previously Financed” above regarding the subsequent suspension of the financing of such
Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans) and mortgage loans having a loan-to-value ratio at or below 80%. However, the
mortgage loans that are being financed through Fannie Mae, including those having a loan-to-value ratio above 80%, are not
insured or guaranteed by a federal government entity or private mortgage insurance company, and such mortgage loans if
repurchased by the Authority from Fannie Mae would be Self-Insured Mortgage Loans (see “Fannie Mae Financing” below). In
addition, the single family mortgage loans that have refinanced the Authority’s Interest Only Mortgage Loans as described in
“Single Family Mortgage Loan Terms” above are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans. No assurance can be given whether the Authority
again will expand the financing of other Self-Insured Mortgage Loans.

Financing of Single Family Mortgage Loans

The Authority’s single family mortgage loan program has financed single family mortgage loans with net assets of, and
proceeds from bonds issued under, the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution and the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds
Resolution described in “New Issuance Bond Program and Homeownership Mortgage Bonds” below. The Authority also has
financed, and expects to continue to finance, single family mortgage loans through the issuance of securities securitized by
Ginnie Mae for which the Authority will guarantee certain payments as hereinafter described (see “Ginnie Mae Financing”
below). Beginning June 16, 2012, the Authority commenced the financing of single family mortgage loans to be sold to, or
securitized through, Fannie Mae, for which the Authority will have certain repurchase obligations as hereinafter described (see
“Fannie Mae Financing” below). The mortgage loans so financed with net assets of, and proceeds from bonds issued under, the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution and the mortgage loans securitized through Ginnie Mae securities held under the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution are referred to herein as the “Commonwealth Bonds Mortgage Loans”. The single
family mortgage loans so financed with net assets of, and proceeds from bonds issued under, the Homeownership Mortgage
Bonds Resolution are referred to herein as the “Homeownership Bonds Mortgage Loans.”

The Authority also has financed, and expects to continue to finance, single family mortgage loans using assets in the
General Fund.

New Issuance Bond Program and Homeownership Mortgage Bonds

From December 2009 through September 27, 2011, the Authority issued Homeownership Mortgage Bonds under its
Homeownership Mortgage Bonds Resolution in connection with the New Issuance Bond Program (“NIBP”) of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury (the “Treasury”) by which Fannie Mae and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie
Mac”) (collectively, the “GSEs”) accepted bonds (the “GSE Bonds”) from state and local housing agencies.

On December 23, 2009, the Authority issued the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds, 2009 Series B Taxable (the “2009 B
Bonds”) in the principal amount of $482,960,000 as GSE Bonds. Under the NIBP, in connection with releases of proceeds of the
GSE Bonds from escrow, fixed rate bonds were issued in the total principal amount of $321,980,000 and sold to the general
public (the “Market Bonds”).
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All of the proceeds of the 2009 B Bonds have been released from escrow and the initial short-term interest rates on all
of the 2009 B Bonds have been converted to permanent rates. Although no additional GSE Bonds or Market Bonds will be
issued under the NIBP, the Authority can issue and has issued other bonds under the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds
Resolution.

The proceeds of the 2009 B Bonds and the Market Bonds have been used to finance single family mortgage loans that
were eligible to be financed with Tax-Exempt Bonds. Such proceeds of the 2009 B Bonds and the Market Bonds have been so
used to finance such single family mortgage loans alone or in combination with any net assets in the Homeownership Mortgage
Bonds Resolution and proceeds of other bonds. All of the 2009 B Bonds have been redeemed.

Ginnie Mae Financing

In 2009, the Authority commenced the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities backed by single family mortgage loans
originated or purchased by the Authority and insured or guaranteed by FHA, VA or RD. Such securities are held under the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution or in the General Fund or are sold at market prices in order to provide funds for
the origination of single family mortgage loans or for other programs and operations of the Authority. If held under the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution, the securities are pledged as security under such Resolution.

Each Ginnie Mae security represents an undivided ownership interest in a pool of single family mortgage loans. The
Authority does not show the single family mortgage loans represented by Ginnie Mae securities that the Authority sells to third
parties as assets in its financial statements. The Authority expects to retain the servicing rights on all the single family
mortgage loans securitized by the Ginnie Mae securities the Authority issues. As the servicer of the mortgage loans, the
Authority guarantees the timely payment of principal and interest on the mortgage loans so securitized. When a securitized
mortgage loan becomes more than three months delinquent the Authority has the option to remove such loan from its Ginnie
Mae security by paying the outstanding principal balance and the Authority generally exercises that option when such
delinquent mortgage loan is in a Ginnie Mae security that has been sold to third parties. All of the total outstanding principal
balance of such loans are insured or guaranteed by FHA, VA, or RD.

As of June 30, 2015, the Authority had securitized single family mortgage loans in the approximate outstanding
principal amount of $27.8 million through the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities held under the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds
Resolution. For information regarding single family mortgage loans securitized through the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities
and held under the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution see Appendix B.

As of June 30, 2015, the Authority had securitized single family mortgage loans in the approximate outstanding
principal amount of $387 million through the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities held by the General Fund. For certain
information concerning single family mortgage loans securitized by the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities held by the Authority
in the General Fund, see “General Fund and Other Net Assets” in “General Information About The Authority.”

For certain aggregate information concerning, collectively, single family mortgage loans securitized by the issuance of
Ginnie Mae securities held by the Authority in the General Fund and single family mortgage loans securitized by the issuance of
Ginnie Mae securities sold to third parties and not held by the Authority, see “Data on Securitized Single Family Mortgage Loans
Sold to Investors or held in the Authority’s General Fund” in Appendix B.

As of June 30, 2015, the Authority had securitized single family mortgage loans in the approximate outstanding
principal amount of $744.6 million through the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities sold to third parties and not held by the
Authority. Of such loans, as of June 30, 2015 2.94% (by outstanding principal amount) or $21.9 million approximate outstanding
principal amount was more than two months delinquent in monthly payments and 0.2% (by outstanding principal amount) or
$1.6 million approximate outstanding principal amount was in foreclosure. As noted above, the Authority guarantees the timely
payment of principal and interest on the mortgage loans so financed.

No assurance can be given as to whether the Authority will continue the financing of single family mortgage loans
through the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities or, if continued, as to the amount of such financings.

For information concerning securitized single family mortgage loans see Appendix B.
Fannie Mae Financing

Pursuant to agreements with Fannie Mae (the “Fannie Mae Agreements” and each a “Fannie Mae Agreement”),
beginning June 16, 2012, the Authority commenced the financing of single family mortgage loans to be sold to Fannie Mae or
securitized through Fannie Mae’s issuance of Fannie Mae guaranteed certificates (“Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans”).

Under the Fannie Mae Agreements, the Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans will finance the acquisition, or will refinance the
ownership (including the refinancing of existing Authority mortgage loans), of single family homes and related costs in amounts
not to exceed 97% of the lesser of (a) the sales price (if applicable) or (b) the appraised value of the single family homes. The
amount of cash, if any, receivable by the borrower at the closing of a refinancing loan is limited by Fannie Mae to the lesser of
2% of the principal amount of the refinancing loan or $2,000. The Authority does not expect to finance any rehabilitation or
repairs subsequent to closing.
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Pursuant to the Fannie Mae Agreements, the Authority may sell Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans to Fannie Mae under
Fannie Mae’s whole loan purchase program or may securitize such loans through Fannie Mae’s Mortgage Backed Securities
(“MBS”) program. Once sold to, or securitized through, Fannie Mae, the Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans are not assets of the
Authority and are not pledged under the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds Resolution or the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds
Resolution. The sale or securitization of a Fannie Mae Mortgage Loan, in either case, is subject to a repurchase agreement in
the event the mortgage loan becomes delinquent within certain parameters (generally four full months delinquent during the
repurchase obligation period (the “Repurchase Obligation Period”), which may be different for each Fannie Mae Agreement,
unless a default exists at the end of the applicable Repurchase Obligation Period in which case it is extended until the loan is no
longer delinquent). In addition, Fannie Mae may require the Authority to repurchase any Fannie Mae Mortgage Loan, at any
time such loan is outstanding, if the Authority is in breach of any covenant, representation or warranty by the Authority with
respect to such loan. Any Fannie Mae Mortgage Loan repurchased by the Authority would be a Self-Insured Mortgage Loan.
The Authority expects to retain the servicing rights on all Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans.

The Fannie Mae Agreements permit the Authority to apply income limits for the borrowers that do not exceed the
income limits applicable to single family mortgage loans financed by Tax-Exempt Bonds and requires that at least fifty percent
(50%) of the single family mortgage loans sold to Fannie Mae pursuant to the Fannie Mae Agreement meet at least one of the
then current housing goals for loans to low and moderate income households, as established for Fannie Mae by its regulator
which are subject to change from time to time. Such agreements do not establish maximum sales prices. The Authority limits
the principal amount of the Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans to the maximum loan amount permitted by Fannie Mae but does not
apply any maximum sales prices.

The principal terms and conditions of the various Fannie Mae Agreements are set forth below.

Outstanding Principal Balance
of Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans

Original still subject to a Repurchase
Fannie Mae Maximum Amount Repurchase Obligation for Delinquencies
Agreements (plus or minus 5%) Expiration Date Obligation Period ($ million; as of June 30, 2015)
Agreement 1 $150,000,000 June 30, 2013 6-7 months 0.0
Agreement 2 125,000,000 June 30, 2014 6-7 months 0.0
Agreement 3 150,000,000 December 31, 2014 12-13 months 51.7
Agreement 4 250,000,000 December 31, 2015 60-61 months 47.7
$99.4

Pursuant to the Fannie Mae Agreements, the Authority has purchased, and accepted loan reservations for, Fannie Mae
Mortgage Loans. As of June 30, 2015, the Authority had not sold any Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans to Fannie Mae. However, as of
June 30, 2015, there was outstanding approximately $234.3 million aggregate principal balance amount of Fannie Mae Mortgage
Loans that were securitized by the Authority through the issuance of Fannie Mae securities that were sold to third parties and
not held by the Authority. The Authority expects to continue to sell any such future Fannie Mae securities to third parties and
not to retain and hold any such securities under any bond resolutions or the General Fund, but the Authority can give no
assurance that it will not so retain and hold such securities in the future. As of June 30, 2015, the aggregate outstanding
principal balance of Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans still in their Repurchase Obligation Period which were two or three months
delinquent was $400,000, and none of such Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans had been repurchased by the Authority because of
delinquency or breach of any covenant, representation or warranty as described above. No assurance can be given as to
whether the Authority will continue the financing of Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans or, if continued, as to the amount of such
financings. The Authority may also sell or securitize single family mortgage loans through Fannie Mae under the standard
Fannie Mae programs available to mortgage lenders.

FHA and VA Streamline Refinance Programs

Effective September 24, 2012, the Authority commenced the financing of FHA insured First Mortgage Loans that
refinance existing Authority FHA insured First Mortgage Loans pursuant to FHA’s guidelines (each such refinancing FHA
insured First Mortgage Loan is referred to herein as a “FHA Streamline Refinance Loan”). FHA Streamline Refinance Loans
may be made by the Authority without regard to the current loan-to-value ratio of the properties (if there is no subordinate
financing) or the credit score and maximum debt-to-income ratios otherwise applicable to FHA insured mortgage loans if such
borrowers have not been delinquent on their mortgage loan payments in the prior three months nor more than once in the prior
12 months. However, if subordinate financing is to remain in place, the maximum combined loan-to-value ratio (CLTV)
applicable to FHA Streamline Refinance Loans is 125% based on the original appraised value of the properties. The Authority’s
maximum income limits for FHA Streamline Refinance Loans range from $115,350 to $161,250. On February 8, 2013, the
Authority implemented a similar VA program that provides refinancing of existing Authority VA guaranteed First Mortgage
Loans (each such refinancing VA guaranteed First Mortgage Loan is referred to herein as a “VA Streamline Refinance Loan”).
The Authority expects to finance FHA Streamline Refinance Loans and VA Streamline Refinance Loans primarily by
securitizations through Ginnie Mae.
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Data on Single Family Mortgage Loans

The following data on Commonwealth Bonds Mortgage Loans and Homeownership Bonds Mortgage Loans, as well as
single family mortgage loans securitized through the issuance of Ginnie Mae and Fannie Mae securities that were sold to
investors or that were held in the General Fund, are set forth in Appendix B:

a. Outstanding balance, delinquency and foreclosure statistics;
b. Data on single family real estate owned,;

c. Distribution by lien status and by program status;

d. Distribution by year of origination;

e. Distribution by Level Payment Mortgage Loans and Non-Level Payment Mortgage Loans (only applies to
Commonwealth Bonds Mortgage Loans);

f.  Distribution by types of mortgage insurance;
g. Distribution and delinquency and foreclosure status by calendar year of origination;
h. Distribution by credit score and by type of mortgage insurer or guarantor; and

i.  Outstanding balances and delinquency and foreclosure status for each Metropolitan Statistical Area of the
Commonwealth.

Future Funding of Single Family Programs

The Authority is considering a number of alternative means of funding its single family programs. If conditions in the
tax-exempt bond market and mortgage market will permit the financing of single family mortgage loans at interest rates and on
other terms superior to or competitive with mortgage loans offered by other lenders, the Authority would expect to continue to
finance its single family programs primarily through the sale and issuance of Tax-Exempt Bonds. If such conditions do not exist,
the Authority expects to continue the financing of single family mortgage loans primarily through the issuance of Ginnie Mae
securities as described above and the financing of Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans as described above. Because of future
uncertainties about the foregoing financing methods, the Authority can give no assurance as to whether or not any of such
financing methods will be available to the Authority or will enable the Authority to finance the single family programs or as to
the amount of funding that such financing method will provide.

Single Family Mortgage Loan Origination Procedures and Underwriting Criteria

Single family mortgage loans have been and are expected to be, except as noted below, originated for the Authority by
commercial banks, savings and loan associations, private mortgage bankers and local redevelopment and housing authorities
approved by the Authority to act as its originating lenders (“Originating Lenders”). The Originating Lenders originate and close
the single family mortgage loans in their own names and with their own funds, and pursuant to purchase agreements (“Purchase
Agreements”) the Authority purchases such single family mortgage loans upon compliance with the terms and conditions of the
Purchase Agreements.

The Authority also utilizes its own employees to receive applications for single family mortgage loans in certain areas
of the Commonwealth in which the Authority desires to increase lending activity under the single family program (such loans
are referred to herein as “Direct Origination Loans”). In the case of Direct Origination Loans, the Authority processes and
originates the single family mortgage loans and retains all fees which would otherwise be available to Originating Lenders with
respect to such mortgage loans. Direct Origination Loans are committed and closed in the name of the Authority and funded by
the Authority at loan closing upon compliance with all terms and conditions of the Authority’s mortgage loan approval.

Under the origination system, a prospective mortgagor submits a single family mortgage loan application to an
Originating Lender or the Authority. In the case of a single family mortgage loan to finance the purchase of a residence, the
application is submitted after the prospective mortgagor has contracted for the purchase of the residence. If a preliminary
review indicates that the prospective mortgagor and single family mortgage loan will qualify under the Authority’s underwriting
criteria and the Code, the Authority allows the originating lender to lock the interest rate on the loan (i.e., the Authority
commits to purchase the loan at par with such interest rate from the originating lender) for a period of 60 days, although
extensions may be granted by the Authority. The Authority expects to continue to allow such loan rate lock requests on a first-
come, first-served basis up to pre-authorized limits. The Authority has allocated, and may in the future allocate, funds in a
manner other than as described above.

The Authority establishes maximum sales price limits (except in the case of Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans, the FHA
Streamline Refinance Loans, the VA Streamline Refinance Loans and the single family mortgage loans that have refinanced the
Authority’s Interest Only Mortgage Loans) and maximum annual gross income limits which vary depending principally upon
location within the Commonwealth. The maximum sales price limits currently range from $251,900 to $500,000, and the
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maximum annual gross income limits currently range from $73,600 to $142,300 (except the limits range from $115,350 to
$161,250 in the case of the FHA Streamline Refinance Program discussed above). In certain federally designated Targeted Areas
(see Appendix D), the Authority has established (as permitted by the Code) maximum sales price limits that range from
$307,800 to $500,000 and maximum annual gross income limits that range from $88,300 to $142,300. All of the Authority’s
current maximum sales price limits and maximum annual gross income limits that are applicable to single family mortgage
loans financed by Tax-Exempt Bonds comply with the limits currently established by the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to
the Code for single family mortgage loans financed by Tax-Exempt Bonds. The maximum sales price limits so established by the
Internal Revenue Service are currently calculated based on the maximum principal amounts of mortgage loans that FHA will
insure. Any future reductions in maximum sales prices could have a material adverse impact on the Authority’s single family
programs then financed with proceeds of Tax-Exempt Bonds. For the Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans, the Authority applies the
above described maximum income limits and limits the principal amount of such loans to the maximum loan amount permitted
by Fannie Mae but does not apply any maximum sales prices. For single family mortgage loans previously financed, in whole, by
Taxable Bonds or Authority net assets, the Authority established maximum annual gross incomes equal to 150% of the
applicable median family incomes, had no maximum sales prices, and established a maximum principal amount equal to the
maximum loan amount permitted by Fannie Mae and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. However, effective April 1,
2008, the financing of such single family mortgage loans, all of which are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans, was suspended by the
Authority. In the case of single family mortgage loans that have refinanced the Authority’s Interest Only Mortgage Loans, the
mortgagors were not required to meet the Authority’s current income limits but were deemed eligible based on their incomes
and the Authority’s income limits at the time of the origination of the Interest Only Mortgage Loan. The Authority’s regulations
permit the Executive Director to establish the maximum sales prices and maximum annual gross incomes that will enable the
Authority to effectively and efficiently allocate its current and anticipated financial resources. The Authority can currently give
no assurance as to whether or when the Executive Director may in the future approve increases or decreases in such limits or
as to the amount of any such increases or decreases, subject to compliance with the limits, if applicable, established by the
Internal Revenue Service pursuant to the Code.

All Originating Lenders are required to enter into Purchase Agreements setting forth the conditions and requirements
for origination and purchase of single family mortgage loans. The Originating Lenders must process, settle and disburse the
single family mortgage loans in accordance with the underwriting standards and administrative procedures in such Purchase
Agreements. For each such single family mortgage loan, the Originating Lender receives an origination fee of 1% of the principal
amount of the First Mortgage Loan and a service release fee of 1.5% of the principal amount of the First Mortgage Loan. In the
case of Direct Origination Loans, the Authority charges and retains any origination fee and discount points paid by the
mortgagor, and the service release fee is not applicable.

The Authority has delegated to certain of its Originating Lenders the loan underwriting functions described below.
Loans underwritten by the Originating Lenders pursuant to such delegation are referred to herein as “Delegated Loans.” Over
90% of the single family loans being originated are Delegated Loans. In the case of Delegated Loans, the Authority will,
subsequent to the closing of the single family mortgage loans, review the loan applications and documentation and determine
compliance of the mortgage loans with the Code and, on a test basis, with the Authority’s underwriting requirements and
criteria. For loans other than Delegated Loans, applications for single family mortgage loans are submitted to the Authority for
review and approval prior to loan approval.

The Authority may require the Originating Lender to repurchase or retain any single family mortgage loans which are
not subject to mortgage insurance or guaranty (if required) in accordance with the requirements of the Authority, which fail to
comply with the provisions of the Code (if applicable), which do not conform with the Authority’s sales price and income limits,
which are not properly or timely documented as required by the Authority, which were originated based upon any
misrepresentation known to the Originating Lender, or (in the case of Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans) which do not comply with
Fannie Mae’s requirements due to gross negligence or fraud.

The single family mortgage loans are underwritten based on income eligibility, credit and other criteria relating to the
proposed mortgagor’s ability to meet payments and compliance with the Code, the Act and the Authority’s regulations. The
Authority requires the applicants to provide usual and customary documentation in support of their applications. The
Originating Lender and, in the case of loans other than Delegated Loans, the Authority’s staff review the loan application, credit
report, verifications of employment, bank deposits, the appraisal and other characteristics of the individual dwelling unit
proposed to be financed as security for such loan. In the case of single family mortgage loans to be insured or guaranteed by
FHA, VA or Rural Development, the application and documentation are reviewed for compliance with the credit and property
standards of FHA, VA or Rural Development; however, in the case of FHA Streamline Refinance Loans and VA Streamline
Refinance Loans, certain underwriting criteria and documentation normally applicable to FHA insured and VA guaranteed First
Mortgage Loans are not required by FHA or VA, as applicable. FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans are (and Homebuyer Tax
Credit Plus Mortgage Loans as described above were prior to the suspension thereof) processed and underwritten in
conjunction with the related FHA insured First Mortgage Loan and in accordance with applicable FHA credit and property
standards, as well as certain higher standards set by the Authority from time to time. Single family mortgage loans to be insured
by private mortgage insurance are underwritten to comply with the standards of the private mortgage insurance companies.
Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans are required to be underwritten in accordance with Fannie Mae’s requirements. In the case of
single family mortgage loans that have refinanced the Authority’s existing Interest Only Mortgage Loans, the Authority required
that the mortgagors be the occupants of the property and current (or no more than 2 months delinquent) in their monthly
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payments, but the Authority did not otherwise underwrite the credit or income of the mortgagors or require an appraisal of the
property.

In the case of the above-described Step Rate Mortgage Loans bearing interest during the first and second years of the
mortgage loans at interest rates two percentage points and one percentage point, respectively, lower than the final interest rate
at the beginning of the third year of the Step Rate Mortgage Loan, the Authority required that the interest rate to be charged
during the second year (or the first year in the case of Step Rate Mortgage Loans that have a loan to value ratio below 80% or
Step Rate Mortgage Loans insured by private mortgage insurance or FHA) of the Step Rate Mortgage Loan be used in
underwriting the proposed mortgagor’s ability to meet payments on the Step Rate Mortgage Loan. In the case of Interest Only
Mortgage Loans on which interest only will be payable during the initial seven (7) years, the Authority required the underwriting
of the proposed mortgagor on the basis of his ability to make the interest only payments. For Home Stride Second Mortgage
Loans, the Authority required the underwriting of the mortgagor on his ability to make payments on the Authority financed First
Mortgage Loan without regard to the payments of principal and interest on the Home Stride Second Mortgage Loan that
commence three years thereafter. As stated above, effective July 1, 2008, the Authority suspended the financing of Step Rate
Mortgage Loans, Interest Only Mortgage Loans, and Home Stride Second Mortgage Loans. No assurance can be given whether
the Authority will recommence the financing of Step Rate Mortgage Loans, Interest Only Mortgage Loans or Home Stride
Second Mortgage Loans.

Prior to August 1, 2009, the Authority did not impose a minimum credit score requirement for proposed mortgagors.
Effective as of August 1, 2009, the Authority established a minimum credit score of 620 for proposed mortgagors to be eligible
for FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans and Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans. Effective as of December 1, 2009, the
Authority established a minimum credit score of 620 for proposed mortgagors to be eligible for all mortgage loans. Effective as
of May 1, 2010, the Authority established a minimum credit score of 680 for proposed mortgagors to be eligible for the
maximum principal amount of FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans and Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loans (until the
suspension thereof as described above), and proposed mortgagors with credit scores between 620 and 679 are eligible for
reduced maximum principal loan amounts of such loans. The minimum credit score for proposed mortgagors for Fannie Mae
Mortgage Loans is 660. No minimum credit score is required for FHA Streamline Refinance Loans and VA Streamline Refinance
Loans, and no minimum credit score was required for single family mortgage loans that refinanced the Authority’s existing
Interest Only Mortgage Loans.

The maximum ratios of debt to income vary depending on whether the single family mortgage loan is insured and
depending upon the requirements of the mortgage insurer, if any. The ratios are of two types. The first type is the ratio of the
total monthly payment on the single family mortgage loan to the monthly income of the applicant (this ratio is referred to as the
“front end ratio”). The total monthly payment on the single family mortgage loan includes principal, interest, homeowner’s
association dues, if applicable, and escrows for real estate taxes, hazard insurance, mortgage insurance, if applicable, and flood
insurance, if applicable. The second type is the ratio of all monthly debt payments (including such total monthly payment on the
single family mortgage loan) to monthly income (this ratio is referred to as the “back end ratio”). The VA loans have only a back
end ratio. The current maximum front end ratio, if applicable, and back end ratio are as follows, respectively: FHA- 31% and
43%; VA- 41%; RD- 31% and 43%; private mortgage insurance- 32% and 40% and Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans - 35% and 45%. The
Authority may permit higher back end ratios in the event the application receives approval through an automated underwriting
system (e.g., Fannie Mae’s Desktop Underwriter system) subject to a cap adjusted by the Authority from time to time. No
maximum ratios of debt to income are required for FHA Streamline Refinance Loans and VA Streamline Refinance Loans, and
no maximum ratios of debt to income were required for single family mortgage loans that refinanced the Authority’s existing
Interest Only Mortgage Loans.

When an application is approved, a mortgage loan approval is issued to the applicant. Upon compliance with the terms
and conditions of the mortgage loan approval, the single family mortgage loan is closed. The mortgagor is responsible for the
payment of the closing costs; provided, however, that, in the case of a single family mortgage loan that has refinanced an
existing Interest Only Mortgage Loan, the mortgagor received a 1% lender’s credit (paid from Authority funds) that was applied
to the closing costs, and the mortgagor was responsible for payment of the balance of the closing costs (the Authority financed
up to $3,000 of such closing costs in the principal amount of such single family mortgage loan). The Originating Lender
disburses the proceeds of the single family mortgage loan at closing, and upon compliance by the Originating Lender with the
terms and conditions of the Purchase Agreement, the Authority purchases the single family mortgage loan from the Originating
Lender.

Servicing of Single Family Mortgage Loans

Each single family mortgage loan is serviced by the Authority. Fannie Mae Mortgage Loans are required to be serviced
in accordance with Fannie Mae’s requirements. Single family mortgage loans which are insured or guaranteed by third parties
are required to be serviced in accordance with the applicable insurer or guarantor’s requirements. The Authority collects
monthly payments of principal and interest and escrows. All such funds are deposited in segregated trust or custodial accounts
or other accounts approved by the Authority in state or national banks or savings and loan associations, the deposits in which
are fully collateralized. From the funds so deposited the Authority pays to the proper parties, when and if due, mortgage
insurance premiums, real estate taxes and special assessments and hazard insurance premiums. The Authority remits the
balance to the applicable resolution, in accordance with agreements with Ginnie Mae or Fannie Mae, or to the General Fund, as
applicable. The hazard and casualty insurance policies which are required by the Authority to be maintained on the mortgaged
premises insure the Authority as mortgagee to the full extent of its interest in the mortgaged premises.
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Effective June 5, 2009, the Authority’s single family mortgage loans are assumable only if permitted by the Authority.
An exception is provided for loans (such as mortgage loans insured or guaranteed by FHA and VA) that are assumable in
accordance with insurer or guarantor guidelines or applicable law.

In the case of default under any single family mortgage loan that is not cured, the Authority takes actions to obtain the
full benefits of any mortgage insurance or guarantee. If foreclosure proceedings are instituted, the Authority manages and
protects the mortgaged premises under foreclosure, including maintenance of insurance on the premises, management and
supervision of repairs and maintenance of the premises. In lieu of foreclosure, the Authority may, if deemed to be in its best
interests and if acceptable to the mortgage insurer or guarantor (if any), accept a deed of the property from the mortgagor or
approve a sale of the property that will not provide sufficient proceeds to pay the mortgage loan in full, and in such cases the
lien of the deed of trust securing the mortgage loan will be released.

Loan Modifications

In the case of delinquencies of single family mortgage loans insured or guaranteed by FHA, VA or Rural Development
or by any private insurance companies, the Authority modifies the terms of such mortgage loans in accordance with the
requirements of the mortgage insurer or guarantor. Such modifications may include the deferral of monthly payments of
principal and interest, the extension of the maturity dates and re-amortization of the outstanding principal balances of the
mortgage loans, reducing the interest rates to current market rates, and, in the case of FHA insured mortgage loans, the
payment by FHA of partial insurance claims. In the case of delinquencies of Self-Insured Mortgage Loans, the Authority
modifies the terms of the Self-Insured Mortgage Loans generally in accordance with the guidelines applicable to FHA insured
mortgage loans (other than the guidelines for partial insurance claims) and, in certain cases, may reduce the interest rate for all
or part of the remaining term of the Self-Insured Mortgage Loan to mitigate any potential losses. Any modification of Fannie
Mae Mortgage Loans must be made by the Authority in accordance with Fannie Mae requirements.

Since September 23, 2009, FHA has required lenders holding FHA insured mortgage loans in default to modify such
mortgage loans by reducing the interest rates to current market rates and by extending the term to a full 30 years from the date
of loan modification. The Authority has received a letter from FHA waiving such requirement with respect to FHA insured
mortgage loans financed by bonds. No assurance can be given as to whether FHA will continue such waiver or, if not continued,
what the impact will be on the Authority of such discontinuance. Notwithstanding such waiver, the Authority has entered into,
and expects to continue to enter into, such modifications of such mortgage loans in its discretion.

The Authority offers modifications of First Mortgage Loans that are Self-Insured Mortgage Loans (each a “Self-Insured
First Mortgage Loan”) to mortgagors experiencing hardship who cannot refinance their Self-Insured First Mortgage Loans
because the outstanding balances exceed the current fair market values of their single family properties. Each such loan
modification may include an extension of the term, a reduction in the interest rate for all or a portion of the term and/or, if it is
an Interest Only Loan, a delay in the commencement of principal payments. The Authority does not offer the loan modifications
to potentially eligible mortgagors by direct solicitations but may do so in the future. As of June 30, 2015, under the current and
prior loan modification programs, the Authority has modified Self-Insured First Mortgage Loans with an approximate aggregate
principal balance, as of the respective dates of modification, of $121.6 million. The implementation of such loan modifications
may negatively impact the revenues of the Authority but may reduce potential losses on the Self-Insured Mortgage Loans that
are so modified; however, at this time the Authority can not give any assurance as to any potential impact on revenues and
losses as a result of such loan modifications.

See “Single Family Mortgage Loan Terms” above for a description of loan modifications for Interest Only Mortgage
Loans.

Declining Markets; Risk of Loss

Since 2007, the residential mortgage loan market in Virginia has experienced higher levels of delinquencies, defaults,
and losses than the levels typically seen in prior years. The House Price Index of the Federal Housing Finance Agency (such
Index measures average price changes on single family properties whose mortgages have been purchased or securitized by
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac) indicates that home values in Virginia are substantially below their peak in the second quarter of
2007 despite some gains reported in recent quarters. This decline has resulted and may continue to result in additional
increases in delinquencies, defaults and losses on residential mortgage loans generally, particularly with respect to residential
mortgage loans whose aggregate loan amounts (including any subordinate liens) are close to or greater than the related
property values. Upon a default on a single family mortgage loan, a decline in property value will affect the Authority’s risk of
loss depending upon the type of mortgage loan. In the case of a FHA insured mortgage loan, any loss to the Authority is usually
limited to approximately 2-3% of the principal balance of the mortgage loan, regardless of any decline in property value.
However, the Authority may suffer greater losses on FHA insured single family mortgage loans if the Authority is required by
FHA to indemnify FHA for losses on FHA insured single family mortgage loans because of failure by the Authority to comply
with FHA requirements relating to the origination or servicing of such FHA insured single family mortgage loans. As of June 30,
2015, the Authority has paid approximately $675,000 to FHA in reimbursement for losses on FHA insured single family mortgage
loans because of failure by the Authority to comply with FHA servicing requirements discovered in FHA audits. In the case of a
mortgage loan insured by VA, RD or a private mortgage insurance company, the Authority experiences minimal loss due to any
such decline in property value, except to the extent that the amount owed on such mortgage loan exceeds the value of the
property by an amount greater than the maximum insurance amount (generally 20-256% of the original loan amount). FHA, VA

36



and RD do not pay all of the Authority’s claims but the amount rejected is not material. In the case of a Self-Insured Mortgage
Loan that is a FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loan or a Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loan, the Authority will usually suffer
a full loss of the amount owed on such FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loan or Homebuyer Tax Credit Plus Mortgage Loan. In the
case of a Self-Insured Mortgage Loan that is a Home Stride Second Mortgage Loan, the Authority will suffer a loss to the extent
that the value of the property minus the amount owed on the Authority financed First Mortgage Loan is less than such Home
Stride Second Mortgage Loan; therefore, any decline in property value may increase the risk of loss on such Home Stride
Second Mortgage Loan. In the case of any other Self-Insured Mortgage Loan, the Authority will suffer a loss to the extent that
the value of the property is less than the amount owed on such Loan and, as a result, any decline in property value may increase
the risk of loss on such Self-Insured Mortgage Loan.

The Authority conducts quarterly analyses of the risk of loan loss on its portfolio of single family mortgage loans in
order to determine the amount to be included in the calculation of the Authority’s allowance for loan loss (the “Authority’s
Allowance for Loan Loss”) for anticipated losses on single family mortgage loans under the single family programs of the
Authority. As of June 30, 2015, the amount included in the Allowance for Loan Loss for the single family mortgage loans that
are insured by private mortgage insurance companies was $18.4 million, which is equal to 4.6% of the principal balances of such
single family mortgage loans. As of June 30, 2015, the amount included in the Allowance for Loan Loss for the Self Insured
Mortgage Loans was $93.3 million, which is equal to 7.0% of the principal balances of such single family mortgage loans. As of
June 30, 2015, the amount included in the Allowance for Loan Loss for single family mortgage loans that are insured or
guaranteed by agencies of the federal government, including FHA, VA and RD, was $13.6 million, which is equal to 0.7% of the
principal balances of such single family mortgage loans (such amount includes estimated liability for reimbursements that
would be paid by the Authority to such agencies for their losses on such single family mortgage loans because of any failure by
the Authority to comply with their requirements relating to the origination or servicing of such loans). As of June 30, 2015 the
Authority included in the Allowance for Loan Loss $10.1 million which is equal to 0.7% of the principal balances of the single
family mortgage loans financed through the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities and Fannie Mae securities. The total of all of the
foregoing amounts that were included in the Authority’s Allowance for Loan Loss as of June 30, 2015 is $135.4 million (the
Authority’s total Allowance for Loan Loss which includes such total amount and amounts for possible losses on multi-family
mortgage loans financed by the Authority was $193.0 million as of June 30, 2015).

In response to increased delinquencies and losses with respect to single family mortgage loans, Fannie Mae, Freddie
Mac and many other mortgage loan originators have implemented more conservative underwriting criteria for loans,
particularly in the subprime, Alt-A and other nonprime sectors. This may result in reduced availability of financing alternatives
for mortgagors seeking to refinance their single family mortgage loans. The reduced availability of refinancing options for a
mortgagor may result in higher rates of delinquencies, defaults and losses on the single family mortgage loans, particularly
mortgagors with adjustable rate mortgage loans or interest only mortgage loans that experience significant increases in their
monthly payments following the adjustment date or the end of the interest only period, respectively.

The general market conditions discussed above may affect the performance of the Authority’s single-family loans and
may adversely affect the Authority’s financial condition.

See Appendix B for the outstanding balances and delinquency and foreclosure status of single family mortgage loans
for each Metropolitan Statistical Area of the Commonwealth financed under the two general bond resolutions and through
issuance of Ginnie Mae and Fannie Mae securities that have been sold to investors or held in the General Fund.

See “Geographic Concentration in Virginia” in “Certain Programmatic Considerations” for a discussion of the risk from
the concentration of single family mortgage loans in Virginia.

See “Changes in Federal or State Law and Programs” in “Certain Programmatic Considerations” for a discussion of the
risk to the Authority’s single family loans as a result of changes in federal or state law or programs.

Other Single Family Programs Currently Offered

The Authority has implemented a program called the Down Payment Assistance Grant that provides grants of up to 3%
of the lesser of the purchase price or the appraised value of the home to be used for the required down payment by first time
homebuyers earning 80% or less of the Authority’s current income limits. Such grants are available only to homebuyers getting a
First Mortgage Loan financed by the Authority the terms of which require a down payment. Because the grants are solely for
down payments, the Authority does not award them in connection with loan programs providing down payment assistance
including, but not limited to, the Authority’s FHA Plus Second Mortgage Loans. The Authority allocated $17 million of its net
assets to this program. The Authority suspended this program on September 30, 2015 to evaluate its effectiveness. Upon
completion of such evaluation, the Authority may elect to terminate the program or to modify the program, including allocating
additional funds to this or similar programs. See “General Fund and Other Net Assets” below for a description of the
Authority’s financing of Subsidized Programs.

The Authority has a program for the issuance of Mortgage Credit Certificates (“MCCs”) authorized by the Code. As
required by the Code, such MCCs use a portion of the Authority’s Tax-Exempt Bond issuance allocation, thereby reducing the
allocation available to issue Tax-Exempt Bonds. MCCs provide recipients with a credit against federal income tax liability for a
portion of their home mortgage interest and are available to individuals meeting the same eligibility requirements for mortgage
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loans financed by Tax-Exempt Bonds, whether or not their loan was financed by the Authority; however, MCCs may not be
issued to borrowers if their mortgage loans are financed with proceeds of Tax-Exempt Bonds.

THE MULTI-FAMILY PROGRAM

The information that follows is provided to explain the Authority’s program of making or purchasing multi-family
mortgage loans and financing Authority owned multi-family developments. The Authority has made or purchased mortgage
loans on multi-family developments with proceeds of bonds issued pursuant to its bond resolutions and with other moneys of
the Authority. This information does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive, and the limits, amounts of financial
reserves, rules and criteria described are not required by any bond resolutions and are subject to modification, change or waiver
by the Authority, in whole or in part at any time, and with respect to any particular multi-family development proposal or any
particular type of multi-family development (such as multi-family developments containing a small number of units intended for
occupancy by person with disabilities).

New mortgage loans to be originated under the Authority’s multi-family program are expected to be financed primarily
with the proceeds of Rental Housing Bonds and pursuant to the program described below. The Authority also expects to utilize
other moneys of the Authority to finance other mortgage loans under its multi-family program as set forth in “General Fund and
Other Net Assets” in “General Information About The Authority.” The underwriting, terms and requirements for multi-family
mortgage loans financed by other moneys of the Authority are substantially the same as they are for mortgage loans financed by
Rental Housing Bonds, if and to the extent applicable as described below.

The Authority has been designated as a “qualified HFA” under the Risk-Sharing Act and entered into a Risk-Sharing
Agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) on March 23, 2015 (see “FHA Risk-Sharing
Insurance Program” in Appendix F for a description of the FHA Risk-Sharing Insurance Program (the “Risk-Sharing Program”)).
In conjunction with the Risk Sharing Program the Authority elected to participate in a new program offered by the Federal
Financing Bank (the “FFB”) for the financing of mortgage loans insured pursuant to the Risk-Sharing Program. The FFB is a
government corporation, under the general supervision and direction of the Secretary of the Treasury, created by Congress with
statutory authority to purchase (i.e., to fund) any obligation that is fully guaranteed by another federal agency. To the extent
that FFB financing is utilized to finance particular mortgage loans, such mortgage loans would not be available to be financed
under the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution (other than on a temporary basis prior to such FFB financing). The Authority
expects to execute the necessary agreements to participate in such FFB financing in October, 2015.

General

Substantially all of the multi-family mortgage loans currently financed by the Authority are secured by first liens, and
the Authority expects that the multi-family mortgage loans hereafter financed by the Authority will be secured by first liens;
however, the Authority may, in its discretion, finance mortgage loans secured by liens that are not first liens and cannot,
therefore, provide any assurance that such mortgage loans will always be secured by first liens. It is the policy of the Authority
that the security for the multifamily mortgage loans be a full fee simple ownership interest; however, under the Act the
Authority may finance a leasehold estate if the term of the lease is at least twice the term of the multi-family mortgage loan. The
Authority has financed, and may in the future finance, multi-family mortgage loans secured by leasehold estates of the land
and/or the development if the landlord is unwilling or unable to convey its interest as security for the multi-family mortgage
loan.

Generally, the multi-family mortgage loans bear interest at fixed interest rates (although the multi-family mortgage
loan may bear interest at a variable rate during the construction period, if any) and are fully amortizing over the term of the
multi-family mortgage loan, although the Authority has occasionally structured the mortgage loan (and may do so in the future)
to have a balloon principal payment due on the maturity date of the mortgage loan if the amount of such balloon principal
payment is expected to be less than the projected value of the development on the maturity date of such mortgage loan.

Federal Programs and Requirements

Neither the Act nor the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution requires that multi-family mortgage loans be insured by the
federal government or private mortgage insurance companies or that multi-family developments financed under the multi-family
program be entitled to or eligible for federal assistance (see Appendix F for a description of certain federal programs under
which the Authority has previously financed, and may finance in the future, multi-family developments). The Authority has
financed, and expects to finance in the future, multi-family developments assisted under the Low Income Housing Tax Credit
Program described in Appendix F. The Authority does not expect to finance substantial principal amounts of new multi-family
developments assisted under the other federal programs described in Appendix F; however, the Authority has refinanced, and
expects to refinance in the future, mortgage loans (of the Authority or other governmental entities) which are then financing
such multi-family developments. The Authority has financed, and expects to finance in the future, increases in the outstanding
principal amounts of the Authority’s existing mortgage loans on multi-family developments that are assisted under such federal
programs. In addition, the Authority has financed, and may finance in the future, mortgage loans on multi-family developments
which are not currently financed by the Authority and which, prior to financing by the Authority, were assisted under the
Section 236 Interest Reduction Payments Program or the Section 8 Program described in Appendix F and, after such financing,
may receive assistance under the terms of the agreements related to the applicable program and be subject to the rental and
occupancy requirements under such program.
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The Housing Assistance Payments Contracts (“Payments Contracts”) providing the federal subsidies for the multi-
family developments under the Section 8 Program described in Appendix F have original terms of approximately 30 or 40 years
and have expired or are scheduled to expire on or about the maturity dates of their original mortgage loans, the latest of which
is in 2022. Under current federal policy, upon such expiration, the mortgagor and a Section 8 contract administrator designated
by HUD may, with the approval of HUD, enter into new Payments Contracts with terms not exceeding 20 years, but the annual
funding of the subsidy under such new Payments Contracts will be subject to annual appropriations by the federal government.
The appropriations for Renewal Contracts were affected adversely during the 2013 federal fiscal year by the federal spending
cuts known as the sequester, and no assurance can be given as to the levels of annual appropriations that will be available for
funding Renewal Contracts in the future. If the mortgagor enters into such new Payments Contract, the Authority may provide a
new multi-family mortgage loan to finance the development, including the costs of any rehabilitation. Because the continuation
of the subsidy under the new Payments Contract is subject to annual federal appropriations, the Authority underwrites such
new multi-family mortgage loans using the lesser of the contract rents under the new Payments Contract or the estimated
market rents for the multi-family development. The Authority has financed, and expects to finance in the future, such new
multi-family mortgage loans. In addition, for certain of the Section 8 assisted multi-family developments, the Authority has
provided, prior to the expiration of the original Payments Contract, additional mortgage loan financing that will mature after the
scheduled expiration of such original Payments Contract, and in certain cases the monthly payments of principal and interest
on such additional mortgage loan financing may not commence until the maturity date of the original mortgage loan or the
expiration of the original Payments Contract. In underwriting such additional multi-family mortgage loan financing, the
Authority uses the lesser of the contract rents under the original Payments Contract or the estimated market rents for the multi-
family development for the period that the additional mortgage loan will be outstanding after the expiration of the original
Payments Contract. The Authority may provide, and expects to provide in the future, such additional multi-family mortgage loan
financing for other multi-family developments.

The agreements that provide monthly payments of interest to the Authority under the Section 236 Program Interest
Reduction Payments Program, as described in Appendix F, have original terms of 40 years that expire on or about the maturity
dates of the mortgage loans. In the case of the multi-family mortgage loans that originally financed the multi-family
developments assisted under the Section 236 Program Interest Reduction Payments Program, the terms of these agreements
will expire at various times, the latest of which is in 2018, as and when the multi-family mortgage loans are fully paid. However,
in the case of certain other multi-family developments assisted under the Section 236 Program Interest Reduction Payments
Program, the Authority has refinanced the mortgage loans of other lenders that originally financed such multi-family
developments, and the interest reduction payments for those multi-family developments will terminate upon the maturity dates
of the multi-family mortgage loans that were so refinanced. These terminations will occur in years 2015 through 2018. In the
case of a multi-family development financed by such a mortgage loan, the interest reduction payments will, prior to such
termination date, be applied to pay principal and interest on a portion of the original principal amount of the mortgage loan, and
the remaining portion of the original principal amount of the multi-family mortgage loan and interest on such portion will be
payable over its 30-year term.

The Authority has also financed multi-family developments which, at the time of such financing were being financed
by a 1% interest rate mortgage loan by Rural Housing Service (“RHS”) in the U. S. Department of Agriculture under its Section
515 program and were receiving rental subsidies under its Section 521 program similar to subsidies under the Section 8
program. Upon such financing by the Authority, the lien securing the RHS mortgage loan was subordinated to the lien securing
the Authority multi-family mortgage loan, and the rental subsidies were continued. Because the rental subsidy is subject to
annual federal appropriations, the Authority underwrites its new mortgage loans for these multi-family developments using the
lesser of the contract rents under the RHS 521 program or the estimated market rents for the units in multi-family
developments. An example of the risk associated with subsidies subject to annual appropriations from the federal government
is the case of four such developments that had the renewal of their subsidy contracts delayed as a result of the sequestration by
the federal government of funding in its 2013 fiscal year. Although at this time RHS has not failed to renew a Section 521 subsidy
contract for a multi-family development financed by VHDA, no assurance can be given as to whether subsidy funding for multi-
family developments assisted by RHS will continue, in whole or in part, in future fiscal years or as to the impact on the
Authority of any subsidy reductions or terminations, including possible defaults and foreclosures of the Authority’s multi-family
mortgage loans on such multi-family developments.

The Authority has financed and may in the future finance developments that are in HUD’s Rental Assistance
Demonstration Program (the “RAD Program”). Under the RAD Program, certain restrictive covenants which restrict the
property’s uses and tenant incomes, and therefore which negatively affect the property’s market value, are superior to the lien
of the deed of trust securing the Authority’s loan so that those restrictive covenants survive foreclosure. The RAD Program
provides subsidies to developments which are subject to annual appropriations from the federal government. When the
Authority finances a development in the RAD Program it could end up with a loan secured by a lien on a development that
receives no federal subsidies and is subject to restrictive covenants limiting the property’s uses and tenant incomes which
would increase the Authority’s risk of loss with regard to that loan. As of June 30, 2015, the Authority’s policy for lending to
developments in the RAD Program is a risk analysis and public policy evaluation on a case by case basis. See “General Fund
and Other Net Assets” below for a discussion of the Authority’s special allocation of resources to support certain programs in
Virginia, including the RAD Program.
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See Appendix F for further discussion of the requirements under the Section 8 Program, Section 236 Program and Low
Income Housing Tax Credit Program, including the income limits for tenants occupying the units in the developments assisted
under those Programs.

Requirements Applicable to Developments Financed by Tax-Exempt AMT Bonds and Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds

The following requirements apply to multi-family developments which are to be or which have been financed, in whole
or in part, with proceeds of Tax-Exempt AMT Bonds or Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds.

Under the Code, multi-family developments financed by Tax-Exempt AMT Bonds or Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds
must meet a requirement that either (i) at least 20% of the units in such multi-family development be occupied during the
Qualified Project Period (as defined below) by individuals whose incomes are 50% or less of area median gross income, as
adjusted for family size, or (ii) at least 40% of the units in such multi-family development be occupied during the Qualified
Project Period (as defined below) by individuals whose incomes are 60% or less of area median gross income, as adjusted for
family size. (The foregoing requirement is hereinafter referred to as the “20/50 or 40/60 Requirement,” as applicable.)

The term “Qualified Project Period” for the Tax-Exempt AMT Bonds and Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds is defined in the
Code such that its ending date is the latest of (i) the date which is at least 15 years after the date on which 50% of the units in
such multi-family development are first occupied, (ii) the first day on which no Tax-Exempt Bond issued with respect to such
multi-family development is outstanding, or (iii) the date on which any assistance provided with respect to such multi-family
development under Section 8 terminates.

In addition to the 20/50 or 40/60 Requirement, all of each such multi-family development’s units must remain rental
property throughout the applicable Qualified Project Period.

Requirements Applicable to Developments Financed by Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds

The following requirements apply to multi-family developments to be financed or which have been financed, in whole
or in part, with proceeds of certain Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds issued to refund certain bonds
described below. The Authority may also issue Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds to finance multi-family
developments owned by the Authority, other governmental entities or charitable organizations exempt from federal taxation
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, and to finance Authority owned property (including its offices).

Multi-family developments financed by certain Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds issued to refund
bonds which were either issued on or after January 1, 1981, and before August 16, 1986 or issued pursuant to a transition rule in
the Tax Reform Act of 1986 are subject to certain restrictions as to the use and occupancy of units therein under the Code and
the predecessor provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended (the “1954 Code”). Such multi-family
developments consisting of residential rental property, as such term is defined in Section 103(b)(4) of the 1954 Code, are
subject to the requirement that (i) at least 20 percent of the units in each multi-family development financed by such bonds (15
percent if the Development is located in certain low income or economically distressed areas) be occupied during the “Qualified
Project Period” (defined below) by individuals whose incomes do not exceed 80% of the median income for the area (the “20/80
Requirement”), (ii) all of the units of each multi-family development be rented or available for rental on a continuous basis for
the longer of the remaining term of the applicable series of such bonds or the Qualified Project Period for the multi-family
development, and (iii) no building in any multi-family development contains less than 5 units if one of such units is occupied by
an owner of the units. The 20/80 Requirement does not apply to multi-family developments financed by Transitioned 1954 Code
Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds issued to refund bonds issued prior to January 1, 1981.

The term “Qualified Project Period” means (i) for the above described Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT
Bonds issued to refund bonds issued prior to September 4, 1982, a period of 20 years commencing on the date of initial
occupancy of the multi-family development or the date of issuance of such bonds, whichever is later, and (ii) for the above
described Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds issued to refund bonds issued on or after September 4, 1982, a
period commencing upon occupancy of 10% of the units in the multi-family development and ending on the later of (a) the date
which is 10 years after occupancy of 50% of the units in the multi-family development, (b) the date which is subsequent to initial
occupancy of any unit in the multi-family development by a period of time equal to one-half of the sum of the period the
refunded bonds were outstanding and the longest term of the Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds or (c) the
date upon which any Section 8 assistance for the multi-family development terminates.

Multi-family developments that are financed by Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds and that are
owned by the Authority, by other governmental entities or by charitable organizations exempt from federal taxation under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code are not subject to the 20/50 or 40/60 Requirement or the 20/80 Requirement. However, if any multi-
family development that is financed by Transitioned 1954 Code Tax-Exempt Non-AMT Bonds issued after August 16, 1986 and
that is owned by such a charitable organization shall not be newly constructed or substantially rehabilitated, such multi-family
development shall be subject to the 20/50 or 40/60 Requirement.
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Authority Income Limits

The Authority has established income limits for the admission of families and persons to Authority financed multi-
family developments. Under the Authority’s current rules and regulations (which are subject to change), the adjusted family
income as defined by the Authority for admission to a rental unit in a multi-family development may not exceed 150% of the area
median gross income, except that certain multi-family developments financed by mortgage loans approved by the Authority
prior to November 15, 1991 are subject to a maximum income limit of seven times the total annual rent for such unit (including
all utilities, except telephone) and except as described below regarding “economically mixed” multi-family developments. In
addition, the Authority’s rules and regulations authorize the establishment of lower income limits with respect to a multi-family
development in the resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority (the “Board”) approving, or in the commitment
for, the mortgage loan of such multi-family development. In the case of certain multi-family developments financed in whole
with Tax-Exempt Bonds after March 27, 2002, and prior to January 21, 2004, the Authority established an income limit of 50% of
the area median gross income for 50% of the units and an income limit of 100% (150% if the multi-family development is located
in a rural area) of the area median gross income for the remaining 50% of the units. In the case of certain multi-family
developments financed or to be financed by Subsidized Mortgage Loans described in “General Fund and Other Net Assets” in
“General Information About The Authority,” the Authority has established an income limit between 50% and 100% (50% or 60% in
the case of most multi-family developments) of the area median gross income for all or a portion (any such portion generally
being 40% or 50%) of the units with any remaining units in such developments subject to an income limit of 150% of area median
gross income, except that all of the units in such multi-family developments located in rural areas are subject to an income limit
of 150% of the area median gross income. In the case of multi-family developments financed by such Subsidized Mortgage Loans
and assisted under the federal Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program, the Authority will apply the income limits that are
applicable under such Program. See “Requirements Applicable to Developments Financed by Tax-Exempt AMT Bonds and Tax-
Exempt Non-AMT Bonds” and “Requirements Applicable to Developments Financed by Transitioned 1954 Tax-Exempt Non-
AMT Bonds” above for income limitations under the Code or predecessor federal tax law, and see Appendix F for income
limitations under certain federal programs.

“Economically Mixed” Multi-Family Developments

The Authority has financed and expects to finance in the future, “economically mixed” multi-family developments in
which a portion of the units (not to exceed 80%) will not be subject to the Authority’s income limits. The Authority is also
authorized to finance in such multi-family developments non-housing buildings or portions thereof for manufacturing,
industrial, commercial, governmental, educational, entertainment, community development, healthcare or nonprofit enterprises
or undertakings. The Authority currently offers the following options of such “economically mixed” multi-family developments
for multi-family developments receiving mortgage loans not financed by Tax-Exempt Bonds: (a) 20% of the units must target
households earning income of 80% or less of area median income, 20% of the units must target households earning income of
120% or less of area median income, and the remaining 60% of the units have no income restriction; (b) 10% of the units must
target households earning income of 30% or less of area median income, 10% of the units must target households earning
income of 100% or less of area median income, and the remaining 80% of units have no income restriction, (c) 20% of the units
must target households earning income of 80% or less of area median income, and the remaining 80% of the units have no
income restriction, and (d) 40% of the units must target households earning incomes 100% or less of area median income, and
the remaining 60% of the units have no income restriction, and (e) for multi-family developments receiving mortgage loans
financed by Subsidized Mortgage Loans, 30% of the units must target households earning income of 80% or less of area median
income, 20% of the units must target households earning income of 120% or less of area median income, and the remaining 50%
of the units have no income restriction. In the case of multi-family developments receiving mortgage loans financed by Tax-
Exempt Bonds, the Authority currently offers the following options for such “economically mixed” multi-family developments:
(a) 20% of the units must target households earning income of 50% or less of area median income and the remaining 80% of the
units have no income restriction or (b) 40% of the units must target households earning income of 60% or less of area median
income and the remaining 60% of the units have no income restrictions. All such developments which are 15,000 square feet or
larger and which have non-housing buildings or portions thereof must have at least 60% of their income derived from their
residential portion. The Authority has offered different options in the past and may modify, eliminate or replace the options
described above in the future.

Underwriting

When a sponsor submits a proposal for a multi-family development to the Authority, it is assigned to an Authority staff
Development Officer, who evaluates the proposed multi-family development concept, the multi-family development site and its
location. Based upon the initial screening, the Development Officer will then evaluate the suitability of the site and the adequacy
of the market for rental housing in the area. The evaluation will include an analysis of the site characteristics, the surrounding
land uses, the available utilities, transportation, employment opportunities, recreation opportunities, shopping facilities and
other factors affecting the site. An initial evaluation is made of the experience and financial capacity of the general contractor
and the qualifications of the architects, attorneys and rental agent of the proposed multi-family development at this time. The
Authority’s review includes a projection of rental levels and the adequacy of the rental and other income to sustain the
proposed multi-family development based upon the assumed occupancy rate and existing construction and financing costs, as
well as the compatibility of such rent levels with Authority programs and goals. During this stage of processing, the Executive
Director notifies the Board of the proposed mortgage loan and, absent any objection by the Board, approves the mortgage loan,
subject to satisfactory completion of the underwriting as described below.
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After the above-described evaluation and review, the sponsor must submit additional information, including an
analysis of the multi-family development’s costs and operating expenses, marketing and management information and
information about the sponsor and the development team. An analysis of the economic feasibility of the multi-family
development, including estimates of construction cost and rental and other income necessary to cover mortgage loan
amortization and operating expenses, is made. The Authority’s Development Officer evaluates overall market conditions, makes
a site evaluation, identifies and analyzes competitive projects, and gives an opinion on the present and projected demand for the
multi-family development in the market area. The analysis of overall market conditions includes trends and projections of
housing production, employment and population for the market area. The site evaluation includes access and topography of the
site, the neighborhood environment of the site, facilities serving the site and present and proposed uses of nearby land.

A review of the management and marketing information is made with attention to marketing strategies, operating
budgets and affirmative marketing. Particular emphasis is given to determining if the operating costs are realistic and if the
proposed managing agent is qualified to manage the multi-family development in conformity with the management standards
and procedures established by the Authority. Schematic and preliminary drawings, specifications and site plans are reviewed by
the Authority’s staff architect for design concept with emphasis being placed on functional use for the residents and
marketability over the life of the multi-family development. Energy conservation and economy are emphasized.

The Development Officer reviews the financial statements of both the sponsor and the general contractor and may also
obtain independent credit reports on both. All individuals who are principals in the proposed mortgagor must also submit
personal financial statements for review.

During its feasibility review, the Authority must determine that, based on the actual or projected interest rate and
amortization schedule on the mortgage loan and an operating expense budget, the mortgage loan amount will not result in rents
which adversely affect feasibility. Construction costs are reviewed and analyzed by the Authority’s staff to determine whether
such costs are reasonable based on costs of similar developments. An appraisal of the land is obtained from an independent real
estate appraiser. For the purpose of analyzing the feasibility of the multi-family development, the Authority’s underwriting
policies provide that (i) the loan-to-value ratio may not exceed 90%, in the case of for-profit mortgagors, and 100%, in the case of
non-profit mortgagors, (ii) the term of the mortgage loan may not exceed 35 years, and (iii) the debt service coverage, which is
calculated as the net operating income (i.e., the rental income less operating expenses) divided by the debt service on the
mortgage loan, may not be less than 110%; however, the foregoing policies may be waived or modified by the Authority at any
time. If upon completion of these analyses the Executive Director approves the multi-family development, a commitment for a
mortgage loan is issued with any terms or conditions specified by the Executive Director.

Commitment and Initial Closing

Upon receipt and acceptance of a mortgage loan commitment, the sponsor is to direct its attorney to prepare the
documents for the initial mortgage loan closing. After review and approval by the Authority of all loan documents and final
working drawings and specifications, the initial closing of the multi-family mortgage loan will be held. At this closing the
mortgagor and the Authority will execute all documents required by the commitment, and the mortgagor will make any required
equity investment and other deposits required by the multi-family mortgage loan commitment.

Construction

The Authority has established various requirements intended, in particular, to assure timely completion of
construction and to provide funds in the event difficulties are encountered during construction. Among these requirements,
which may be waived by the Authority, are the following:

. A holdback equal to 10% of construction disbursements until completion;

. Unconditional, irrevocable letters of credit (generally 10-15% of construction costs) to secure completion of
construction; and

. Letters of credit to secure correction of latent construction defects (generally 2.5% of construction costs).

Construction of the multi-family development generally commences within 30 days after the initial closing. During
construction, the Authority’s field inspectors make frequent on-site observations of the progress of construction. The Authority
approves or disapproves all construction loan disbursements and construction change orders.

Final Closing and Certifications

Upon completion of construction, the Authority makes a final review to determine that, based on its inspection of the
multi-family development and the representations of the architect, (i) construction of the multi-family development has been
completed in accordance with approved plans and specifications and other terms of the multi-family mortgage loan, and in
accordance with any applicable zoning, building, housing and other codes and ordinances, and (ii) the multi-family development
is in good and tenantable condition. If the final review is satisfactory, the general contractor and the mortgagor submit cost
certifications of all actual costs of construction and development. Such cost certificates must be completed by an independent
certified public accountant in accordance with the Authority’s guidelines, except that in the case of multi-family developments
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having limited rehabilitation, the mortgagor is required only to certify that the costs are reasonable, ordinary and necessary for
such rehabilitation.

Prior to final closing the Authority’s staff reviews and approves the cost certifications, final title insurance policy and
certain documents required by the Authority, such as final plans and specifications, as-built survey, waiver of liens and the
architect’s certification as to completion of the multi-family development. Upon final closing the final multi-family mortgage
loan amount is established and disbursement of the remaining mortgage loan proceeds is made.

The final multi-family mortgage loan amount may be reduced from the initial closing amount based upon the
certification of actual costs. Although it is the Authority’s present policy not to grant multi-family mortgage loan increases at the
final closing of a multi-family mortgage loan, a multi-family mortgage loan increase may be granted if deemed justified by the
Authority.

Permanent Financing

In the case of a mortgage loan which is to provide only the permanent financing for a multi-family development,
certain of the above described processing procedures relating to the closing of the mortgage loan and the construction of the
multi-family development are inapplicable (e.g., the closing of the multi-family mortgage loan is held upon completion of
construction, if any, of the multi-family development in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Authority
and upon satisfaction of the conditions of the commitment, and the proceeds of the multi-family mortgage loan are fully
disbursed at such closing).

Regulation and Management

Generally, each multi-family development is subject to a regulatory agreement between the Authority and the
mortgagor, which regulates the occupancy, management and operations of the multi-family development. However, the rents to
be charged for units in a multi-family development are established by the mortgagor without the approval of the Authority. The
management of the multi-family development is also governed by a housing management agreement between the mortgagor and
its management agent or, if the mortgagor and the management agent are the same entity, between the mortgagor and the
Authority. In the case of a multi-family development that is not financed by Tax-Exempt Bonds and that has an original principal
amount of less than $2 million, the Authority does not require the execution of a regulatory agreement or housing management
agreement but does require the inclusion of covenants in the deed of trust regulating the occupancy, operation and ownership
of the multi-family development.

The Authority has the right to terminate the housing management agreement for just cause as determined by the
Authority. After completion of construction and occupancy, the Authority periodically inspects the multi-family development
and conducts spot audits of the management agent’s verification of resident eligibility, receives a report on the multi-family
development accounts, accounts payable and receivable and multi-family development bank accounts, and generally observes
all management operations. Except in the case of mortgage loans having an outstanding principal balance of less than $1
million, the mortgagor is required to submit monthly reports to the Authority which include information on the status of
accounts payable and receivable for the multi-family development, occupancy of the units, and operating income and expenses.
When any potential problems are identified, the Authority attempts to determine the causes in order to facilitate the initiation of
appropriate corrective action, which may include management changes, additional equity contributions by the mortgagors,
foreclosure, loan modification and other appropriate remedial actions.

After final closing, each mortgagor typically pays a monthly amount to fund a reserve for replacements account for the
multi-family development. Such monthly amounts may be discontinued if the balance in such account is maintained at the
equivalent of three years of reserve deposits, a capital needs study shows that reserves are at a sufficient level or another party
is collecting reserves. In addition, on a case by case basis, the Authority may not require such monthly amount if the Authority
determines that such deposit is not warranted. The mortgagor may request the withdrawal of funds from the reserve for
replacements account for payment of the cost of major replacement items. Disbursements are to be made in accordance with
the Authority’s determinations as to what is in the best interest of the multi-family development.

An escrow account for the payment of real estate taxes and hazard insurance premiums is maintained by the Authority
for each multi-family development after final closing and is funded by monthly payments by the mortgagor of 1/12 of the
estimated annual real estate tax assessments and hazard insurance premiums. The Authority pays real estate taxes and hazard
insurance premiums for each multi-family development out of the sums available for each multi-family development from the
mortgagor’s deposits. The mortgagor is required to contribute additional funds in the event of a deficiency in the escrow
account.

See Appendix F for a description of certain additional restrictions imposed by federal law and regulations regarding
the use and occupancy of multi-family developments.

Delinquencies and Foreclosures; Risk of Loss

As of June 30, 2015, all bond financed multi-family mortgage loans in the Authority’s multi-family program were
current in their payments, except 2 mortgage loans having an aggregate principal balance of approximately $0.3 million. Since
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the inception of the Authority’s multi-family program in 1974, the Authority has acquired by foreclosure or deed in lieu of
foreclosure 35 developments financed, in whole or in part, with proceeds of bonds (including Rental Housing Bonds). The
Authority owns 6 of such developments (the “Owned Developments”) and has sold 29 of such developments to third parties. All
of such Owned Developments are currently financed and pledged under the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution. Also, since the
inception of the multi-family program, the Authority has foreclosed on an additional 20 bond financed developments that were
purchased by third parties at foreclosure, and the Authority has assigned four FHA insured multi-family mortgage loans to the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The rental and other income of the Owned Developments is, in many
instances, insufficient to provide a market rate return to the Authority on its capital investment in such Owned Developments.
For multi-family developments experiencing financial difficulties, the Authority may also restructure the timing of the receipt of
the principal and interest payments on the multi-family mortgage loan or reduce the interest rate on a temporary or permanent
basis. See “General Fund and Other Net Assets” in “General Information About The Authority” for a discussion of the
Authority’s experience with multi-family mortgage loans the Authority has financed with other sources.

The Authority conducts quarterly analyses of the risk of loan loss on its portfolio of multi-family mortgage loans in
order to determine the amount to be included in the calculation of the Authority’s Allowance for Loan Loss for estimated losses
on multi-family mortgage loans. For this analysis, the Authority develops a list of the multi-family developments that are
identified as being at risk of foreclosure and assigns one of four levels of risk (“high risk,” “medium risk,” “low risk” or
“possible”) to each of those at risk multi-family developments based upon a number of factors, including its mortgage loan
payment status and record, its debt service coverage from rental income, the willingness and ability of the mortgagor to fund
mortgage loan payment deficiencies, its physical condition, the mortgagor’s operation and management of the development, the
financial status of any other multi-family developments that the principals in the mortgagor have financed with the Authority
and such other factors as the Authority determines to be related to the risk of loss. In addition, the Authority estimates the
potential loss for each of the at-risk multi-family developments calculated as the difference between the outstanding principal
balance of the mortgage loan and the value of the development financed by such mortgage loan as determined by the Authority
based upon the amount of debt financing (assumed to be fully amortizing over 30 years with level payments and at the lesser of
the existing interest rate on the Authority’s mortgage loan or the average of the multi-family interest rates then being offered by
the Authority) which could be supported by the net operating income of the multi-family development. Reductions are made in
the potential loss for any operating and replacement reserves of the multi-family development and for the value of federal low-
income housing tax credits, if any, that may be taken over the balance of the initial 10 years of the operation of the multi-family
development. Based on such level of risk and potential loss, the Authority includes an amount for each such at-risk multi-family
development in the Authority’s Allowance for Loan Loss. Set forth below is a chart that lists, as of June 30, 2015, the number of
such at-risk multi-family developments at each level of risk, the aggregate principal balance of the mortgage loans financing
such developments, and the amount included in the Authority’s Allowance for Loan Loss for the multi-family developments at
such risk level.

Amount
Included in
Principal Allowance for
Foreclosure Number of Balance Loan Loss

Risk Level Developments (in millions) (in millions)
High 12 $41.5 $20.6
Medium 8 74 1.9
Low 34 208.1 5.6
Possible 59 227.2 1.6
TOTAL 113 $484.2 $29.7

The Authority also includes in the Allowance for Loan Loss additional amounts for all other multi-family developments
based upon percentages (ranging from 1% to 2%) of the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage loans financing such
other developments and may include other additional amounts in the Allowance for Loan Loss to cover risks on multi-family
developments not otherwise covered by the above described amounts. The total of all of the foregoing amounts that were
included in the Authority’s Allowance for Loan Loss as of June 30, 2015 is $57.6 million. The Authority’s total Allowance for
Loan Loss which includes such total amount and amounts for possible losses on single family mortgage loans financed by the
Authority was $193.0 million as of June 30, 2015. The Authority may at any time modify the above described analysis and
calculations as it shall determine to reflect its risk of loan loss.

MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS

The Authority makes certain single family and multi-family mortgage loans supported or financed by net assets of the
Authority (see “General Fund and Other Net Assets” below for a description of mortgage loan programs effected with assets in
the General Fund). The Authority also administers the federal low income housing tax credit program under Section 42 of the
Code and federal grant or subsidy programs and assists the Commonwealth’s Department of Housing and Community
Development in the administration of the federal HOME loan and grant program and state loan and grant programs. Mortgage
loans and other assets financed or acquired by money from federal or state grant or subsidy programs are not pledged or
available for the payment of any of the Authority’s bonds or other obligations.
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CERTAIN PROGRAMMATIC CONSIDERATIONS
Geographic Concentration in Virginia

Different geographic regions of the United States from time to time will experience weaker regional economic
conditions and housing markets, and, consequently, may experience higher rates of loss and delinquency on mortgage loans
generally. Any concentration of the mortgage loans in a region may present risk considerations in addition to those generally
present for similar securities without that concentration. If the mortgage loans are concentrated in one or more regions, a
downturn in the economy in these regions of the country would more greatly affect the mortgage portfolio than if the mortgage
portfolio were more diversified. In particular, all of the Authority’s multi-family mortgage loans and single family mortgage
loans are secured by mortgaged properties in Virginia.

Because of the geographic concentration of the mortgaged properties within Virginia, losses on the Authority’s multi-
family mortgage loans and single family mortgage loans may be higher than would be the case if the mortgaged properties were
more geographically diversified. For example, some of the mortgaged properties may be more susceptible to certain types of
special hazards (such as hurricanes, floods, fires and other natural disasters) and major civil disturbances than residential
properties located in other parts of the country. In addition, the economy of Virginia may be adversely affected to a greater
degree than the economies of other areas of the country by certain regional developments. If the residential real estate markets
in an area of concentration experience an overall decline in property values after the dates of origination of the respective
mortgage loans, then the rates of delinquencies, foreclosures and losses on the mortgage loans may increase and the increase
may be substantial.

The concentration of the Authority’s multi-family mortgage loans and single family mortgage loans with specific
characteristics relating to the types of properties, property characteristics, and geographic location are likely to change over
time. Principal payments may affect the concentration levels. Principal payments could include voluntary prepayments and
prepayments resulting from casualty or condemnation, defaults and liquidations and from repurchases of mortgage loans due to
breaches of representations and warranties by the Authority’s Originating Lenders.

The geographic concentration of the Authority’s single family mortgage loans and multi-family mortgage loans
(including the Mortgage Loans) may increase the risk to the Authority of losses on those loans which, in turn, could affect the
financial performance of the Authority.

Changes in Federal or State Law and Programs

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), which
contains provisions affecting the Authority’s single family programs, was signed into law. Included in the Dodd-Frank Act are
provisions that: (i) establish the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFPB”) within the Federal Reserve with broad
authority to protect consumers from unfair or deceptive financial products, acts or practices and reassign to the CFPB
responsibility for enforcement of the major federal consumer financial protection laws; (ii) prohibit compensation to loan
originators based on the terms of the loan, including the interest rate but excluding the principal amount of the loan, and
prohibit compensation to loan originators from a consumer and another person, such as a creditor, in the same transaction,
subject to certain exceptions; (iii) prohibit steering of loan applicants to loans that the applicants lack a reasonable ability to
repay or that have predatory characteristics or effects and prohibit steering from a “qualified mortgage” (defined as a mortgage
loan that satisfies certain requirements as to loan terms and underwriting set forth in regulations issued by the CFPB which
took effect January 10, 2014) for which the applicant is qualified to a loan that is not a “qualified mortgage;” (iv) prohibit acts or
practices that violate appraiser independence; (v) establish new loan servicing standards, including requirements for periodic
mortgage statements, requirements for interest rate adjustment notices, time requirements for the prompt crediting of mortgage
loan payments and for the provision of payoff statements, requirements for force-placed insurance that is obtained by the loan
servicer upon termination of hazard insurance, and requirements regarding error resolution and information requests; and (vi)
authorize various damages for violations by loan originators and creditors of the Dodd-Frank Act.

On January 17, 2013, the CFPB issued its final regulations regarding loan servicing standards, as described in (v)
above. Such servicing regulations exempt the Authority and other state housing finance agencies from the provisions therein,
except the requirement for notices of interest rate changes of adjustable rate mortgage loans, the requirements for the prompt
crediting of payments by the borrower and for the prompt provision of payoff statements requested by the borrower, the
restrictions on force-placed insurance purchased by lenders upon a failure to maintain the hazard insurance on the property, the
procedures for resolution of errors by lenders and for responses to information requests by borrowers, and the prohibitions
against foreclosure if the borrower is less than 120 days delinquent or if the borrower is performing pursuant to the terms of a
loss mitigation agreement. Because of its loan underwriting and servicing practices, the Authority does not anticipate, based on
current facts and circumstances, that compliance with the final CFPB regulations will have a material impact on the Authority
or its current programs and operations. However, no assurance can be given that the Dodd-Frank Act and any future
regulations to be promulgated thereunder or the consideration or enactment of any other such legislation or regulations will not
have an adverse effect on the Authority’s single family programs, its financial condition, the value of, the timing or amount of
payments of, or the security for the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds or the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds or other risks to
the Authority or the owners of such Bonds.
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In recent years, a number of financial institutions and related entities have announced large losses as a result of their
mortgage activities and the increasing number of defaults and foreclosures on such mortgages. The United States Congress may
pass additional consumer protection and bankruptcy legislation (including legislation that would allow bankruptcy courts to
reduce or “cram down” the principal amounts and/or interest rates on mortgage loans on principal residences) as a result of the
adverse effects of certain existing mortgages, mortgage origination, and mortgage servicing on individuals and families in the
United States. Likewise, the Virginia General Assembly may enact consumer protection legislation relating to mortgage loan
origination and servicing. Such legislation, if enacted, could have an adverse effect on the Authority’s single family mortgage
programs, including its ability to originate new single family mortgage loans, to collect payments under single family mortgage
loans and to foreclose on property securing single family mortgage loans.

Legislation or regulations may be enacted or promulgated or governmental programs may be implemented or
enhanced that would facilitate the refinancing of single family mortgage loans at lower interest rates, particularly in situations
in which the principal balance of the existing single family mortgage loan is greater than the market value of the residence being
financed. Under two such programs, described herein, the Authority finances FHA Streamline Refinance Loans and VA
Streamline Refinance Loans. Such refinancing programs and any other programs authorized by future legislation or regulation
could result in substantial prepayments of mortgage loans, including the single family mortgage loans financed by the Authority.
Except to the extent that such prepayments are the result of the refinancing by the Authority of its single family mortgage loans,
such prepayments will have the effect of reducing the outstanding principal balance of the Authority’s single family loan
portfolio and thereby adversely affect the Authority’s revenues. The failure to receive full payment of the principal balances on
any of the Authority’s mortgage loans in connection with any such refinancings (if acceptance of less than full payment is
required by any such legislation, regulations or programs) would result in losses on such mortgage loans and would have an
adverse impact on the Authority’s revenues. No assurance can be given as to whether or not any such legislation or regulations
will be enacted or promulgated or as to the impact on the Authority’s revenues.

A number of federal and state regulatory authorities have recently taken action against certain loan originators and
servicers for alleged violations of federal and state laws. Certain of those actions prohibit those servicers from pursuing
foreclosure actions. In response to alleged abusive lending and servicing practices, the federal government or the
Commonwealth of Virginia could enact legislation or implement regulatory requirements that impose limitations on the ability
of mortgage loan servicers to take actions (such as pursuing foreclosures) that may be essential to service and preserve the
value of the single-family loans. Any such limitations that applied to the Authority’s single-family loans could adversely affect
the Authority’s ability to collect amounts due on such loans and could impair the value of such loans.

Legislation or regulations, other than as described above, affecting the Authority’s single family or multi-family
mortgage loan programs or its bonds may be considered and enacted or issued by the federal government or the
Commonwealth. No assurances can be given as to the likelihood, content or impact on the Authority of any such legislation or
regulations.

Prepayments

A decline in mortgage interest rates will generally result in an increase in prepayments on mortgage loans. Such
prepayments on the mortgage loans may have the effect of reducing the outstanding principal balances of the Authority’s
mortgage loan portfolio and thereby adversely affecting the Authority’s revenues. No assurances can be given as to future
changes in mortgage interest rates or prepayments or the financial impact of such prepayments on the Authority’s revenues. See
“Changes in Federal or State Law and Programs” above for a discussion of possible legislation or regulations that also may have
an impact on prepayments.
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PART III - GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE AUTHORITY
History and Location

The Authority is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth constituting a public instrumentality. It was established
in 1972 to assist in meeting the needs and achieving the objectives of the Commonwealth with respect to housing for persons
and households of low and moderate income. The principal office of the Authority is located at 601 South Belvidere Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23220, telephone: (804) 782-1986. The Authority’s website address is www.vhda.com.

Commissioners
The Commissioners of the Authority consist of eight members appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the
General Assembly and three ex-officio members — a representative of the Virginia Board of Housing and Community

Development, the Treasurer of the Commonwealth and the Director of the Virginia Department of Housing and Community
Development. The Authority’s Commissioners are:

Term Expires

Name Position June 30 Occupation
Timothy M. Chapman...... Commissioner and 2018 Managing Member, Chapman Development LLC, Reston
Chairman
Sarah Stedfast................... Commissioner and 2017 Sales Manager, New Towne Mortgage, Norfolk
Vice Chairman
Kermit E. Hale. .................. Commissioner 2019* General Manager, MKB Realtors, Roanoke
Charles McConnell........... Commissioner 2019* Retired, Executive Director, Wise County Redevelopment and

Housing Authority, Abingdon

H. Richard Ashe ............... Commissioner 2016 Owner of American Eastern Inc., a Real Estate Development
Company, Yorktown

Douglas R. Fahl................ Commissioner 2016 Retired, Executive Vice President, Dewberry Consultants LLC,
Leesburg
Marjorie N. Leon .............. Commissioner 2016 Program Associate, Family and Consumer Sciences, Virginia

Cooperative Extension Partnership, Warrenton

Lemella Y. Carrington...... Commissioner 2018 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher assisted tenant, Environment
Service Specialist, Bon Secours Health Care, Richmond

Manju Ganeriwala............ Commissioner ex-officio  Treasurer, Commonwealth of Virginia, Richmond

William C. Shelton ........... Commissioner ex-officio  Director, Virginia Department of Housing and Community
Development, Richmond

Vacancy™........cccccevevevennen. Commissioner ex-officio Member, Virginia Board of Housing and Community Development

*  Subject to confirmation by the General Assembly
*#* A representative from the Virginia Board of Housing and Community Development has not yet been appointed.

Management Structure; Principal Staff Officers

The Executive Director is appointed by the Board of Commissioners and implements the policies of such Board and
manages the operations of the Authority. The Authority has one business unit for multi-family loan origination, servicing and
compliance and one business unit for single family loan origination, servicing and compliance. Listed below are the Authority’s
principal officers directly involved in the single family lending programs and the multi-family lending programs and their
responsibilities.

Susan F. Dewey. Executive Director. Ms. Dewey joined the Authority in 1999 as Executive Director. Prior to joining the
Authority, Ms. Dewey was employed by the Commonwealth of Virginia as Treasurer, Deputy Treasurer, Director of Debt
Management and Director of Financial Policy. Ms. Dewey is a Certified Public Accountant and has an undergraduate degree and
a Master of Business Administration degree from The College of William & Mary.
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Patrick J. Carey. Managing Director of Finance. Mr. Carey joined the Authority in 1987 as Finance Manager and served
as Finance Director or Director of Finance from June 2003 to February 2013. Mr. Carey is a graduate of the University of
Richmond and has a Master of Business Administration degree from Virginia Commonwealth University.

Paul M. Brennan. General Counsel. Mr. Brennan joined the Authority in 1990 as Assistant Counsel and served as
Deputy General Counsel from January 2006 to July 2012. Prior to joining the Authority, Mr. Brennan was engaged in the
practice of law in Richmond, Virginia. Mr. Brennan is a member of the Virginia State Bar and is a graduate of the University of
Notre Dame and the University of Notre Dame Law School.

Arthur N. Bowen, III. Managing Director of Rental Housing. Mr. Bowen joined the Authority in 2000 as Public Policy
Director and served as Managing Director of Finance and Administration from January 2003 to July 2012. Prior to joining the
Authority, Mr. Bowen was employed as Deputy Secretary of Transportation for the Commonwealth of Virginia, and prior to that
he served as Deputy Treasurer. Mr. Bowen is a graduate of the University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.

Janet Wiglesworth. Managing Director of Homeownership. Ms. Wiglesworth joined the Authority in 1998 as Director of
Business Systems. Prior to joining the Authority, Ms. Wiglesworth was employed as Senior Vice President for First Chesapeake
Financial Corporation. Ms. Wiglesworth is a graduate of Virginia Commonwealth University.

Program Funds

The funds for the Authority’s mortgage loan programs are derived from the proceeds of its notes and bonds,
prepayments and repayments on mortgage loans, excess revenues and net assets. Certain information on such notes and bonds
is set forth in footnote 7 of the Authority’s financial statements attached hereto as Appendix A. The amount of notes and bonds
which the Authority may issue or have outstanding is limited only by the provisions in the Code which restrict the amount of
tax-exempt bonds which may be issued and by the provision of the Code of Virginia which limits the outstanding principal
amount of Authority obligations secured by a capital reserve fund to $1.5 billion, excluding certain refunding transactions. The
Authority is currently in compliance with such limits in the Code and the Code of Virginia. The Authority pays its expenses from
the income generated from its operations and has received no funds from the Commonwealth other than an initial advance,
which the Authority has repaid.

Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Position

The following is a summary of the Authority’s revenues, expenses and net position at year end for each of the fiscal
years from 2010 through 2015. Pursuant to accounting regulations, beginning with fiscal year 2013 the Authority’s financial
statements use the term net position where the term net assets was used previously. The net position of certain funds is
restricted and is subject to varying valuation methodologies pursuant to contracts with bond owners. The totaling of the
accounts does not indicate that the combined net position is available for the payment of principal of or interest on the
Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds, Homeownership Mortgage Bonds or Rental Housing Bonds, for the payment of the Authority’s
operating expenses or for any other purpose. The summary should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and
notes appearing in Appendix A. The amounts in the summary for each year ended June 30 are derived from the audited financial
statements for each such year.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Memorandum Only — Combined totals

Revenues:
Interest on mortgage 1oans..........cccceeevveevereeveneeneenenns
Investment income.....................

Expenses:
INEETEST ..o
Pass-through grants disbursed...........c.ccccccevrueeenuecnnneee.
Housing Choice Voucher program............ccccceeveeeennene
Total administrative expenses, etc.........coceeveveeveeverennene
Total EXPENSES ...c.eeeveeeeeieeieieeeereeeeee et saeeees
Excess of revenues over eXpenses...........coceeeevereeneereeenne
Net position at beginning of period ..........ccccceeeveverceennens

Net position at end of period .........cccceeceeeeeveeceenenveenennns

Net position of the General Fund at end of period........
* These figures include changes required by GASB 65.

Year Ended June 30
(in millions)

2010 2011 2012 2013* 2014* 2015*
(Not included in independent accountants’ report)

$513 $505 $489 $464 $440 $411
18 15 17 20 11 28
128 158 120 128 120 119
69 72 37 7 10 6
32 27 44 54 32 36
760 7 707 673 613 600
336 321 296 266 223 197
128 158 120 128 120 119
70 69 39 8 9 8
124 133 165 172 128 99
658 681 620 574 480 423
102 96 87 99 133 177
2,119 2,221 2,317 2,404 2,510 2,643
$2,221  $2,317  $2,404  $2,510  $2,643  $2,820
$167 $154 $99 $134 $127 $143

The decrease in the net position of the General Fund at the end of the period between June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012
was due primarily to the Authority paying most of its general operating expenses from the General Fund and, unlike prior fiscal
years, not transferring amounts from non-General Fund accounts necessary to offset such expenses. In future years, the
Authority expects to continue to pay its general operating expenses from the General Fund and to maintain the General Fund's
net position position at a level determined to be appropriate by the Authority.

Selected Figures Excluding Effects of GASB 31

Statement No. 31 of The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 31), Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools (“GASB 31”) requires investments, but not liabilities or mortgage
loans, held by governmental entities to be reported at fair market value on the balance sheet with changes in fair market value
to be included as adjustments to revenues in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. The following
summary excludes the effects of GASB 31 and is subject to the qualifications set forth in the previous paragraph.

Year ended June 30
(in millions)
2010 2011 2012 2013* 2014* 2015%
(Not included in independent accountants’ report)

Memorandum Only — Combined totals

Excess of revenues over expenses

excluding GASB 31 adjustments $61 $85 $78 $97 $128 $160
Net position at end of period

excluding GASB 31 adjustments $2,239 $2,324  $2,402 $2,506 $2,634 $2,794
Net position of the General Fund

at end of period excluding

GASB 31 adjustments $183 $166 $107 $142 $133 $120

* These figures include changes required by GASB 65.

The GASB 31 valuation adjustments to investments owned by the Authority consist of unrealized gains or losses
necessary to report investment assets at fair market value on the specified measurement date.

Prior and Anticipated Financings of the Authority

As of June 30, 2015 the Authority had approximately $5.0 billion of notes and bonds outstanding (see Appendix A).
Subsequent to such date, the Authority issued (or currently expects to issue) the following notes and bonds, if any, in addition

to the Offered Bonds:
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Par Issuance

Issue Amount Date
Rental Housing Bonds, 2015 Series C-Non-AMT $22,625,000 August 5, 2015
Investments

Moneys in the General Fund may be invested by the Authority in (i) obligations or securities which are lawful
investments for fiduciaries as set forth in Section 26-40 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, (ii) any investments and
deposits authorized by Sections 2.1-327 through 2.1-327.13 of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, permitting the investment
of the funds of the Commonwealth and its political subdivisions, such as the Authority, in certain other types of investments,
and (iii) any other investments permitted under any bond resolution or trust indenture of the Authority which, when acquired,
have, or are general obligations of issuers who have, long-term ratings of at least AA or Aa or the highest short-term ratings, as
applicable, by two rating agencies, one of which shall be Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s or any successor thereto. Moneys
pledged pursuant to a bond resolution or trust indenture of the Authority may be invested in any manner permitted by such
bond resolution or trust indenture. Investment decisions are made by the Authority’s staff. It is the Authority’s current
investment policy not to (i) invest long-term those moneys expected to be utilized in the short-term or (ii) effect leverage
transactions (e.g. reverse repurchase agreements or other borrowings) for the principal purpose of profiting from changes in
interest rates. The Authority reserves the right to modify its investment policy from time to time.

As of June 30, 2015, the Authority’s current investment portfolio consists principally of direct or indirect obligations of
the United States of America or of its agencies and instrumentalities, including but not limited to organizations such as Fannie
Mae and Ginnie Mae (collectively, “Federal Obligations”), corporate notes, bonds (including municipal bonds) and debentures,
asset backed securities, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and commercial paper, all of which satisfy the
requirements in the above referenced Sections of the Code of Virginia (see footnote 5 of the Authority’s financial statements
attached hereto as Appendix A). The secondary market for investments which are not Federal Obligations has been in the past
and may be in the future very illiquid. No assurances can be given that such investments can be sold prior to maturity or, if
sold, can be sold at a price which is not materially less than the Authority’s capital investment in such investment.

Footnote 5(b) of the Authority’s financial statements attached hereto as Exhibit A sets forth a combined statement of
the credit risk of the Authority’s investments in the General Fund and under its bond resolutions, which overall is concentrated
in Money Market Securities, Agency Mortgage Backed Securities and Reverse Repurchase Agreements. As of June 30, 2015, the
Authority had $452,594,736 invested in Agency Mortgage Backed Securities, all or substantially all of which were Ginnie Mae
securities. As of June 30, 2015, the Authority’s counterparties in the Reverse Repurchase Agreements category were as follows:

Counterparty Principal Amount
Cantor Fitzgerald $340,000,000

Such Reverse Repurchase Agreements are collateralized on a daily basis, generally with U.S. Treasury and agency securities, at
a level equal to 102% of the market value thereof. As of June 30, 2015, the Authority’s counterparties in the Money Market
Securities category were as follows:

Counterparty Principal Amount

Toyota Motor Credit $ 59,982,433

US Bank Commercial Paper $168,764,866
$228,747,299

The Common Fund

The Authority operates a non-regulated, internal only, pooled investment fund (the “Common Fund”) consisting at
present of various investments with maturity dates generally not later than 366 days from the date any such investment is
allocated to the Common Fund; provided, however, that investments that have variable interest rates which are subject to
mandatory market rate adjustment not less frequently than quarterly are permitted if their maturity dates at the time of
allocation to the Common Fund do not exceed three years and if such investments do not exceed 10% of the Common Fund at
the time of purchase. At present, all of such investments are investments permitted by the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds
Resolution, the Rental Housing Bonds Resolution, and the Homeownership Mortgage Bonds Resolution.

The shares of the Common Fund represent an undivided interest in the investments comprising the Common Fund.
The Authority’s investment accounting system allocates shares of the Common Fund to various funds of the Authority,
including Investment Obligations of the Offered Bonds and the Currently Outstanding Bonds, pro rata based upon the amounts
invested in the Common Fund. It is expected that a substantial portion of the Investment Obligations of the Commonwealth
Mortgage Bonds, Homeownership Mortgage Bonds and Rental Housing Bonds will be comprised of Common Fund shares.
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General Fund and Other Net Assets

The General Fund contains the net assets of the Authority not pledged as security under the Commonwealth Mortgage
Bonds Resolution, Rental Housing Bonds Resolution or Homeownership Mortgage Bonds Resolution. The General Fund is used
to pay the operating expenses of the Authority and is a source of payment for all general obligations of the Authority, including
the Offered Bonds, although it is not specifically pledged to secure the Offered Bonds. Moneys comprising the General Fund’s
net assets may be used for any lawful purpose of the Authority. The Authority expects to continue to pay its general operating
expenses from the General Fund and to maintain the General Fund’s net asset position at a level determined to be appropriate
by the Authority. No assurance can be given that moneys will be available in the General Fund for payment of debt service on
the Offered Bonds at any particular time.

The Authority has conducted and continues to conduct various subsidized mortgage loan programs financed or
supported by the net assets of the Authority, including the net assets of the General Fund. Each mortgage loan so financed or
supported is herein referred to as a “Subsidized Mortgage Loan.” A mortgage loan is a Subsidized Mortgage Loan if the effective
interest rate thereon is at or below the effective cost of the capital (debt or net asset) of the Authority so financing such
mortgage loan. For a Subsidized Mortgage Loan financed with net assets, the effective cost of such net assets is assumed to be
the effective cost that the Authority would have paid (at the time of the issuance of the Authority’s commitment to finance such
Subsidized Mortgage Loan) to finance such Subsidized Mortgage Loan with debt capital on which interest is not excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Prior to July 1, 2005, the Authority made available the amount of $275.7 million for Subsidized Mortgage Loans,
principally for the elderly, disabled, homeless and other low income persons. The Authority implemented, beginning July 1,
2005, a new methodology for determining the amount of its net assets that will be used to provide reduced interest rates for
Subsidized Mortgage Loans and to provide grants and otherwise subsidize its programs (the “Subsidized Programs”). Under this
methodology as currently in effect, the annual amount of the Authority’s net assets to be dedicated, on a present value basis as
determined by the Authority, to provide reduced interest rates or other support for Subsidized Mortgage Loans or to otherwise
provide housing grants and subsidies under its programs, including bond financed programs, shall be equal to 20% of the
average of the Authority’s excess revenue (as unadjusted for the effect of GASB 31 and 53) for the preceding five fiscal years
(the “Percentage Amount”). Annual allocations that are unused are carried forward for use in subsequent fiscal years. Such
annual amounts will, in effect, represent the present values of the costs to the Authority to finance (at interest rates below the
Authority’s capital costs as described above) or otherwise support the Subsidized Mortgage Loans and to provide grants and
other housing subsidies. This use of net assets is expected to reduce the amount available to the Authority for payment of its
obligations (including Bond Amounts) or for other purposes permitted by the Act. The principal amount of Subsidized Mortgage
Loans that will be available at reduced interest rates under this methodology will vary depending on such factors as the amount
of the interest rate reductions and the expected lives of the Subsidized Mortgage Loans. Furthermore, the use of such annual
amounts for grants or other subsidies will affect such principal amount of the Subsidized Mortgage Loans. The amounts to be
made available under this methodology in the future will be subject to review by the Authority of the impact thereof on its
financial position. The Authority has financed and expects to finance some, but not all, of such Subsidized Mortgage Loans, in
whole or in part, with funds under its various bond resolutions. The total of the annual amounts used or expected to be made
available for Subsidized Programs under this methodology from fiscal year 2005 through fiscal year 2015 is $171 million. In prior
years, the Authority has allocated most of the Percentage Amount for Subsidized Mortgage Loans. However, the Authority
expects to increase the proportion of the Percentage Amount that will be made available for grants in future years. Such
increase will have a more immediate negative impact on the Authority’s excess revenue because grants are expensed in the year
made whereas the cost of Subsidized Loans is spread over the expected lives of the Subsidized Loans, although the long term
negative impact on the Authority’s excess revenues is expected to be the same.

The Authority may, in its discretion, apply net assets in excess of the Percentage Amount for its Subsidized Programs
or may change the Percentage Amount or methodology for calculating the amount of net assets to be made available for
Subsidized Mortgage Loans, grants and other subsidies. In 2007 the Authority increased the amount of net assets in excess of
the Percentage Amount for fiscal year 2007 Subsidized Programs by approximately $3.1 million in order to provide additional
funds for multi-family rental developments to be financed by the Authority. In addition to the Percentage Amount, the Authority
has also allocated $10 million annually for fiscal years 2016, 2017, and 2018, for (i) public housing developments assisted under
HUD’s Rental Assistance Demonstration Program and (ii) housing assistance for persons with intellectual and developmental
disabilities. No assurance can be given that the Authority will not apply additional net assets in excess of the Percentage
Amount for existing or new Subsidized Programs in the current or future fiscal years or as to the amount of net assets that may
be so applied.

As of June 30, 2015, approximately $70 million aggregate principal balance of multi-family mortgage loans financed by
General Fund net assets was outstanding. As of June 30, 2015, all of such multi-family mortgage loans were current in their
payments, except 6 mortgage loans having an aggregate principal balance of approximately $2 million that were delinquent. As
of June 30, 2015, the Authority had acquired by foreclosure 14 multi-family developments that were financed, in whole or in
part, by General Fund net assets, owned one of such developments and had sold 13 of such developments to third parties. In
addition, as of such date, the Authority had foreclosed on five developments that were purchased by third parties at the
foreclosure sales. Two of the developments acquired by foreclosure and owned by the Authority and one of the developments
purchased by third parties at the foreclosure sales were also financed, in part, with the proceeds of bonds and are included in
the developments described in “Delinquencies and Foreclosures; Risk of Loss” in “The Multi-Family Program.” The rental and
other income of such owned developments is, in many instances, insufficient to provide a market rate return to the Authority on
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its capital investment in such owned developments. As of June 30, 2015, approximately $430.4 million aggregate principal
balance of single family mortgage loans financed by General Fund net assets (including approximately $387.0 million of such
loans securitized through the issuance of Ginnie Mae securities held in the General Fund) was outstanding; 3.7% of such single
family mortgage loans having an aggregate principal balance of approximately $15.8 million were two or more months
delinquent in monthly payments; and 1.0% of such single family mortgage loans having an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $4.4 million were in foreclosure.

The Authority has a $100 million revolving credit agreement (the “Bank of America Agreement”) with Bank of America,
N.A. (“Bank of America”) to provide a source of immediately available funds for the general corporate purposes of the
Authority, including, at the option of the Authority, the payment of the purchase price of bonds which are tendered but are not
remarketed. Upon submission of a completed and duly executed request for advance, the Authority may draw funds under the
Bank of America Agreement up to the maximum outstanding amount of $100 million, provided that no default by the Authority
under the Bank of America Agreement shall have occurred and be continuing. Defaults include (1) failure by the Authority to
pay any amounts due under the Bank of America Agreement; (2) any representation or warranty made by the Authority in or
pursuant to the Bank of America Agreement being incorrect or untrue in any material respect as of the date of the Bank of
America Agreement or as of the date of any extension thereof; (3) any default by the Authority under any mortgage, indenture,
contract, agreement, undertaking or instrument evidencing debt of the Authority that is not remedied within 30 days notice by
the Authority to Bank of America and that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Authority or
the ability of the Authority to perform its obligations under the Bank of America Agreement; (4) the bankruptcy of the
Authority, certain acts of insolvency by the Authority, or the rendering of any final judgment against the Authority that remains
unsatisfied for 60 days; (5) the assignment to the Authority of a rating by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s below Baa or BBB,
respectively, or a withdrawal by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s of their applicable rating of the Authority; (6) failure by the
Authority to comply with certain of its covenants in the Bank of America Agreement requiring the Authority (a) not to invest its
own funds in a manner which could reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect on the Authority or the ability
of the Authority to perform its obligations under the Bank of America Agreement, (b) to submit financial records and
information, including the Authority’s official statements, to Bank of America, (c) to provide notice to Bank of America of any
default by the Authority under the Bank of America Agreement or any default or other event under any instrument evidencing
the Authority’s debt that may result in the accelerating of the maturity of such debt and could have a material adverse effect on
the Authority, (d) to provide notice to Bank of America of any material litigation pending or threatened against the Authority or
of any initiative, referendum, or similar events reasonably expected to have any material adverse effect on the Authority, (e) to
maintain adequate and proper books and records, (f) to use best efforts to maintain the Authority’s existence and the
Authority’s rights and privileges material to its ability to repay obligations under the Bank of America Agreement, and (g) to
comply with laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Virginia and the United States; and (7) merger, consolidation or
disposition of all or a substantial part of the Authority’s property reasonably expected to result in any material adverse effect on
the Authority. In the event of any default by the Authority under the Bank of America Agreement, Bank of America may
terminate such Agreement and may demand immediate payment of any and all amounts drawn and outstanding thereunder. Any
such demand may adversely affect the financial condition of the Authority, including its ability to use General Fund and other
net assets to pay Bond Amounts, to the extent Assets and income therefrom are not sufficient to pay such Bond Amounts. The
Bank of America Agreement will terminate on December 1, 2015, but the Authority has selected Bank of America to provide a
similar line of credit under a new contract expected to be executed in October of 2015 which the Authority expects will have an
initial term expiring December 1, 2016 and an initial amount available of $100 million with the option to increase the line up to
$200 million in increments of $20 million. All outstanding amounts are due and payable on the termination date. As of June 30,
2015, $57 million was outstanding under the Bank of America Agreement.

The Authority from time to time issues notes to the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (the “FHLB”) under an
Advances, Specific Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement for Nonmember Mortgagees dated September 27, 1995 (the “FHLB
Agreement”). The proceeds of the notes issued to the FHLB or other qualifying assets are deposited with the FHLB and serve as
collateral for the notes. Any such other collateral is periodically marked to market, and the Authority may be required to post
additional collateral if the market value falls below thresholds specified in the FHLB Agreement. Each note may be redeemed at
par at any time. The Authority has issued, and may from time to time hereafter issue, notes to the FHLB and utilize the
proceeds thereof for any valid corporate purpose. Events of default under the FHLB Agreement include (1) any failure to pay
when due the amounts owed under the notes or to perform any other obligation of the Authority under the FHLB Agreement;
(2) any failure to maintain adequate qualifying collateral free of encumbrances; (3) bankruptcy and certain other acts of
insolvency by the Authority; and (4) any material adverse change in the Authority’s financial condition. In the event of any
default by the Authority under the FHLB Agreement, the FHLB may demand immediate payment of any and all amounts
outstanding under the notes and may take possession of and sell the collateral. If the collateral shall be insufficient to repay all
amounts due under the FHLB Agreement, any such demand may adversely affect the financial condition of the Authority,
including its ability to use General Fund and other net assets to pay Bond Amounts, to the extent that Assets and income
therefrom are not sufficient to pay such Bond Amounts. The Authority is currently negotiating a new Advances and Security
Agreement with FHLB under which the Authority may request advances and other credit products and arrangements (including
letters of credit, guarantees, and derivative transactions) approved by FHLB for which the Authority would provide collateral,
including deposits, federal government and agency securities, and the Authority’s single-family and multi-family mortgage loans.
The Authority can give no assurances as to whether such agreement will be executed or as to the final terms and conditions
thereof.
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

Management of the Virginia Housing Development Authority (the Authority) offers readers of its financial report
this overview and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.
Readers are encouraged to consider this information in conjunction with the Authority’s basic financial statements,
accompanying notes, and supplementary information, which follow this section.

Organization Overview

The Authority is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the Commonwealth), created under the
Virginia Housing Development Authority Act (the Act) enacted by the General Assembly in 1972, as amended.
The Act empowers the Authority to finance the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, and ownership of
affordable housing for home ownership or occupancy by low-or moderate-income Virginians. To raise funds for
its mortgage loan operations, the Authority sells tax-exempt and taxable notes and bonds and mortgage backed
securities to investors. The notes, bonds, and other indebtedness of the Authority are not obligations of the
Commonwealth and the Commonwealth is not liable for repayments of such obligations. Furthermore, as a
self-sustaining organization, the Authority does not draw upon the general taxing authority of the Commonwealth.
Operating revenues are generated primarily from interest on mortgage loans, program administration fees, and
investment income.

In addition to its major mortgage loan programs, the Authority also administers, on a fee basis, various other
programs related to its lending activities. Such programs include the Housing Choice Voucher program, which
provides rental subsidies from federal funds, and the federal Low Income Housing Tax Credit program, which
awards income tax credits for the purpose of developing low-income multi-family housing projects. The Authority
also funds Resources Enabling Affordable Community Housing in Virginia (REACH) initiatives, in which grants
are made or the interest rates on loans are subsidized by the Authority, principally for the elderly, disabled,
homeless, and other low-income persons. The amount of net position used to provide such grants or reduced interest
rates on mortgage loans or otherwise subsidize its programs is equal to 20% of the average of the Authority’s
change in net position, as unadjusted for the effect of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, for the preceding five
fiscal years. The Authority may use a higher amount if determined to be appropriate. The amounts made available
to provide reduced interest rates on mortgage loans or otherwise provide housing subsidies, including grants, under
its programs are subject to review by the Authority of the impact on its financial position. The Authority finances
some, but not all, of such subsidized mortgage loans, in whole or in part, with funds under its various bond
resolutions.

Financial Statements

The basic financial statements consist of the Statements of Net Position, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position, the Statements of Cash Flows and the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

The Statements of Net Position report all of the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, both financial and capital, presented in order of liquidity and using the accrual
basis of accounting in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The difference between
assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is presented as net
position, and is displayed in three components: net investment in capital assets; restricted portion of net position;
and unrestricted portion of net position. Net position is restricted when external constraints are placed upon their
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

use, such as bond indentures, legal agreements or statutes. Over time, changes in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial status of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position identify all the Authority’s revenues and
expenses for the reporting period, distinguishing between operating and nonoperating activities. This statement
measures the success of the Authority’s operations over the past year and can be used to determine whether the
Authority has successfully recovered all of its costs through mortgage loan income, externally funded programs
and other revenue sources.

The Statements of Cash Flows provide information about the Authority’s cash receipts and cash payments during
the reporting period. This statement reports cash transactions, including receipts, payments, and net changes
resulting from operations, noncapital financing, capital financing, and investing activities. This statement provides
information regarding the sources and uses of cash and the change in cash during the reporting period.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential for understanding financial
data that may not be displayed on the face of the financial statements and as such, are an integral part of the
Authority’s basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights
Overview

The Authority continues to maintain a strong financial position, while experiencing slow recoveries in both the
housing and financial markets. The Authority’s net position grew 6.7% in fiscal year 2015 to $2.8 billion and
achieved record earnings of $176.7 million. Both Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (Standard & Poor’s) and
Moody’s Investors Services (Moody’s) rating agencies continue to rate the Authority with an AA+ issuer credit
rating and Aal general obligation credit rating, respectively.

In its single family homeownership loan program, the Authority has been able to offer borrowers mortgages at
affordable interest rates, financed through the issuance of taxable bonds and securitization of federally insured
loans by the issuance of Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) and Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) securities. Participation in the FNMA Housing Finance Agency (HFA) Preferred Risk
Sharing Program has allowed the Authority to finance single family mortgage loans without mortgage insurance
and, unlike tax-exempt bonds, permits the funding of refinancing loans and loans to borrowers who are not first
time homebuyers. In the spring of 2015, the Authority funded a $5.0 million program to provide down-payment
assistance grants for qualified first time homebuyers, and such amount was subsequently increased to $17.0
million.

In its multi-family loan program, the Authority has continued to fund developments through the issuance of
tax-exempt and taxable bonds and offer lending programs that utilize federal Low-Income Housing Tax Credits to
provide construction financing in conjunction with permanent mortgage loans, that allow the Authority to provide
affordable rental housing within a broader range of income limits that include workforce housing.

The Authority’s servicing efforts for its single family loan portfolio have been focused on working with troubled
single family borrowers experiencing financial difficulties and mitigating potential foreclosure losses. The
Authority has continued to offer various options, including loan modifications, to prevent foreclosure for otherwise
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

responsible single family borrowers encountering financial hardships. While employment levels, wages, and
housing values have begun to recover slightly in Virginia, challenges for the Authority’s single family borrowers
are expected to continue. Additionally, the Authority has provided substantial support to the Commonwealth’s
housing policy priorities, and its homeownership education, underwriting and loss mitigation practices continue to
help lessen delinquencies and foreclosures to levels below those for Virginia and the nation.

As part of servicing its multi-family loans, the Authority identifies at-risk developments in order to assess and
mitigate the risk on such developments and to determine the amount to be included in the Authority’s Allowance
for Loan Loss for such developments. The Authority offers loss mitigation, including loan modifications, to
mortgagors to reduce the risk of default and loss on the multi-family loans. As a result, the delinquencies and
defaults on its multi-family loans have been maintained at relatively low levels.

While the Authority continues to face challenges from a slow recovery in the housing and economic environment,
its capital acquisition initiatives and loss mitigation practices have allowed the Authority to respond with new
lending program opportunities and to achieve its strongest financial position since its inception.

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Single family loan originations totaled 3,688 loans for $632.8 million in fiscal year 2015 compared to 4,398 loans
for $756.6 million in fiscal year 2014, for a decrease of 16.1% in units and 16.4% in dollars. The decrease was
related to the Rapid Refinance program the Authority offered from July to September in 2013 to allow our interest-
only borrowers to refinance into a new 30-year fixed rate loan. Excluding the prior year Rapid Refinance
production, which totaled $188.6 million, the Authority’s current production increased by $64.8 million or 11.4%
compared to prior year normal production without the Rapid Refinance program.

As of June 30, 2015, the Authority serviced 57,021 first and second single family mortgage loans with outstanding
balances totaling $5.1 billion. The outstanding balances of loans serviced, increased by $85.9 million or 1.7% and
the number of loans serviced increased by 840 loans or 1.5%, since June 30, 2014, primarily in the form of FNMA
Risk Share mortgages and FHA insured mortgage loans with corresponding second mortgage loans.

In fiscal year 2015, there were 508 foreclosures valued at $59.9 million or 1.6% of the single-family loan portfolio,
compared to a year ago with 690 foreclosures valued at $84.4 million or 2.1% of loan amounts. Recovery rates
averaging 64.6% somewhat mitigated the impact of loan losses. Total delinquency rates on the servicing portfolio
based on loan count averaged 11.4% for the fiscal year, compared to 12.2% a year ago. Total delinquency rates on
the servicing portfolio based on outstanding loan balances averaged 10.7% and 11.7% for the year ended June 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively. Delinquencies consist of first mortgage loans over 30 days past due, and foreclosures
and bankruptcies.

Financing commitments for 4,163 multi-family housing units were made during the year, totaling $353.0 million,
compared to 3,663 units totaling $223.2 million for the same period a year ago. Rehabilitation of properties within
the Authority’s multi-family portfolio using taxable and tax-exempt funding and REACH funds and preservation
of existing mortgage loans through extended period re-financings provided the majority of the production.

As of June 30, 2015, the Authority serviced 1,328 multi-family mortgage loans with outstanding balances totaling
$3.4 billion. Compared to June 30, 2014, the number of loans in the portfolio decreased by 50 while loan balances
decreased by $29.7 million or 0.9%. Delinquency rates based on portfolio loan count averaged .9% and 1.4% in
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

the year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The average delinquency rates based on outstanding loan
balances were 0.2% or $6.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2015 compared to 0.3% or $8.9 million for the
same period a year ago.

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Single family loan originations totaled 4,398 in fiscal year 2014 compared to 4,341 for the same period last year,
an increase of 1.3%. The amount of single family mortgage loan production was $756.6 million, an increase of
$60.6 million, or 8.7%. Much of the increase was related to the new Rapid Refinance product and the FNMA HFA
Preferred Risk Sharing product.

As of June 30, 2014, the Authority serviced 56,181 first and second single family mortgage loans with outstanding
balances totaling $5.0 billion. The number of loans serviced, increased since June 30, 2013 by 628 or 1.1%,
primarily in the form of FHA insured mortgage loans with corresponding second mortgage loans. The outstanding
loan balances also increased by $36.2 million or 0.7% as of the same date.

In fiscal year 2014, there were 690 foreclosures valued at $84.4 million or 2.1% of the single-family loan portfolio,
compared to a year ago with 652 foreclosures valued at $71.2 million or 1.6% of loan amounts. Recovery rates
averaging 59.0% somewhat mitigated the impact of loan losses. Total delinquency rates on the servicing portfolio
based on loan count averaged 12.2% for the current fiscal year, compared to 13.2% a year ago. Total delinquency
rates on the servicing portfolio based on outstanding loan balances averaged 11.7% and 12.8% in the year ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Delinquencies consist of first mortgage loans over 30 days past due, and
foreclosures and bankruptcies.

Financing commitments for 3,663 multi-family units were made during the fiscal year, totaling $223.2 million,
compared to 4,321 units totaling $370.8 million for the same period a year ago. Rehabilitation of properties within
the Authority’s multi-family portfolio using taxable and tax-exempt funding and REACH funds and preservation
of existing mortgage loans through extended period re-financings provided the majority production. The federal
intervention in the housing market has continued to hamper the Authority’s multi-family housing production.

As of June 30, 2014, the Authority serviced 1,378 multi-family mortgage loans with outstanding balances totaling
$3.4 billion. Compared to June 30, 2013, the number of loans in the portfolio decreased by 55 while loan balances
increased by $48.7 million or 1.5%. Delinquency rates based on portfolio loan count averaged 1.4% and 1.4% in
the year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The average delinquency rates based on outstanding loan
balances were 0.3% or $8.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2014 compared to 0.3% or $9.5 million for the
same period a year ago.

Financial Analysis of the Authority

Cash is held by the trustees and banks in depository accounts and investments for a variety of purposes, including:
debt service funds required by bond resolutions, escrow and reserve funds held for the benefit of single-family
mortgagors and multi-family projects, funding for new mortgage loan originations, working capital for operating
costs of the Authority, governmental funds held for disbursement toward Section 8 projects, and other funds held
in a fiduciary capacity to support other housing initiatives. Monies on deposit in Virginia banks are secured under
the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act of the Code of Virginia.
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

Investment objectives are to invest all monies at favorable rates to maximize returns while maintaining short-term
liquidity and to manage investments in a prudent manner to enable the Authority to fulfill its financial
commitments. Precautions are taken to minimize the risk associated with investments, including monitoring
creditworthiness of the investment, as determined by ratings provided by S&P and Moody’s, concentration risk,
and maturity risk.

The Authority enters into forward sales transactions to hedge changes in the fair value of mortgage loan inventory
and commitments to originate mortgage loans, particularly when such mortgage loans are expected to be pooled
into securities backed by GNMA or FNMA. The Authority does not enter into short sales or futures transactions
for which a bona fide hedging purpose has not been established.

Mortgage and other loan receivables represent the Authority’s principal assets. Mortgage loans are financed
through a combination of proceeds of notes and bonds, GNMA and FNMA mortgage loan securitizations, and net
position accumulated since inception. Mortgage loan payments received from mortgagors are used to pay debt
service due on outstanding bonds and mortgage backed securities.

The largest component of the Authority’s liabilities is outstanding bonds payable, the majority of which is fixed
rate to maturity dates that may extend into the future as much as forty years. The Authority continues to maintain
strong long-term ratings of Aal from Moody’s and AA+ from Standard & Poor’s for its general credit rating as
well as all bond resolutions other than the Commonwealth Mortgage Bonds resolution, which is rated Aaa and
AAA, by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s, respectively.

Net position is comprised of net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted portions of net position.
Net investment in capital assets represents office buildings, land, furniture and equipment, and vehicles, less the
outstanding applicable debt. Restricted portion of net position represents the portion of net position held in trust
accounts for the benefit of the respective bond owners, subject to the requirements of the various bond resolutions.
Unrestricted portion of net position represents a portion of net position that has been designated for a broad range
of initiatives, such as administration of the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program, support for REACH
initiatives, contributions to bond issues, working capital, future operating and capital expenditures, and general
financial support to the Authority’s loan programs.
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

Condensed Statements of Net Position (unaudited)

(In millions)

June 30
2015 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 658.7 501.0 1,132.8
Investments 526.5 256.3 272.0
Mortgage loans held for sale 143.8 31.2 18.2
Mortgage and other loans receivable, net 6,611.5 7,097.6 7,138.1
Other assets 130.2 128.9 138.1
Total assets 8,070.7 8,015.0 8,699.2
Notes and bonds payable, net 4,963.5 5,089.0 5,876.0
Other liabilities 286.9 282.4 3124
Total liabilities 5,250.4 5,371.4 6,188.4
Net investment in capital assets 8.7 6.4 6.1
Restricted by bond indentures 2,682.3 2,509.9 2,370.4
Unrestricted 129.3 127.3 134.3
Total net position $ 2,820.3 2,643.6 2,510.8

June 30, 2015 Compared to June 30, 2014

Total assets increased $55.7 million, or 0.7% from the prior year. Cash and cash equivalents and investments,
combined, increased $427.9 million, or 56.5% from the prior year as a result of an increase in the amount of
mortgage backed securities pooled and held as collateral. Mortgages held for sale and mortgage and other loans
receivables, net, decreased by $373.5 million, or 5.2%, primarily as a result of more securitizations of loans through
GNMA and FNMA than the prior year.

Total liabilities decreased $121.0 million, or 2.3% from the prior year. Notes and bonds payable decreased
$125.5 million or 2.5%, due primarily to bond redemptions and scheduled principal repayments. For the fiscal
year, the Authority issued $212.5 million in rental housing bonds and $120.4 million in commonwealth mortgage
bonds. Additionally, $485.6 million of draws and $178.0 million in repayments were made on the notes and lines
of credit to net to $307.6 million used for the year ended. Bond principal pay downs and redemptions totaled $766.2
million, and included bond redemptions of $481.1 million. Proceeds from the rental housing bond group, the
commonwealth mortgage bond group, and GNMA and FNMA mortgage loan securitizations were the principal
sources of funding for mortgage loan originations.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $2.8 billion, representing an increase in net position of $176.7 million, up
6.7% from the prior year. As of June 30, 2015, net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, was
$8.7 million. Net position restricted by bond resolutions totaled $2,682.3 million, an increase of $172.4 million, or
6.9% from the prior year. Unrestricted net position totaled $129.3 million, an increase of $2.0 million, or 1.6%.
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

June 30, 2014 Compared to June 30, 2013

Total assets decreased $684.2 million, or 7.9% from the prior year. Cash and cash equivalents, and investments,
combined, decreased $647.5 million, or 46.1% from the prior year primarily as a result of an increased number of
redemptions made in 2014 when compared to 2013. Mortgage loans held for sale and mortgage and other loans
receivables, net, decreased by $27.5 million, or 0.4%, primarily as a result of securitization of loans through GNMA
and FNMA and transfers of loans to Real Estate Owned (REO) status.

Total liabilities decreased $817.0 million, or 13.2% from the prior year. Notes and bonds payable decreased
$787.0 million or 13.4%, due primarily to bond redemptions. For the fiscal year, the Authority issued $90.8 million
in rental housing bonds, and $183.6 million in commonwealth housing bonds; and $310.0 million in short term
escrow mode (STEM) commonwealth housing bonds were converted to fixed rates. A net amount of $6.0 million
on notes and lines of credit was used for the year. Bond principal repayments and redemptions totaled $1,068.1
million, and included bond calls of $784.8 million. Proceeds from the rental housing bond group and the
commonwealth mortgage bond group and GNMA and FNMA mortgage loan securitizations were the principal
source of funding for mortgage loan originations.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $2.6 billion, representing an increase in net position of $132.8 million, or
5.3%. As of June 30, 2014, net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, was $6.4 million. Net position
restricted by bond resolutions totaled $2,509.9 million, an increase of $139.5 million, or 5.9% from the prior year.
Unrestricted net position totaled $127.3 million, a decrease of $7.0 million, or 5.2%.
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2015 and 2014

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (unaudited)

(In millions)

Year ended June 30
2015 2014 2013
Operating revenues:
Interest on mortgage and other loans $ 411.0 439.9 464.5
Pass-through grants received 119.1 119.7 127.7
Housing Choice Voucher program income 5.8 9.8 6.6
Other operating revenues 36.2 32.1 54.3
Total operating revenues 572.1 601.5 653.1
Operating expenses:
Interest on notes and bonds payable 197.4 222.9 266.5
Pass-through grants disbursed 119.1 119.7 127.7
Housing Choice Voucher program expense 8.0 8.7 8.7
Other operating expenses 98.8 128.5 171.9
Total operating expenses 423.3 479.8 574.8
Operating income 148.8 121.7 78.3
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income, net 27.0 13.7 17.9
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 0.9 (2.6) 2.5
Total nonoperating revenues, net 27.9 11.1 20.4
Change in net position $ 176.7 132.8 98.7

The principal determinants of the Authority’s change in net position (more commonly referred to as net revenues)
are operating revenues less operating expenses plus nonoperating revenues, net.

Operating revenues consist primarily of interest earnings on mortgage loans and operating expenses consist
predominantly of interest expense on notes and bonds payable and operating expenses of the Authority.
Nonoperating revenues consist of investment income which includes realized and unrealized gains or losses on
investments and investment derivatives.

Fiscal Year 2015

Operating revenues decreased $29.4 million or 4.9% from the prior year. The decrease was primarily attributable
to interest on mortgage and other loans, which decreased by $28.9 million or 6.6%. Contributing factors were lower
loan balances that resulted from loan securitizations and a lower average interest rate on remaining loan balances.

8 (Continued)



VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating expenses decreased $56.5 million or 11.8% from the prior year due primarily to interest expense on
notes and bonds payable which decreased $25.5 million or 11.4%, due to a lower average interest rate on the notes
and bonds outstanding. Other operating expenses decreased $29.7 million or 23.1% over the prior year, primarily
due to reductions in the provision for loan losses and lower bond issuance costs from decreased issuances.

Nonoperating revenues, net, increased $16.8 million from the prior year, due to increases in investment income.

Fiscal Year 2014

Operating revenues decreased $51.6 million or 7.9% from the prior year. The decrease was primarily attributable
to interest on mortgage and other loans, which decreased by $24.6 million or 5.3%. Contributing factors included
lower single family mortgage loan rates, which averaged 5.2% compared to 5.4% the previous year, and lower
mortgage loan balances resulting from loan securitizations and lower gains from the sale of MBS securities.

Operating expenses decreased $95.0 million or 16.5% from the prior year due primarily to interest expense on
notes and bonds payable which decreased $43.6 million or 16.4% from the prior year, due to a lower average
interest rate on the notes and bonds outstanding. Other operating expenses decreased $43.4 million or 25.5% over
the prior year, primarily due to reductions in the provision for loan losses.

Nonoperating revenues, net, decreased $9.3 million from the prior year, due to lower investment income and
unrealized losses on investment derivatives.

Other Economic Factors

The Authority’s mortgage loan financing activities are sensitive to the general level of involvement of the federal
government in the housing and capital markets, the general level of interest rates, the interest rates and other
characteristics of the Authority’s loans compared to loan products available in the conventional mortgage markets,
and the availability of affordable housing in the Commonwealth. The availability of long-term tax-exempt and
taxable financing on favorable terms and the ability to securitize through GNMA and FNMA are key elements in
providing the funding necessary for the Authority to continue its mortgage financing activities.

The Authority’s main sources of revenues include mortgage loan interest and investment interest income.
Short-term investment rates in the United States have declined sharply from a peak of approximately 5.0% in
February 2007 to 0.02% in both June 2015 and 2014.

Delinquency and foreclosure rates in the single family loan portfolio, and to a lesser extent the multi-family loan
portfolio, are influenced by unemployment and underemployment. Virginia’s seasonally adjusted unemployment
rate was 4.9% and 5.3% in June 2015 and 2014, respectively. Virginia underemployment rates, which include those
no longer seeking employment and those employed only part-time who desire full-time work, were 10.0% and
11.1% in the twelve months June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Additional Information

Questions about this report or additional information can be obtained by visiting the Authority’s Web site,
www. vhda .com, or contacting the Finance Division of the Virginia Housing Development Authority.



KPMG LLP

Suite 2000

1021 East Cary Street
Richmond, VA 23219-4023

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Commissioners
Virginia Housing Development Authority:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Virginia Housing Development Authority
(the Authority), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia, as of and for the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Virginia Housing Development Authority as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in
10
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A

its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the Management Discussion and Analysis and
Schedule of Funding Progress by the Plan Valuations Dates on pages 1-9 and 45 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Authority’s basic financial
statements. The supplementary information included in Schedules 2 through 5 on pages 46 through 51 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information included in Schedules 2 through 5
on pages 46 through 51 is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 11,
2015 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

KPMe LP

September 11, 2015

11
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Current assets:

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (note 5)

Investments (note 5)

Interest receivable — investments

Mortgage loans held for sale (note 1)

Mortgage and other loans receivable, net (note 4)
Interest receivable — mortgage and other loans
Housing Choice Voucher contributions receivable
Other real estate owned (note 1)

Other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments (note 5)

Mortgage and other loans receivable (note 4)

Less allowance for loan loss
Less net loan discounts

Mortgage and other loans receivable, net
Property, furniture, and equipment, less accumulated depreciation

and amortization of $34,357,378 and $31,770,833 respectively (note 6)

Other assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:

Liabilities and Net Position

Notes and bonds payable (note 7)
Accrued interest payable on notes and bonds
Housing Choice Voucher contributions payable

Escrows (note 8)

Derivative instruments (note 9)
Accounts payable and other liabilities (note 10)

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, net (note 7)

Project reserves (notes 8 and 14)
Other liabilities (notes 10, 12, and 14)

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position (notes 1 and 11):

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted by bond indentures

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

12
A-14

2015 2014
658,668,184 501,019,953
53,302,864 4,327,835
1,627,969 705,052
143,827,413 31,167,900
183,012,480 185,168,945
30,020,380 32,136,351
372,463 —
54,240,173 50,437,024
8,977,932 7,948,123
1,134,050,358 812,911,183
473,202,341 251,945,031
6,658,972,508 7,152,763,225
193,855,857 199,902,332
36,688,923 40,429,055

6,428,427,728

26,326,725
8,664,427

6,912,431,838

24,577,676
13,076,458

6,936,621,221

7,202,031,003

8,070,671,579

8,014,942,186

705,216,781 428,209,601
57,041,623 64,393,000
— 188,369
46,711,535 43,299,931
224,949 787,672
41,202,636 23,622,572
850,397,524 560,501,145
4,258,230,476 4,660,772,600
123,338,279 126,070,113
18,420,214 24,007,266

4,399,988,969

4,810,849,979

5,250,386,493

5,371,351,124

8,706,218
2,682,279,255
129,299,613

6,403,910
2,509,869,543
127,317,609

2,820,285,086

2,643,591,062

8,070,671,579

8,014,942,186




VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Operating revenues:
Interest on mortgage and other loans receivable $
Pass-through grants income (note 1)
Housing Choice Voucher program income (note 1)
Other real estate owned income
Gains and recoveries on sale of other real estate owned
Gains (losses) on sale of single family mortgage loans
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Interest on notes and bonds payable
Salaries and related employee benefits (notes 12 and 13)
General operating expenses
Note and bond expenses
Bond issuance expenses
Pass-through grants expenses (note 1)
Housing Choice Voucher program expenses (note 1)
Servicing release premiums and guaranty fees
Other real estate owned expenses
Losses on other real estate owned (note 1)
(Recovery) Provision for loan losses (note 1)

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (losses):
Investment income (note 10)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments (note 9)
Other, net

Total nonoperating revenues, net
Change in net position
Total net position, beginning of year

Total net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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2015 2014

410,963,382 439,872,258
119,085,683 119,708,711
5,886,932 9,846,526
8,867,929 8,863,552
5,019,337 6,328,885
2,312,605 (640,561)
20,002,225 17,557,943
572,138,593 601,537,314
197,409,725 222,938,257
39,697,673 36,778,212
28,705,689 25,294,205
1,189,198 1,198,171
2,133,256 3,585,076
119,085,683 119,708,711
8,005,369 8,693,653
8,564,060 8,753,967
5,925,460 8,879,967
14,283,486 21,103,427
(1,705,169) 22,953,133
423,294,430 479,886,779
148,844,163 121,650,535
27,016,648 13,748,592
562,723 (2,619,324)
270,490 (2,127)
27,849,861 11,127,141
176,694,024 132,777,676

2,643,591,062

2,510,813,386

$ 2,820,285,086

2,643,591,062




VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash payments for mortgage and other loans

2015

2014

(861,060,605)

(1,099,261,207)

Principal repayments on mortgage and other loans 670,163,200 856,956,142
Sale of mortgage loans 262,061,895 185,292,094
Interest received on mortgage and other loans 384,921,647 439,041,460
Pass-through grants received 119,085,683 119,708,711
Pass-through grants disbursed (119,085,683) (119,708,711)
Housing Choice Voucher payments received 2,883,766 9,949,561
Housing Choice Voucher payments disbursed (5,074,489) (8,543,496)
Escrow and project reserve payments received 287,299,010 283,410,188
Escrow and project reserve payments disbursed (286,279,314) (293,511,886)
Other operating revenues 25,225,263 25,472,094
Cash received for loan origination fees 5,659,029 4,609,976
Cash paid for loan premiums (5,490,038) (8,277,063)
Cash payments for salaries and related benefits (39,402,671) (37,050,616)
Cash payments for general operating expenses (17,942,939) (43,062,442)
Cash payments for servicing release premiums and guaranty fees (9,480,075) (9,969,035)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 35,929,232 22,249,522
Disposition of other real estate owned property 2,942 469 38,898,350
Net cash provided by operating activities 452,355,380 366,203,642
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of notes and bonds 818,494,857 554,013,112
Principal payments on notes and bonds (944,208,569) (1,341,650,211)
Interest payments on notes and bonds (204,582,334) (232,627,766)

Purchases of investments

Cash payments for bond issuance expenses (2,133,256) (3,523,366)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (332,429,302) (1,023,788,231)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of property, furniture, and equipment (4,781,779) (3,909,953)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (4,781,779) (3,909,953)
Cash flows from investing activities:
(2,240,651) (6,846,258)
Proceeds from sales or maturities of investments 35,048,337 27,595,846
Interest received on investments 9,696,246 8,934,098
Net cash provided by investing activities 42,503,932 29,683,686
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 157,648,231 (631,810,856)
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 501,019,953 1,132,830,809
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 658,668,184 501,019,953
14 (Continued)
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VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation of property, furniture, and equipment
Bond issuance costs
Interest on notes and bonds payable
Increase in mortgage loans held for sale
Decrease in mortgage and other loans receivable
(Decrease)/increase in allowance for loan loss
(Decrease)/increase in net loan discounts
Decrease in interest receivable — mortgage and

other loans

(Increase)/decrease in other real estate owned
(Decrease)/increase in Housing Choice Voucher
contributions payable
Increase in Housing Choice Voucher
contributions receivable
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and
other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in escrows and project reserves

Net cash provided by operating activities $

foreclosures

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activity:
Increase in other real estate owned as a result of loan

$

Decrease in mortgage and other loans receivable from

transferring loans to MBS securities retained as investments $

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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2015 2014
148,844,163 121,650,535
3,031,385 3,635,067
2,133,256 3,585,076
197,409,725 222,938,257
(112,659,513) (12,939,574)
209,240,046 28,352,789
(6,046,475) 8,959,763
(3,740,132) 3,193,939
2,115,471 2,189,540
(3,803,149) 6,667,426
(188,369) 103,035
(372,463) —
3,382,222 (1,528,295)
11,993,012 (10,130,728)
1,016,201 (10,473,188)
452,355,380 366,203,642
52,980,121 42,371,157
286,707,136 —




(panunuo)) L1

“A[An0adsal G 1(g PUe STOT ‘0 AUnf JO SB Z60°TIT €S PUE 6€1°G98°ES P10} PUE SI9SSE
JIOUJ0 UT POPN[OUT IOM §)S00 JYSLI SUIOIAISS 0FEFHI0oW PAZIIOWeU) "SUBO] ) JO JOOIAIIS U} SUIBWIAT
Kuoyny ay) oIym YIANI 10 VIAND 19119 4SnoIy) paznLnods a1e sueo] a3eSuowr asoy Ji ‘sueo|
oZeS1Iowr paje[al oY) JO SJI] PAJEWNSI OYf) JOAO PAZILIOWE PUE JS09 Y pazijejides are swnrwold asay ],
‘s1opud| Supedionied woiy sueo| Surseyoind uoym swinrwaid asesjar Suidiales sked Kjuoyiny oy

Spy 31t Sud14.19s 2SVS1I0W

"$10T ‘0€ dunf papud 1eak ) 10J £E€1°CS6‘TT$ Aq PISLAIOUT SBM SISSO] UBO] 10J 9OUBMO[[R YL, "ST0T
‘0€ oun[ papud I8k AY) 10§ 691°SOL TS AQ PIINPAI SeM SOSSO] UBO] I0J SIUBMO[[E Y[, "90OUBMO][E Y} JO
[9A9] JUSLIND 3} PUE ‘[RINR[[00 JO Aoenbape pue anjeA ) ‘SUONIPUOD OIUOUOID ‘SONsIe)S Aouanburop
pue dousradxa ssof [eoL10IsTy ‘orjojiiod ueo] ay) Jo uonisodwod ay) dre dduBMO[[e oY) Jo Aoenbape
oy} Surumudlep ul jusweSeuew Aq paIopisuod s10jdey [edounrd oyl suonipuod amyng o) 3oadsar
s suonduwnsse pue juswSpnl s, jusWoSeULW JO 9SIOIOXD ) SAJOAUI SISSO] AIMN] JO SAJRWINSH "SUBO]
JO UOIOI][00 UI SISSO] 1OA0D 0] JUSIOLJNS SIASI[IQ 1 [9AJ] B T 9OUBMO[[R Y} Ulejurew o) ‘yuowdpnl
s JuowoSeuew Ul ‘AIeSS202u junowe oy s osuadxo Junerado 03 pyIpaId 10 padieyo sISSO[ UO] 10J
uoIs1A01d oy [, “PaYNUIPI ST 99UBMO][[B UR 10J PIdu d1103ds & uoym $3sso[ 10j sopiaold Kjuioyiny ay [,

$2SSOT UDOT A0f IIUDMO]]Y

"uonIsod 19N JO SIUSWAIRIS S} U 9[qBAISIAI SUBO] dFeF10oW ) SaZI1uS0091 103U0] OU
Kuoyny ay) ‘ofes ay) uod) “sesodind Sunzodar pue Sununoode 10 S[es Se PaJear) oIk SUONLZILINOIS
ueo[ aFedow asay ], “Aoyny Yy Aq paseyaind 10 pajeurduo sueof afed)ow jo sjood Aq payoeq
aIe Jey) saNLINOas duerend YIANA pue VIAND ‘sweidord SN oy ynoay], ‘swerdoid (SIN)
SONLINOAS paoeg-25eSIOIA VIANA Pue VIAND oy ur juedionted pozuoyne ue s1 Auoyny dy L

‘parmjonysar o predox
Q1B SUBO[ UONS YOIYMm Ul JedK 2} Ul SWooul se paziugodal aIe painjonnsal 1o predar A[nj sueo| uo
SIUNOOSIp pue swniwold paznouwreun Aue pue siseq Ueo[-Aq-ueo[ € uo panduwod SI poylou JsI03uI A |,
‘PIAIA 0} JudUIISN[PE UB S SUBO[ AY) JO JJI] [ENIORAUOD Y} IOAO ‘POYISW ISAIdIUI AY) SUIsn ‘pazijioure
pue paiRJep are sjunodsip pue swnpuold Surold ‘SISSO[ UBO| I0J JOUBMO[[E UB PUEB SJUNOISIP
pue swnrwaid jo jou ‘douereq [ediourid predun 110y) Je paje)s oIe J[QBAISIAI SURO[ IO pue 9FeSU0N

2]qDa1222Y SUDOT dY() puv ISVSIO
‘uonIsod JON ur saduey) pue ‘sosuadxy

‘SONUASY JO SIUAWIAILIS AU} UO PolIodar dIe soes UBO| UO $ISSO] 0 SUIeS AUy ‘anjea Irej Io 100
JO 10MO] 9T} J& PALLIED dJ JONIBW ATBPUO0das Ay} U0 ]S 0} JUJUI 3y} Yim pannboe 10 pajeurSuio sueo|

aIs 40f plaf sunoq aSv3riop
*SIUUNISU] 2AUDALI(] 0f SullL0day p1oUDUL] pup SUPUNOIIY ‘¢S *ON JUdWIRIS (gSVD) pieog
SpIepuel§ SUNUNOOOY [BIUSWIUIIAOD) YIIM SOUBPIOIJE Ul SIUSWINISUL SANBALIOP JUSUWISIAUL SB PI)LIL)

QIe $10BNUOO 3SAY ], "ST0T ‘17 I1oquuerddg Aq NS [[Im S)OBIUOD SI[eS PIBMIO) O], "6 2J0U Ul UMOYS
Se (991A10S SI10JSOAU] S APOOJA ‘S,1004 2% PIepuelS) sSunel pue SUOHRIUIOUOD (M saNIedIouNnod

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

™

1)

@)

(panunuo)) 91

INOJ (IM JUNOWE [BUONOU UOI[[IW ['6EZ$ B YIM SUONOBSURL SJ[BS PIRMIO] 67 Sulpueisino
pey Auoyny ay) ‘g0z ‘0¢ dunf 1y ‘sueo] dSeSuow oewISLIO 0] SIUSUNIWWIOD PUE AIOJUIAUTL
ueo] oSeSiowr Jo onJeA Irej Ul SaSueyd o5pPay 0} PAZIIN Ik SIUSUNIUIOD SIANLINIJS SIS PIEMIO ]

SjuwNLSUY 3aPDALId(

"SJUQUI)SOAUT Je[Tuls uo sad11d 9]qeAIasqo
0} UOTE[aI UI dnjeA pAjsnipe Uo JO Jqe[ieAt uoym saduId jjIewr pajonb uo peseq sI ‘yustuoSeurwr
£q pomoraar pue saoiards Suroud Ayed pIyy wox pourelqo ‘Onfea JONIEW Iiej ‘UODISOJ JON UI
soguey) pue ‘sosuadXy ‘SONUIASY JO SJUSUIAIE}S AU} UI SUIOOUT JUSUWISOAUI UT PAZIUS00I AN[EA JOSTeW
ey Ul SoSUByO YIM ‘UOHISOJ JON JO SIUSWDILIS AU} U0 dAN[eA JONIEW JIE) Je Poriodor aIe SJUSUnSOAU]

SpuauIIsaauy

*SOJEULIIS 9SO} WOIJ IJJIP P[Nod s)nsdl [enjdy “porrad Sunsodar oy Sutmp
poziug0oa1 sosuadxa PUE SONUSASI PUE SJUSWAJE)S [BIOUBULY JISEq Y} JO dJep oY) Je serouafunuod jo
SOINSO[OSIP A} PUE SINI[IGRI] PUE S)OSSE Jo syunowe pajodal joayye Jety) spuawSpnl pue sojewnss e
0} juowaSeuew sonnbal ‘JyVD PIm AJIWIONUOd Ul ‘SJUSWle)s [eloueuly oiseq jo uoneredord oy,

sagpuyssy fo asn

‘SUONN]OSAI PUOQ PUE AJOU SNOLILA dYf} PUE JOY OY} [IIM IUBPIOIIE UL
dn jos axe yorym ‘spuny jo sdnoiS pue spuny jo siseq oy} Uo PoZIULSIO AIE SJUNOIIE Y], "POLINOUI USYM
sosuadxa pue pauIes UM PazIuS00aI dIe SINUSASI IAYM SIUdWAIe)s [eroueuly oiseq sy Sutredord
ur Surunodde JO SIseq [ENIOOE PUE SNI0J JUSWAINSEIU SIIINOSAI OIUIOUODd A} SAZI[NN AJLIOYINY Y[,

Sununoddy fo sisvg pup snI0,q JUIWIINSVIP]

"uoISSNISIP
Ioyuny 10§ 7 9jou 39S (dvvD) seidouud Sununosoe poydesoe A[jerousd 'S YHm 90UBPIOIIE
ur ‘punj os1IdIoue U0 Se SANIANOE S)I JO [[e suodal Ajuoyny dYL ‘YHeIMUOWWO)) ) JO spung
asudigug oy uLI0} 0) POUIqUIOd Ik ‘Spunj Jo sadA} Te[ruis 1930 s Fuofe ‘ALoyny ay) Jo S)unodde
UL “Presmuowio) ay) jo jun jusuodwod e st Ajuoyny Yy ‘sesodind Suntodar [eroueury 104

‘suones1qo yons Jo judwkedar 9y 103 S[qeI] JOU ST YI[EOMUOLIUIO))
) pue (YIEOMUOWWO)) oY) LIWISIIA JO YI[EIMUOWIWO)) A} JO JIPAId JO UBO[ 10 JueId I0 1qop
MU0 J0u Op suoneSI[qo 1GIP 1910 PUL SPUOQ ‘SAOU Y, ‘(M0]aq (8) | 9J0U 995) SANLINIIS Payoeq
oFeSuow (VIAN) uoneroossy a3eSuoy [euoneN [elopej pue (YAND) UONEIO0SSY d5e3uon
[euOnEN JUdWUIdA0D Aq 10 AyuIoyny Y} Jo suonesIjqo 1qap I9YIo Io ‘spuoq ‘sajou Jo spaaoold ayy
£q pasueulj A[[e1ouas are sueo 95310 "AWOIUT 2)JRIIPOW 10 MO JO saI[ie) £q Y1oq 10 ‘diysioumo
10 Aouednooo 10y papuojur Juisnoy jo diysioumo pue uonej[iqeydl ‘uornonnsuod ‘uonisinboe
9} doUBUL O} ‘SONIANOR PIZLIOYINE I9yo Fuowe ‘Auioyiny ay) somoduwd 10y Sy, "A[qUIssy
[eIoUSD) LIUISIIA ) JO UOISSAS 726 A1 AQ Pa1orud (30 oY) papudte se 0y Ajuoyiny juewdo[osdq
SuIsnoH eruISIA 2 1opun pajeard sem (KAuroyiny ayy) Ajuroyiny juswdo[oadg Sursnoy erurSIA oy,

uoyv21Uv3L()

@)

r)

(€

@

()

SIANI[04 SUnuNodY JuedPIUSIS Jo LIewNg pue uoneziuesio

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
SjuauwdlelS —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

A-18



(panunuo)) 61

*K1oA12adsar ‘410z pue 107 ‘0€ dunf papud s1eak ay) SuLnp G9¢‘9z.$ pue 5#9°998¢ Surfelo) sjueid
ySnouy-ssed pasingsip pue paAIdda1 Ajuioyiny ay ], “owoy e Surumo 1o ‘Sunual ‘Sururejurews ‘Suroueury
‘Bun|a9s uo SIAWNSUOD 0) Jurjasunod sapraoid weiSold due)SISSy Furesuno)) SuISNoH oy, BIuISImA
ur sorouady Surpasuno)) Suisnoy pasoidde-qNH g€ 10J I0jeNSIUIUPE U Se SAAIdS AJLIoyiny YL

weadoarg
D) SuIsnoy — ¥ dopaad( ueqa() pue Suisnoy jo jusunedaq ‘SN

"K[oAnoadsar ‘4107 pue $10T ‘0€ dunf papud s1edk ay) Sunnp
STO'PS6°TSS PUe €97°65H 1SS Sureroy siues ysnory-ssed pasigsip pue PaALeddI Kuoyny oy,

*QWOoUI 99J JATIRISIUTWIPE SAZIUF0031 pue ‘syudwdoarap Ajruej-nnw 9qI3I[d Jo spIo[pue| 0} spunj
dVH JO SJUSWISINGSIP SaYeW ‘spunj g uondag suonisinbar Auoyny oy ‘weisord uonejjiqeyay
[enueIsqng puB UONONNSUOD) MIN § UONIAS S (JNH 10J IOIBNSIUIWPE S IBIMUOWWOD) Y} SY

8 U0NIIS paseq 193[0ag — yudamdoPAd( ueqin) pue Suisnoy jo judunaeda( 'S'n

‘wres3ouxd oy £q paziioyine SI9YONOA Jo 1aqunu oy} 0) dn
saI[Iwe) AUBW Se 9AIdS 0} pasn Suroq oJe spuny [[e dansse 0) A[oansadsod s[oad] Surpuny sisnfpe pue
SpUNJ $S90X 93} JO UOHLZI[IIN A} sIojTuow (O H "A[9AN0dSa1 ‘107 Pue §10Z “0€ dunf Jo se §08°‘c$
PUB 0€€ 19€$ P2IBIO) SPUNJ QANBNSIUIWUPE SSIIXD dAR[NWNY) “A[OAN0AdSAT ‘417 PUe S10T ‘0€ dunf
JO Se 8G6°GLH TS PUB €ES°6E$ PO[BIO) SPUN] JWH SSI9Xd dANE[NWNY) “UONISOJ 1IN JO SIUWOIRIS
pue UONISOJ 19N Ul S95UBYD) PUB SISUSAXH ‘SONUOAY JO SHUSWIL)S Ay} Ul uonisod 1ou pajoLnsaIun
PUB ONUOASI SB PIPIOIAI OS[E dIdM AJLIOYINY Y} 0] PISINGSIP SPUNJ IANBNSIUIWPE 10 JVH SSIOXH

*A[0A192dSa1 “p 10T PUE STOT ‘0€ dUN( PAPUD S1edk oY) SULIND £69°668°19$
PUB [STHLH99$ PAIRIo) ‘SjudwasIngsip (JVH) siuowhed 9oue)SISSY SUISNOH 9[qeMO][[e JO junowe
oy uodn paseq ‘syuesd ySnoiyy-ssed se poziuSooar are jey) sasuadxd weidoid pue swoour weiSord
"QWI0dUl 99) dANBNSIUTWPE $azIug05a1 pue ‘sjuedionied 9[qISI0 0) SpuUNy JO SJUAWASINGSIP SAYLUL
‘spunj g uo1309g suonisinba Ajoyiny oy I, ‘swerdord 2oue)SISse paseq-jueud) 1oylo se [[9m se weigord
IoYonoA oy jo Junsisuod ‘wesdord 1oyonop od10y) Suisnoy § uonods (ANH) S.Iuswdorordq
ueqin pue Suisnoy jo juounteds@ 'S’y Oy Joj JIOJENSIUNWUPE UB S SOAIS Aloyny Ay

§ U01I9G paseq Jueud |, — JudwdopAd( ueq.aq) pue Sursnoy jo yudunaedaq ‘SN
sasuadxz] pup sonuaady ySno.yf-ssvg

189K
[oed paued junowe oy} st asuadxo se paziuooar Aed yo1s pue uoneoea jo yunowe ay [, "Aed jo sojer
JUSLIND USY} 137} 1B SIUNOWE UIBLIA0 10J Paresudduioo 9q ABW ‘Yieap IO ‘UONRUILLIY) JUSWDINAI uodn
‘pue paured Aed OIS pue UOHEOBA PIsNUN ‘SUONIBIIWI] UTBLID 0} }92[gns ‘@je[nunooe Aew saokojdwyg
‘papraoid a1e $201A13s se syunowre JurkieA ur Aed oIS pue uorjeses pajueld are saakordwd Aoyiny

$20Uasqy papwsuaduio)

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(@

(0)

(panunuo)) 81

‘pajqesip Apuaueunad awoseq 10 ¢¢ AFe Sururene oye
10 uo AJIoYINY Ay} WO 21121 OYM PuR JUIWAIINDAI 901AISS JO SIBIK oY) Jow dARY Ooym saaKko]duwo
I1e 01 ueld J1jousq paulydp B I9pUN S)IJOUdq dIeoy)[edy Juswainansod sapraoid osfe Ajoyiny dy

‘sookordwe Sunjedronted Sururewar Ay 0) pANqLISIPaI
pue poyojIoy st uoniod pojsaAUN oY ‘SUONNQLIUOD S AJLIOYINY OY) U PAISIA 9,00] UBY) SSI[
dre sookojdwd SuneuIuLId) JUXd dY) O, ‘PALINOUL St papuny A[[ny st dsuadxd juawaInay “sdokojdwo
[Ie Aj[enueisqns Surioaoo suejd sSUIABS JUSWAINAI UONNQLIUOD PIULJOP 21y Sey AJLIoyIny dyJ,

SunjJ U212y

*SJUSUIeISUL
puny Sunjurs A1ojepuewr woj ‘wniwadid ynoyym ‘uondwapar fented 03 103[qns a1e YIIyM ‘spuoq wiId)
aAey AJ[e1ouss sansst [y "s1edk ud) Ajojewrxoidde 10y Surpue)sino usoq dABY SpUOq Y} [1UN PISIIIOXD
2q jouued Ajjerduesd suondwopar [euondo ay ], ‘spuoq snoLeA ) wedpal Afjeuondo o} JySir oy sey
os[e Auoyny 3y [ ‘ueo] a3eSiow e Jo yudwikedord oy se yons ‘SjuoAd pargroads UIelId0 JO 20UILINIO0
o uodn ‘wnnwaid Jnoyim ‘spuoq wdpal AJferoads 0 JySir Y sey A[[eroudd Ajoyiny ayJ, ‘poyrow
15010)ul Oy} SUISN SINSSI AY) JO SOAI] AU} JIAO PIZNIOWE dIe SYUNOISIP pue swnIwdld puog “SJUNoISIp
1o swniwald paznioweun Aue sso| doueeq predun Ioy) je parers aIe d[qeded spuoq pue salON

21qving spuog puv sajon

‘paxmout porrdd oy ul pasuadxa dIe $1S00 doULNSSI
puoq ‘Sa111gDIT pup S13SSY SV parioday KISno1nald sualf ‘9 *oON JUSWdNRIS SVD YHM 00UBPIOdIE U]

asuadxs] aouvnssy puog

'SsIB3A G 0) ¢ JO Q1] [NJasn p2oadxa s oIemijos
oY) 19A0 SISeq QUI-JYSILNS B UO PIZIMIOWE I S)SOO 3SAY) ‘OSn Papuejul S)I 10] Apeal SI 2IBM}JOS
Ay} 29UQ "000°000°T$ ST dremyos ondwod pajeroudd Ajjeusojul 10§ ploysaly) uoneziedeo ayJ,
*$1288Y 2]q18unpu] 10f Sun.Loday [p1oUDUL] pup SUPUNOIIY 1G *ON JUAWAIRIS SV YIM dUBPIOIOE
ur sjasse [eyides se pojean are aremjos 1ndwod pajerdussd A[[euIoiur Yim pIjeIoosse S}S00 Urepo))

"000°T$ St
juowdinba pue ‘axmruing ‘Kjrodoid 1oy poysaiy) uonezijeyides oy [, 'SO[OIYaA 10 S1edA ¢ pue ‘justudinba
pue oImIuINg Joj s1LdK ()] 0} ¢ Wolj pue ‘sSuIp[Ing JoJ SILAK ()¢ OI8 YOIYM ‘SOAI] [NJOSN PAJeWIISd
Ay} 1940 Siseq dul-)ySrens ay) uo papiaoid st uoreroaidop pue 1509 je pazijeydes ore sjosse [ende)

Judwdinbsg puv ‘aunpruin,y ‘Gaadosg

uonIsod 19N Ul souey) pue ‘sasudadxy ‘SoNUSAY JO sjudWLIRIS ) Ul A[ojeredas
pariodal oxe paumOo 91B1S9 [A1 JOYIO JO UONISOdSIP ) WOIJ SISSO[ PUB Suren) “s)sod [esodsip pajewnsa
SS] aNJeA IIBJ IO JSOJ JO IOMO] 3} Je Paje)s SI pue ‘@Inso[o210j ysnoay) Ajurewrid paxnboe ‘Ajedoid
Auey-nnw pue sSurjjomp AJrurey 9[SUIS UI SJUSUNSIAUT JUSLIND SIUISAIAT POUMO 2JE)SD 81 IOYIQ

pauMQ aIss (DAY 13Y1Q

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
SjuauwdlelS —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

(u)

(u)

(12

)

o

A-19



(panunuo)) 1

‘s3urjomp Arwey o[3urs jo
sjuednooo JOUMO 0) Sueo| wLId)-Suo] ayew Jo oseyoind 0) pasn are spuog a3eS1oN dIysIoumModWoH
Jo spaadoid oy, ‘Teyrdes ueo] o8eF)0w 9A11991J2-)s00 SuLnnboe ur sorousFe soueury Juisnoy [ed0] pue
QJE)S ISISSE 0] PAJBAIO SEM [OIYM ‘WeIS0I] puog anss] MoN] S, AInsealr] oy jo juouniedoq S oy ur
uonedionted s Kyoyiny oy ssedwooud 0) paysijqe)se sem dnoi3 puoq o5eSjoN diysioumootoy ay [,

dno.n) puog a3v3i0py diysioumoawory
PAUMO 2JeISO [BaI

Aqrurey-a13uts 1930 10j Suroueuly Arerodwo) ‘se [jom se ‘sSurjjomp Aqmuej-o[3uis jo syuednodso 1oumo
0) SueO[ Wd)-3uo] ayew Io aseyoind 0) pasn are spuog 9FeSUO YIeaMUOUIIO)) JO spaadoxd ay ]

dno.g) puog 23v3110p yywamuowuio)
*SONIIoB] 901130 S AJLIOYINY dy) JO SUIOUBUL AU} PUB LIS [BII PAUMO

Aqurej-nnuwr 19y30 1oy Suroueuly Arerodurd) ‘se [jom se ‘s1oafo1d juowdojosp Suisnoy Ajiurej-nnw
Uo sueo] JuduewLIdd pue UOIONNSUOI JdUBUL 0} PIsn dIe spuog SuISNOH [eIUdY ) Jo spasooxd ay [,

sdno.g) puog Suisnopy (pyuayy

"SUONOUNJ QATJRNSIUTWIPE S, AILIOYNY ) 0}
payejar sasuadxo jo juowiked ay) pue spuoq pue sajou d15102ds Jo Juswkeda ayy 0y pagpard Appoarp jou
Qwoour Jo 1d19991 3y} PI09a1 0} PIsn sJUNoIde Jo dnoid e Jo ISISU0D SHUN0XIY Juneiad( [e1ouan Ay [,

Sun022y Suyv.aadq) paauan

()

)

(9)

()

:swesdoxd Surmor[oy oy apnjour sanianoe s, Ayuoyiny oy ‘swerold snorea Jo Sursisuod
SJUSWIA)L)S [eIOURUL OIseq Jo 195 puny Arejoudoxd o[3urs v ur pajussard are Ajoyiny 2y) JO SUNOIDE YL

uoneuISAI] Jo siseq

‘sosuadxa pue sanuoaal Suneidadouou se pajrodar are uonruap siy) Sunoow
10U SSUAdXd pue SINUSAdI [[ AWOdUI AJBIdPOUW J0 MO[ Jo saliue) £q ‘diysioumo pue Aouednooo
10J popudur Suisnoy Jo dIysioumo pue ‘UOLEIIGRYSI ‘UOTONI)SU0d ‘uonisinboe ot Suroueury woiy
astre A[[erouad sosuadxd pue sonudaar Sunerod “sway Superodouou woly sasuadxd pue sONUOAAI
Sunjerado ysmSunsip uonisod N ul soguey) pue ‘sosuodxy ‘SonuIAdY Jo syuowolelS s, AJoyny YL,

sasuadxs] pun sanuaasy Suyv.iadouop pun Suyv.iadg

"POPIU SB SIOINOSAI PAJOLISOIUN T)JLAI) Pue
SITJ S92IN0SAI PAJOLSaI ash 0} sT Ad1jod s, AIOYINY oY) ‘OSN 0] J[qR[IBAE AT SIOINOSII PAJOLNSIIUN
pue pajoLnsal y1oq uaypy sdnoid ojeredss oy Joj suonnjosar oy ul 10 papiaoid jey) ueyy I19Y10
JIOUUBW AUE UL 9]QB[IBAR DI S}OSSE PAUIGUIOD 3} 1Y) 9JeIIPUl JOU S0P 810} ) ‘SUOIN[0SIL1GIP Paje[ol
oy £q pajornsal are sdnoid oy Jo urerad Jo syesse Ay 20Ul ‘(7 Aou 29s) sdnoid snotea s Aoyny
A1) JO SHUNOSOE IBJIWIIS JO [€10) A} JUASAIdAI UONISO JON JO SIUSWL)S dY) Ul pajuasard s)osse oy

y1sod 1aN Jo 20

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(m)

O]

@

(panunuo)) 0T

‘sasodand Sunaodar [eroueury 10§ Ajfenuue pajenoyes st Aijiqer| [enuajod oy IOAIMOH
“IOI[IBD SI IOAJYDIYM 1P A} JO AjInjewt Je 10 s1edk oAl} A10A9 pred pue pajiodar ‘pajernofes aq
Jsnur 93en1qIy "pansst 1qop 1duwoxa-xe) peje[al oY) uo PIAIk dANIIJD YY) SPAIIXD STUIUILD 2SAY) WOIJ
PIOIA AU} JI JUSWIUIOAOS OY} 0} PAJEQAL 0q SWOUT YINS SAIMDAI ME[ [BIOPI,] “S}SOO JSAIAUI JO SSIIXD
UT QWIOdUT JUSUIISOAUT UT S)NSAI SIYL IGOP Y} JO )l Ay uey) el ISy © SP[IA Jey) JUSUNSIAUT
J1qexe) e ur 1qop 1dwaxa-xe) Jo 9[es aY) Woly Spaao01d JO JUSUWSIAUL ) SIAJOAUT 2FenIqIe 9[qeIeqay

a8panqLy a1quIngay

-aseyound Jo 9)ep oY) WY SO JO SYIUOW S} JO SALINJLW
[euISLIO M SIUSUISIAUT JO ISISUOD SHUALAINDI YseO ‘SMO[] Yse)) JO sjudwarels oy jo sasodmd 10,

spuaanbi ysn)

"10A1R02dSaI P 10T PUe S10T “0€ AUN[ JO SB 9L010°TS PUe 616°166S 3O
S)JUNOWIE oY) Ul SANI[IGRI] PUE S)ISSE Ul PIPIOIAT oIk Pun,j Isni], SUISNOH Y} YIIM PIJRIOOSSE SIoUB[eq
QU "puny Isniy, oY) IoJ JIojensIuIWpE se syoe Auoyny ay) pue saureping weidoxd ayy sdojoasp
juswdoaasg Ayununo) pue Suisnoy Jo juountedo 9yl ‘seAneniul Suisnoy jo AjoLeA 9pim
® I0J SJURIS pUB SUBO] AYEUI 0} UOISSAS JBY) Ul (edmuowtuo)) oY) £q papiaoid spunj sasn ‘AJquassy
[e10UOD) BIUISIIA OY) JO UOISSIS €107 oYl Aq paysijqersd ‘(pung jsni]) pung jsnij, Suisnoy oyJ,

"KjoA10adsal ‘Y107 PUB S0 ‘0€ dUn( JO SB 769°L6T°LS PUL $88°GST°LS
JO sjunowe oY) Ul SONI[IqeI] Pue S)SSe Ul PAPIOdAI ATk PUnJ Y} YIM PIJRIOOSSE SIOUBIRq Y, "Punj
Y} 10j J0JeSIUIWPE Sk $)9' AJLIoyiny ) pue saurfoping werdoid oy sdojaasp (qOHQ) 1uswdojaasq
Arunwwo)) pue Suisnoy jo judunedoq eruiSIA ayJ, ‘soAneniur Suisnoy jo AJoLIBA OpIm e 10j sjuels
pUB SUBO[ OBUI O} UOISSIS JBY) Ul i[eamuowio)) Yy} £q papiaoid spunj sosn ‘A[qUIOssy [eIOUID
BIUISITA 9Y) JO UOISSAS 8861 Ui Aq paysijqels? ‘(pung) pung Suisnoy AJIOL YI[BIMUOWWO)) Y],

pun,y jsnif Suisnogy xy pun,J SUuiSnogy &J1oLJ yYipInuowuIo)

“A[oA103dSaI1 ‘[ (07 PUB S1OT ‘0 dUN[ PAPUS SIBIA oY) SULIN G8E“/ 1§ PUB 097 TT$ JO douB)ISIsse
PasINGSIp PuB PaAIddAl AjLoyiny Y[, “Aoud3IoWs [BOIPAW B I0/PUB SUONIPUOD JIUOUOID ISIIAPE O}
anp juswikojdwaiopun 1o juswkodwoun ArejunjoAur woij Sunnsal A[odIp ‘0,61 ISed] I8 Jo awooul
ur 2sea109p & Jurouonadxa sroumoawoy 9[qiS1e o3 Jorjar judwiked a3eSjow sapiaoid yorym werdoid
UBOT SIOUMOIWOH AoUd3Iowy oY) 10J ‘BOLIOWY SHIOANIOQUSION JO 99)URI3 € OS[e SI AjLoyiny ay [,

weI301J ueo  SIDUMOIWOH AdUdZIduny

*K1oAnoadsar ‘p 107 Pue G10T ‘0€ dunf papuo s1eak ayy Sulnp

999°L01$ PUB G96°181$ Surelo) syueid y3noay)-ssed pasingsip pue paAIddI Auoyny Y I, “ALoyny
oy Aq pargjsturpe spunj sspopIoquSioN Sunnquusip Aq seroueSe jyoirduou s)sisse Ajoyiny
oy ‘werdoxd Furesuno) uoneSnI 2INSO[9I0] [BUONEN Y} UL 9)URIZ € Sy 'SLIOJJO UONBZI[BIIADL
Paseq-AunuItod 10y Sururern) pue duesisse [eoruyd) ‘poddns reroueury apiaoid oy ssa1Suo) 'S ) oyl
£q pajeard uoneziuesio 1joiduou [BUONEU € ‘BOLIOWY SYI0I0qUSION JO 9ajueId e st Ajoyny oy,

SurpPsuno) uonesNIJA 3INSO[IAI0 ] [EUOHEN

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
SjuauwdlelS —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

)

(b)

A-20



(panunuo)) €T

"A19A02dSA1 ‘€61 GG L°LEYS puL
L96°8LF 085S 21om sjuajeamba ysed [e10) ‘407 PUe S10T ‘0€ ounf 1y "Atoyiny oy Aq paydope suonnjosal
snoteA oY) Aq paptuiiod 950yl JO ISISUOO SpUNj PuOq Oy} Ul SJUSWISIAU] ‘JUSUISIAUL AU} JO OOUIPIAD
SE SOILINOJS OU dJB JIOY) YOIYM JOJ SJUUISIAUI JOYIO SNOLILA PUE SJUSWAISE dseyoIndol 9sI9Adl ‘S2j0U
ojer0diod ‘sopnLmoas jduoxa-xey [edoruntu ‘sonLNoes AousSe pue JUSWIISA0S "§'() JO JSISUOD SJUAUISIAU]
‘aseyaind Jo o1ep WOy SSI[ 10 SYHUOUT ST} JO SANLINJL [eUISLIO YIIM SIUSUISIAUT dpN[ouT sjud[eAInbo yse)

*SWY SUI[IOU0931 IOYI0 Pue 9Isuer) ul s3sodop ‘sy0oyo Surpue)sino o) anp s oue[eq Jueq
oY) pue junowre SUIKLIED ) USIMIIQ JOUIIJIP Y], "A[oAndadsal ‘4 10Z PUB S10T ‘0€ dunf 18 £65°008°09%
Pue ¢47°9€L°cL$ sem sysodap s Ajoyiny ay) Jo doue[eq Jueq PajeIoosse ay ], "A[oAndadsar ‘00z #97 €99
pue £17°681°8LS$ Sem susodop s Ajuioyiny ay) jo junowre SulkLied Yy} ‘107 PUB S10Z ‘0€ dunf 1y 10V
sisodo( orjqng 10J A)LNd9S eIuISIA 9y} Jo suorsiaoid Jopun pozie1oje[[od de Jo uonerodio) doueinsuy
Kronsoda( [e19payq A1 £q PaINSUL 1B YOIYM ‘SIUNOdoE JUD{OYD Ul STUNOWE PUEB PUBY UO YSBO SIPNJOUL [SB))

SJUAUIISIAU] pue ‘sjudfeAambyy yse) ‘yse)

PIE9STTOY [BIoL
TE9'YTLYET dnoin) puog 23S0 Y[ LOMUOUIIO)
$90°126°S91 dnoiny puog Sursno [euoy
819°9¢9°1 $ sweidold ueo] SuneradQ [erouon

papruuro)

1GT0T “0€ dun[ Je SMOJ[OF SE AIoM SUBO] MU PUNy 0} SJUSUNIUIIO))
s1eok Ay, 9,88°G 01 2%00°C dnouin) puog o5e3110] diysioumoswioy
s1eak Ky %80T 03 %ET'T dnoin puog 25e)I0N yIeIMUOIILO))
sIeak 101 03 Ay %I 1€l O3 %0 dnouin) puog SuisnoH [ejudy

s1eok £)103 03 A4y SUN0o0Y Sunered( [erousn)

%0€'8 01 %0
Sajel }SAId)U]

SULIJ) URO[ [BIIU] dnoi3 puoqureidod ueo|

:sweaSoid ueo Jofew oy 10§
dnoi3 puoq 1o ureroxd ueoy Aq surie) ueo] [ed1d4) pue s9je1 1S2IAUT Y} 18 SUIMO[[O] AL, Y} [BOMUOUILIO))
ay unim Kyradoad [ear uo sudlj 3s11j AQ PaInods aIe 9]qBAI0AI SUBO[ Ioyjo pue aFediow [[e AJ[enueisqng

J[(BAIIIINYY SUBOT JIY)Q puk AFe)IoIN

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(]

(2]

(panunuo)) [44

8T6'198°€98°L IO'LYY0E6'L S19SSE PIILNSAI [BIO],
LYT'809°890°L LY T 0£8°9 S)OSSE JUSLINOUOU PIAILSIL [BI0 L,
PSETOIEL STL'S6Y'TI A[2AD02dsa1 ‘6£0'8T99TS
pue 8/ 1‘SHZ'L1$ JO uonezniowe pue uornerodidop
paremnumose ssof quatudmbo pue ‘omyung ‘Kjrodorg
SLI'0L6'SESD 800°T19°LYE9 19U “9[qBAIDOAI SUBO[ IOUJ0 pue dFeIUoIN
618°070°0F 9S€°0T€°9€ SJUNOJSIP UBO[ 19U ST
6859L8°081 T0°60T°L91 SSO[ UBO[ 10§ JOUBMO[[E SSO]
€85°.88°950°L 90t 0r1° 1559 9[qBAL2I31 SUBO[ 1910 pue d3eSUON
8IL'SH61T 6EL'SEEOLY SIUQUISIAU]
:S]1OSSE JUALINOUOU PIJILNSIY
189°€ST'S6L YLSH00°001°T SJOSSE JUALIND PAJILYSAI [BJO,
8LTTO6'T 950°0€T 19858 1010
$TO'LEV0S 689°T60°TS POUMO 31BISI [BII IYIO
- MOVnNBM J[QBAIDIAT SUOHNQLIUOD IYINO A 330y Mﬁmmﬁom
98 1€ L60°9L9°6T SUBO[ I9J0 puk 23eT)IOW - J[QRAIOODI JSOIAU]
LIOTPL 18T LITEST6LY 9[qBAIOIAI SUBO] JOUJO pue 938310
006°L91°1€ CIYLTSEPT 9[es 10§ P[oY SUEO] dFETHOIN
9TT6TT Y8TLLI SJUSUISIAUL - J[QBAIDOI JSAIU]
- 186°150°8€ SUSUISIAU]
VLLIS6'L6Y YLEETS9S9  § SIUS[BAINDS seo pue yse)
1S)3SSEB JUAILIMD PIILNSIY
v10T S10T
0€ dunf

1SMO[[O] S dI0M ()7 PUE GTOT ‘O€ dUN[ JO SE SJASSE PIIOLISAY

“YIBIMUOWLO)
oy Jo seanentur Sursnoy 1o swrerSoxd [e19pay JO JBYIQ UO POy oI S)OSSe UTeId)) 'SJUSUIISIAUT PUB SULO]
oSeS110Ur OPN]OUI PUE SITUMO PUOQ 9ANIdSII ) JO AU A} 10] P[AY S)asse A[LIewrnid o1e s)asse pojoLnsay

$JISSY PALSIY

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
SjuauwdlelS —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

(6]

A-21



(panunuo)) 94

"VIANA 10§ JuoSe uerpojsno e £q jsnx
ul p[oy pue uoIj[Iw 7'9$ 18 panjeA AJLmnods paydeq a3eduow-Louse ue 93pajd 01 pajodfe Ajoyiny
o) ‘quowaainbar ferere[joo oy yym Ajdwos o], "g1og ‘1€ 1oqueddg uo Surndxs pord Surjood
1080000 3} SULINP VAN 03 [[9 [[1M 11 SAJeWNSd ALIoyIny dy3 Jey) sageduow SuLieys Jsry paiafaid
VAH 2y) Jo aouefeq [edrourd predun pajedai3se oy jo juedrad (1°1 03 [enba st yoym uorjru gz St
[e107e[[09 pa1nbai jo junoure ay ], ‘poriad 2510031 3y JuLmp sueo| o8eSjow SuLreys ST PaLIJAI]
VAH 91 0) 109dsa1 yum suonesijqo aseyondal si1 9Indas 0} [e1e[[09 1sod 01 AjLoyIny oY) sarmbax
YoryM VIANA Y1 1uawaide A11mnoss pue 93ps[d e ojur pa1ajus AjLoyiny oyl 410z ‘Z1 Jquiad9( uQ

619°820'169 LS0°089°L61 88Y°0LS S8Y169°€S 685°€80°THY S SJUSUIISOAUL [£30,
$S9°919°1 — — — $S9°919°1 SOILINOJS
SuLIeaq-1s2103u1 IO
0ST'TT8'6Y — — 0ST'TT86Y — sajou aje10dio)
001°v7S 061 — — — 001°v#S 061 SOLINGAS JoyIeW K3UO A
666°0TT°ILT TIS°0SS 0LT 88Y°0LS — — SAILINOJS

pavjorq aFe1ow- Kousl y

9¥S'6TI'LT 9 6TI'LT — — — SAILINOAS PAYORq-1OSSY
0LO'S6L'EL - - SETTULY'E $€8°TT6°6 sonLNoas [ediorun Al
000°000°0¥C — — — 000°000°0vC sjusweaise
aseyoindoy as1oAdy
anjea Jreg SIBIA S183K SIBIA Jeak ad ) yudunsaaug
01 1240 0r-9 -1 uey) sy
sanLnjew

pue (sjud[eAmbo yseo Surpnjour) sUSUISIAUL SUIMO[[0F AU Pey AjLIoyIny Y} ‘410 ‘0€ dunf Jo sy

TLI'P86'901°1 TEC'S8E69Y 0rE6IET 0L9°L6Y'T 0€8°I8L°€E9 SJUSWISIAUL [B10 ],
+80°€ET9 — — — +80°€ET9 SOILINOAS
SuLIeaq-1s2101U1 1010
00S°€20°0S — — — 00S°€20°0S sojou oje10dI0)
00€°LYL'8TT — — — 00€°LYL'8TT SOIILINGAS 1oy IR KSUO N[
9EL'V6S TSy 96€°SLT IS OvE6IE T — — SANLINOAS

pasjoeq a3e31ow- Aoualy

9€6°601°81 9€6°601°81 — — — SOILINDOS PAYOEG-1ASSY
919°SLT'11 — — 0L9°L6Y'T 9V6'LLL'S soLMoas [edomun g
000°000°0¥€ — — — 000°000°0v€  $ sjuowaaSe
aseyoindar as10Ady
anjea Jreg SIBIA S183K SIBIA Jedk | 2d ) yudunsaaug
01 100 0r-9 S-1 uey) ssa|

sanLmjew
pue (sjud[eAmbo yseo Surpnjour) suSUISIAUL SUIMO[[0F Y Pey AJLIoyIny Y} ‘S1OT ‘0€ dunf Jo sy

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(panunuo)) 14

‘w0 Iepnqe) ur sporrad
o [enuonbas ojur smofy yseo jusunsaaul jo Jurdnoid oy) saxmnbar yorym ‘aInso[osip Jo poypow
uonnqLISIp W pIUAWSIS Y} PAIOJS Sey AILIOYINY dY) YSLI ).l 1SAIUI JUNBIIUNWWOD JO SUBIW
B SV "S9JRI 191U Ul SOFUBYD SININJ JO J[NSAI B SB SAN[BA IIe] 113y} UL AJI[IQRLIBA SI0W 0) 103(qns aq 0}
A1ay11 o1e sporrad 103U0] 10] PAXIJ Ik Jey) SOYI JSINUI )IM SJUSUISIAU] JUSUWIISIAUT UB JO dN[BA ITB]
3} 1991J& AJOSIOAPE [[IM SJUSWNISUT }GIP JO SJRI JSIIUT U SIFULYD JBy) JSLI Y} ST JSLI dJel JSAAAU]

YS1 2wy 1saopuy ()

*9sn s11 Jo Surun pajoadxa yiim 9prourod 0 ‘sseyoind
& JUSUISIAUT Ue JO ()TUI] Y JIWI] 0} PUB AJLINJEU 0} SYUSW)SAAUL [[& P[oy A[[e1oudd 0) st Lo1j0d jusur)saaur
s Auoyny oY) ‘sdjer Jsa1)ul JuisLl Wolj JuIsLe $ISSO[ dneA ey 0) amnsodxd s)1 Junuuly Jo suedw e Sy

JuowedIde oy jo junowe [ediourid ay) Jo 9,70 01 [enba 1se3] JB ON[EA JONIBW B
YA SINLINDAS AOUSTY 10 AINSeal] "S'() UM PIZI[RIR[[0D 9q ISNUW SHUSWIIAITE YONG "YIUOW dUO UBY) SSI]
ur SunLmjew suondesuel) JUAWIITe aseyoindol Ul paIsaAUl 9q UL S)asse [810) S AJIoyINy ) JO %] uey)
Q10w Ou pue AJud dUO AUu. Ul PI)SIAUL 9q ABW SIOSSE [£10) S AILIOYINY Y} JO %€ ULY) IOW ON] "SIORIUOI
pIemioj pue ‘sjpenuod saxmny ‘sjoenuod dems ‘sjuowodide oseyoindor isodop Jo So1EOILIOI ‘SAIMUIQIP
‘Spuoq ‘suoIsiAlpgns [eonijod IOYI0 10 BOLIWY JO SRS paun Ayl £q padjuerens AJeuonipuooun
suonesIqo ‘edlouly JO SJB)S pAjuN Ay} Jo uorsiaipqns [eonijod 1o 2je)s Aue jo suoneSiqo jo2Ip
‘@dLIOULY JO SOIB)S PAjIu() Y} JO SUONEII[QO JO3IIP :0) PAJIWI[ JOU Ik JNQ dPN[IUI SjudUnSaAUl paroiddy
*SIUQUIIWLWIOD [BIOURUL S)I [[LJ[NJ 01 AJLIOYINY Y} S[qRUS [[IM JBY) Jouuew judapnid € ul sjusunsaAul SuiSeuews
pue SuNSaAUL AqQ ‘U0SISY) WINJSI AY) SZIWIXLW PUL SIIUOW [[B Is9AUL A[[nJ 01 St Ao1j0d JusunsaAul s LLoyny
gy “yromower Aromgels popruued oyl unpipy CAjioyiny 2yl 10j syusunsoAul paprued saysiqelsd
SUOIN|OSAI PUOq SNOLIBA OU) SB [[OM SB BIUISIIA JO 9pOD) Y} JO 10V Spung odlqnd JO JUSUISIAU] Y],

998°CLT9ST S0T'S0S°9ZS  $ SIUSUNSIAUI [BIO],
1€0°S¥6°1ST 17€T0TELY SIUOUWNSIAUL JUSLINOUON
SER'LTEY 98°70€'€S  $ SJUSUISIAUL JUSLIND)
Y1027 S10T
0€ dunf

:SMO[[0F St uorisod Jou JO SJUSWAJE)S Y} UT POIJISSE[O AIE ] ()7 PUB GO ‘0E QUN[ JO SE SJUSUISOAU]

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
muﬂurﬁoumum —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

A-22



(panunuo)) LT
60S'8YE€°9S - (€16'9€€) £56°606°€ 6OY'SLL'TS S
66€°8LT'T OrepLET) - TTLT69T €70°198
98LY0S - - — 98LY0S
609°019°61 IPEYLET (€16'9€€) 1€T81T’T SP6'PSELL
006'8T1°1€ - — - 006°81T°T€
S18°6€6'C - - - S18°6€6'C $
41114 Slojsuel], sfesodsiq suonippy €107
‘0g ounf ‘0¢ dunf
dueeg dueeyg

ssa1301d ur uononnsuo)
SO[OIYAA IOJOA
yuowdinba pue axmuin g
Supjing

pue

ISMO[[0] SB SeM (7 ‘0€ dun[ papuo Jedk ay) 10§ spunosde Judwdmba pue ‘vrmruang ‘Kjredoid oy ur Kjanoy

(8LELSEYE) 0r8 v (S8€°1€0°€) (€€8°0LLTE)  §
(580°€8%) — (96L°T€) (68T°0St)
(861°THE°91) 0r8‘ v (959°022°0) (28€°995°%1)
(S60°TES°LT) — (€€6°LLL) ((IRZIA TV
S10T sesodsi( suonIppy Y10
,cm aunf .cm aunf
Rueeyg ueeyg

SI[OIYIA J0JOIN
Judwdmba pue armuin g
Supiing

SMOT[O] SE SeM GT0T

‘0¢ oun( popud Jeak oY) SULINP SHUNOIIE UONEZIIOWE PUE UOHERIAIAOP paje[nuunooe Paje[dl Ay ur KA1y

€01°789°09 — (S81°9%p) OLL'I8LY 60$'8Y€°9S  $
SSL°989°C r8T'TH) — 0¥9°05S°€ 66£°8L1°T
1€€°065 - — SPS's8 98L°Y0S
T0£°TSE°0T ¥8TTY (S81°9t1) Y6 SH1°l 609°019°61
006°811°1¢€ - — - 006°811°T¢€
SI8'SE6'T - — - SI8'S€6'T $
ST0T stajsuel], sesodsiq suonIppy 10T
‘0g sunf ‘0 dunf
dueeg dueeg

ssox5oxd ur uoponynsuo)
SO[OIYOA IOJOA
yuowdinba pue axmun g
Supjing

pue]

:SMO[JO] SB SeM G0 ‘0€ Qun[ papuo Ieak 2y 10§ s)unosde juswdimnba pue ‘armruang ‘Kjredord oy ur £y1anoy

jyuawdmby pue ‘Qamruin g ‘Ayradoag

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)

ALIIOHLAYV INHINdOTIAHA ONISNOH VINIDIIA

(panunuo)) 9C

9%00°001 TLIY86'90IT  § SJUSUNSOAUL [EI0 T,
€00 geeq 715°8¢€ SANLINOAS PAYORY 19SSy
90°0 +VV LET'SE9 SONLINOAG [edroruniy
900 €V YOETLY SANLINOJG PAYIBY 19SSy
800 ey 896°L06 SANLINOAS [edroruny
01°0 ee) 9ELTLOT SANLINOAS Payoeg 19SSy
91°0 eey SOE YL SaNLINDAG [ediomumpy
LT°0 1ee) 987°918°1 SANLINOAG Payorg JOSSY
81°0 gee) 19L°266°1 SANLINOAS PAYORY 19SSy
o e} 8Y9TLY'T SANLINOAS POk 19SSy
0€°0 434 Ir1°66T°E SoNLINOAG [ediomunpy
wo AN 000769 saNLNOag [ediomuniy
960 ey +80°€€T9 sjuowNsu] Surread 1SAIAU] IO
88°0 ceq 689°SPL'6 SANLINDAG PaYIRY 19SSY
9T eV 0SL°0T0°ST $9j0N srerodio)
9T'C v 0SLTI0°ST sajoN deiodio)
99°0T I-d 00€°LYL'8TT SANLINDAG JONIBIA ASUOIA]
1L°0€ -dadd 000000°0%€ sjuowaaISy oseyomdoy 9sIoAsYy

%68 07 eey 9€LV6S TS ¢ sanumdag payoeg o3eS10N Aouady

SJUIUI) SIAUL Sunex junowry 3d£y Judun saAuy
[€)03 Jo SApooy

AgejuadIdg XS

1G0T ‘0 duny Jo s adK) Jusunsaur £q JSLIJIPaId 03 amsodxa Juaunsaaur sjudsaid ajqe) Surmorjoy
Ay L “Anjiqejesrew pue Ajenb 31pa1o Y3y Jo senrmnoas uo siseydwo saoeyd Kjuroyiny oy suonesijqo
SIT [0 JOU [[IM JUSUISIAUI Ue 0) sNIedIoNunod Ioy)o 1o IonssI Ue Jet) YSLI Y} ST YSLI 1IPAID)

9

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf

ASKY 1paL)

SjudWd)e]S [eIOULUI] JIsed 0) SOJON

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)

ALIMOHLAYV INHINdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDIIA

(9

A-23



(panunuo)) 6C

SLO0TTL $T0°C — 00L°CI1 6€0T ‘T AIng 91ep onp [euyy
91BI 1SAIIUI DAY 2%€0'9

‘LOOT ‘T1 dunf pajep v sALdS £00T
0SS°TL 0zLl - 0LTYL 6€0T ‘1 Arenuef a1ep
ONp [eUl ‘911 }SAIAIUI DAIOJYJD
%ESY “900T T1 19quId09g

Payep “d/d/d SPHIS 900T
080y OLL - 0191+ 6€0T ‘1 Arenuef
9)ep anp [eul ‘ojer
1S21)UL SANIYD %08°S “900T

T1 1quId0( Parep D SALdS 900T
008°0T SLY — SLT1T 8€0T ‘T 1qUIDAON
9)ep anp [eul ‘o)er
1SAI2YUL SAIIOID %S9y ‘900T

‘1€ 19Q03100 parep ‘g SIS 900T
- S6E°L - S6E°L €€0T ‘1 dy 9ep onp [euy
91BI 1S2I)UI DAIIJYID %68t

‘900C ‘€T KRN POIEP “V SOLIdS 900T
- 0607€ - 0607€ SE0T ‘1 Areniqaq arep
anp [euly ‘9jel }SAIJUI AIJOIJO
%0€°S “S00T ‘P1 1quIoaq

Pa3Ep I/ SIS S00T
— SIS TIE — SIS 1€ 0£0T ‘T 1quI0aq
9)ep anp [eul ‘Ojer
1SI2YUL SAIIOYID %8y ‘S00T

‘0T 1290300 PA4eP I/H SAH3S S00T
- SST'SL - SST'SL 0£0T T 1quI03q
91ep Onp [eUY ‘djel
1S21)UL ANIYD %9°S ‘S00T

‘0T 12Q0300 Parep ‘D SIS S00T
- 061°0% — 061°01 6€0T ‘1 1oquiandog arep onp [euly
9)BI 1SAIdIUT DAIIIYID 209"t

‘S00T P11 dung pajep ‘J/d SOLdS S00T
— 099°6€ — 099°6€ $ €€0T ‘T Toquiydog dyep onp [euy
9)BI 1SAIIUT DAY %G1°S

‘S00T “p1 dun[ pajep ‘g sAU3S SO0T

:dno1g puoq Sursnoy [ejusy
(spuesnoy) ur umoys sjunowy)

(panunuo)) 8T

0099 000°8LI 009°S8Y 000°LST $ sjunodoe
Funerado [e1ouas [B10L,

009°L0Y 000°€TT 009°L0Y 000°€T 1 ST0T ‘L1 1oquierdas 01 610T

‘o€ AInf woy 2fuer sanunjew
(STOT 0€ 2unf 18 %0tT0
Jo 9je1) 0181 A[Iep Suneoyy

Jyueg UBOT QWO [EIOPI,]
000°LS 000°S9 000°8L 000 $ S10T
1 10qQUIOOA(] JO 9)EP UOIJBUIILIO)
(STOT ‘0 2unf 1€ %99¢T' |
J0 9je1) 9181 ATIRp Suneoyy

BOLIOW'Y JO yuegq

IIPaIo JO Ul SUIAJOASY
:sjunoooe Sunerado [erousn
(Spuesnot) ur umoys syunowy)

ST0C Pa1nyY panssp v10T uondridsa(q
‘og dunp ‘o¢ dunf
e dueRy B duUeRyg

1SMO[[O] S oToM
ST0T ‘0€ Quny papuo Ieak ay) JoJ saSueydp pue G107 ‘0€ dunf pue 10 ‘0¢ dun( je ojqeded spuoq pue sajoN

Jlqeded spuog pue sajoN (L)

ST0C P11y panssp v10T uondrsaq
‘0¢ dunf ‘o¢ dqunf
e duUE[Eg Je PdueRyg

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(€€8°0LLTE) T16°T1€ (L90°5€9°€) (LLY'LYY'8T) $
(68T°0St) — (168°8€) (86€°T11) SI[OIAA I0JOJN
(28€°995°1) 116°11€ (€¥T'818°7) (050°090°C1) Juowrdmba pue dmyruim,g
(T91°vSL°91) — (€€6°LLL) (6TT9L6°ST) $ Surpying
$10T sfesodsiq suonIppy €10T
‘o€ dunf ‘o€ dunf
ueeyq Puereyg

SMO[[O] SE SeM 10T
‘0€ dunf papud 1eak dy) SULINP SHUNOIIE UONEZILIOWE PUE UONEIOIdOP PIjR[NINode Ppaje|al ay) ul AJIANOY

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
SjuauwdlelS —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

A-24



(panunuo))

01T°601

067681

§99°€E

005°01

0€891T

S88TT1

SPL'EE

(32531

05691

SL9'8L

09yl

$66°01

0zTI'T

SES°E

S98

00T

S60°S

061°C

S

S16°L

00L'€

1543

ove

ovc

(SpuesnoY) Wl UMOYS SHUNOWY)

1€

O€ETTT

ST0°€91

0€5¥E

00L 01

ST6'1TT

SLOYIT

009°%€

SPETHT

059°0ST

00261

00871

SETTI $

€10T ‘1 ounf d4ep anp [euy
‘aye1 1SAIAUL ATIDAIR %90
‘€10T ‘0€ ABIAL P21EP “d SAL9S €107
€70 ‘1 Arenuqa,f a1ep anp [euyy
‘are1 1SAIAUL AIIIAYI %8¢
‘€10C T KBIN PRIEP ) SIS €107
€10C ‘1 [udy a1ep onp [euy
‘are1 1S3I2)UI SAIIOYJD %S6°¢
‘€10T ‘11 [1dy pajep ‘g/V seuds €[0T
TPOT ‘T 1OqUIdAON dIEP oNp [euly
9)BI 1SQIDIUL DAY %9T°¢
TI0T T 1OQUIDAON PAYEP F SALISS T10T
TH0OT ‘1 19q0310Q) 2)ep dnp [euly
“9)BI 1SAIDIUL SAIIYD %70y
TI0T “0€ 1290190 PAIEP ‘(T SIS TI0T
THOT ‘1 ¥sndny 1ep anp
[eul “9)BI 1SAIIUL AN %H9'¢C
TI0T ‘[T ISN3nY Pajep g SOUdS T10T
TPOT T YOTEN d1Ep NP
[eul “9)BI 1SAIUL ANIYD %09°C
TI0T ‘8T A1eniqaf pajep v salds 7107
820T ‘T YOIBIN 21Ep onp
[BUl ‘1B JSAIDUL AN %0t
“T10T ‘T 1qud0d(] Pa1ep g $udS 1107
6€0C ‘1 Arenuef ajep anp
[euy “9)eI ISIANUL DANORYD %E6
“T10T ‘8 1oqUIdA(T PAIEP “( SALdS 1107
8€0T ‘T JOqUI203(T 3ep dnp
[eUl ‘9)BI JSAID UL JANIID % Tt
‘T10T ‘8 1oqUIdOA(T PAIEP ) SIS [10T
1$0T ‘T 1290300 @)ep anp [eury
Q18I 1SIOVUL AATIORIID %LT TT0T
‘Lz 1oquiordog pajep g sauos 1107
TH0T ‘T ABIN 21Ep onp [euy
9781 1S3ID UL JANIID %76
10T ‘4T ABIN PRIEp “V SOLIdS T10T

ST10C
‘o€ sunp
e Rdueeg

[EELEN

panssp

141114
‘oc dunf
e dueERg

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf

uondLisaq

Sjudawd)e)S [eroueulf d1sed 03 SAJON

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(panunuo))

01L81

09T°9¢

0T8°0€

ovT'11

S6E°1T

$99°%61

S88°Sy

SST°LY

$6991T

096°9C

00T°L9

STT'IT

o1y —

S€T -

OLL —

SPETE —

SYTT —

09t -

(spuesnot) ur umoys syunouy)

0¢

ozr'61

$86°9¢€

[SYSSEY

0EP 11

0LLTT

006°61

[SS9t4

096°Ly

0v0'8tC

SOv'LT

S¥'89

$89°1C

1$0T ‘1 Arenuer 91ep anp [euy
9181 1S2IDIUI DATIOJD %08t

010T T 10quId0a(] PAjep * SALAS 010T

SY0T 1 1990300 23ep onp [euy
“0)B1 JSQIOIUI DAL %6+

‘010T °L 1990390 P3P SIS 010T
00T ‘1 Joquuioydog ojep onp [euy
“0)BI }SQIOIUI DAIIOJYYD %[ £

‘010C ‘9z 1sNSNY pajep ‘q SALAS 010T

SH0OT ‘1 3snSny drep onp [euy
97181 1S3I UL JANDJID %19t
‘010T ‘8T AInf parep D SIS 010T

SPOT ‘1 dunf dep anp [euy

9181 1S2IUL DALY YLt
‘010€ ‘L 11dV payep ‘g SALdS 010T

SpOT ‘1 1udy orep onp [euy

€071 1SOI0JUI QAIDID %6LH

‘010T “€T Y2IBIN Pa3Ep Y SOLDS 00T

PHOT ‘T 10quo0aq d1ep anp [euly

9181 1SAIDIUI DANIOYID %L 8" ‘600T

‘ST I0GUIDAON] PAIEP  SOLIAS 600T
PH0T ‘T 10q0190 21Ep onp [euly

)1 SAIDIUL SATIVAD YLt “600T

‘b 10quadog pajep g SIS 600T
120C ‘1 A1enigag oyep anp [euy

“9)B1 JSAIIUL DA %[8°S ‘600T

‘0€ UQIBIN PAIEP ‘(1/D SIS 600T
€40T ‘1 dunf 91ep onp [euy
911 1SQIDIUI QAT %pS S

‘600T ‘9T YOIBINl PA1EP “€l SIS 600T
6€0C ‘1 YDTBIA 9)ep anp [euy ‘drer
1S2121UI AIORJFD %08'9 “600T

‘9¢ A1enIqa] Pajep Y SIS 600T
80T ‘1 J9qUIDAON d1ep 0P [euly

“0)BI 1SOIOJUI DAT}ORLID %S9 L00T
‘0z 10quiordag parep /g SIS L00T

ST0C
‘og dunp
Je duUEEyg

[EEREN panssp

v10c

‘o€ dunf
e duUE[Eg

uondrIdsaq

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf

SjudWdje)S [erouLUl JIsed 03 SAJON

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

A-25



(panunuo)) €€

8TEVE 160°L - 6171y 8€0T ‘ST YOI 91Bp NP [eul ‘et
1SAI23UL SAIIOD %L0'9 ‘800T

‘ST Y2IBIN PIIEP Y SOMIS 800T
SLY'P0S 09%°s9 — $€6°69S 9€0T ‘1 Arenuef
91ep Onp [eUY ‘djBl
1S9I91UL DAIORID %98'Y *LOOT

‘81 ABIN POIEP ‘A/D/€/V SOUAS L00T
01€veT 00t'€€ — 0IL°LST TEOT 1 1290300
9)ep anp [eur ‘ojer
1S2I)UL AANIYJD %S9t 900T

‘€1 Af parep ‘4/H/A SOULS 900T
LITLL €86°C - 008°61 €0 ‘ST dun( d)ep onp [euy
91BI 1SAI2UT AT %819

900T ‘g dun[ pajep ) SALAS 900
LSy L9T — P8y 9€0T ‘ST YdIBIN 3P onp [euly
0)BI }SOIDIUI DAL 2%68°S

‘900 ‘LT 1M PAIEP ‘g/V SOLIdS 900T
— S8YTLL — S8YTLL 820C ‘1 [1dy 21ep
anp [euly ‘@)el }SAIIUI IAIJOJO
%9T ¥ ‘S00T ‘€ TOqUIDAON

Parep ‘4/A/D SIS SO00T
— o11°0L — O11°0L $20T ‘1 19q03100 d)ep anp [euy
91BI 1SAIUI AN %Lt

‘600T ‘1Z MY parep ‘y SaLds §00T
9€9°C SLY - 11°e €0 ‘ST dun( 9ep onp [euy
9181 1SAIUL DA 9%L9°C

P00T ‘01 dun[ payep ‘g SIS $00T
- L66 - L66 €€0T ‘ST Isnsny
9)ep anp [eul ‘ojer
1S9I91UL SAIORYID %[ 1°S *€00T

‘I 19q0100 Parep D SALIdS £00T
¥Tro1 0SH°1 — PLYTT $ TE0T ‘ST 1oquIada( 21ep
anp [euly ‘D).l JSAA)UI AI)OYJ
%S81°S “TO0T ‘L1 19quId0ag

P1eP ‘D/A/d SIS T00T

(spuesnoy) ur umoys syunouy)

ST0T P11y panssp v10T uondrsaq
‘0¢ dqunf ‘0¢ dqunf
e duUE[Eg Je PueRyg

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(panunuo)) [43
6LLTT 09L°1 — 6€S°€l $ 0€0T ‘sz Isn8ny
Q1ep onp [euy ‘ojer
1SAIIUL DAIOYD %TT'9 TOOT
‘0T YOTRIN PoIEp °d SOHIS T00T
:dnoiS spuoq a8eS1I0W Y)EIM UOWILIOD)
SOS'EITT 60L°S61°C $ spuoq
Sursnoy [ejuaIeIO],
SIET 6S°T wniuaid pazioweun
0STI11°T SI¥'v6T S0STIT 091°€61°C
00€°€1 - 00€°€l — SYOT 1 KB 1ep onp [euy
0711 1S0I0)UI DAIJOJLID %7 C
‘S10T ‘T KB Pa1ep °g SoLIdS S10T
SoITH - S a4 — SPOT ‘T YoIBIN 94ep onp [euly
‘0111 1S0I0)UI DATIOJIJO % CH'E
‘STOT “81 USIBIN Pa1ep Y SIL2S 10T
SIS'seT — SIS'SET - YPOT ‘T 19qUIDAON I8P anp [euy
91RI 1SOI9)UI ATIOJJD %6T 1
P10T “0T PqUIDAON PIIEP °D SIS $10T
0068 - 006'8 - ¥H0T ‘1 190300 d3ep Inp [euy
9781 1S2I9)UI DATIOID %0E"E
Y10T “8T 1290300 PIep ‘g SIS $10T
STl - ST9CI - 670C ‘1 1s0SNYy 1ep anp [euy
0111 1S0I0)UI DAIIOJLIO %G/ C
Y10T ‘61 1SN30Y pajep Y SAHdS 10T
0S9°T1 — — 0S9°T1 €70T ‘T 19quI0a( 2)ep onp [euy
“91.I 1S0I0)UI DATIOJIJD %/ TH
‘€10T °€ 12quI203( PIrep ‘D SAHIS €10T
SEP'8S — — SEP'SS €10T ‘1 1990320 2)ep anp [euy
91RI 1SOI9)UI DATIOJID %86
‘€10T ‘01 1990390 Payep ‘ SSLAS €10
0SL°0T - — 0SL°0T $ €40C ‘T AInf ep onp [euy
“91B1 1SIIDIUL DAIIOJD %S|t
10T 11 AInf parep g sauaS €107
(Spuesnoy) ur UMoys Sjunowy)
S10C PaInoy panssg vI0cT uondridsaq
‘o ounf ‘og dunf
e PouREg e dUE[Eg

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
muﬂurﬁoumum —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

A-26



(panunuo)) 33

786°880°S LE9 0S9°1¥€°T) €10°7SS WSS $ [e01
€80°L6€ — (82t°T6) — 115°68 dnoi3 puoq
oSeSuow diysioumoswoy
061°6€€°T 8¢S (8€1°9€L) 1€9°€81 651°168°C dnoi3 puoq
o5eSuow eomuoWIO)
60L°S61°T 66 (06t°6£0) S€8°06 S9THYET dnoi3 puoq Sursnoy [eyuay
000°LST — (r6S°€LT) LYS'6LT LYO'IST $ sjunodoe Sunesodo [erousn
¥I0T sqeded paany panss| €107
‘0¢ dunf JEERCI1I ‘0¢ aunf
punodwod pue
Junodstp/wmiurd.id
paznJowreun
ur (9sBaIIIP)
Aseanuy

:(SPUBSNOY} UT SJUNOLIE) SMO[[Of SE PIZLIBUIWNS dIoM
$10T ‘0€ dung papud 1eak oY) 10§ soSULYD PUE (7 ‘0€ dunf pue ¢[0g ‘0 duny je ajqeked spuoq pue sOJON

L¥'€96y 786'380°S  $ [e10L,

788 THE 10T°sS — €80°L6€ dnoi3 spuoq oFeSuow
diysioumoawoy [e10],

T0E°ErT 1098 — €06°1ST THOT ‘ST ISn3ny Aep anp [euy

91BI 1SAINUT DAY %67 €
‘€10T LT YDIBIN PIBP “V SIS €10T
0S8°SS 00S°8 — 0SEP9 $20T ‘1 1oquiondog orep onp [euly
‘9181 1S3I91UL SAIORYID %9€°€ T10T
‘LT 1oquuardag pajep g soudS 1107
00S°9% 001°TT — 009°LS 20T ‘T YSIBIA d)ep anp [euy
91BI 1SAIUI DAY % [S°€
‘110T ‘p1 dunf pajep v sdMas 1107
009°Ck 0079 - 000°61 $ ceoe
1 YOIBJA 9)BP Onp [eUlf ‘O)er
1S1)UL SANIYD %01°€ “010T
‘67 19Q0100 parep ‘g LS 010T
(spuesnoy) ur umoys sjunowy)

ST0T P10y panssyp Y10C uondrsaq
‘o€ sunf ‘o€ sunp
e duUE[Eg Je PdueRyg

#10T PUB G10T ‘0€ dunf
SjuawdjelS ﬁmmoﬁmcmm uﬁmmm 0] SAION

(eruISI A JO yiROMUOWIIO)) A} JO JIu) juduodwio) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DONISNOH VINIDUIA

(panunuo)) 143
0€9°€S 009°0T - 0€TYL $ 120T
‘1 Ioquuoydoag 9)ep onp Jeuy ‘ojer
1SIUL SANOYD %IL’E “010T
‘01 AIENIqo] parep v SoudS 0107
:dnoig spuoq o8eSuow diysioumoauoy
007" €¥0T 06I°6€€C ¢ dnoiS spuoq a3eSiiow
IEOMUOWIIOD [BJO],
6£€0) @SLD) JUNOOJSIp pazhroureury
6EL'SHOT €65°91 06€°0C1T 6 17ET
0zITIT 0LT'8 06€°0C1 — LEOT ‘ST 1990100 21ep 2np [euly ‘djer
1SQIUL SAIIIAID %0S°€
PI0T ‘11 12quI03 PAIEP Y SIS $10T
LTOEL 0609 - L1008 €40T ‘ST 19quID03(J 21ep oNp [euy djel
}SIOIUI DAIJOYD %0E
‘€10T ‘61 19quIa03 PAIEp ‘d SAHAS €10T
0676 601°S - 670°001 €V0T ‘ST 12q03100 93ep INp [euy ‘djel
1S193UL DAY 9%STH
‘€10T “¥T 3990190 PIrep D SAHAS €10T
991°9L 66¥°C1 - $99°88 THOT ‘ST 1AV 21ep onp [euy ‘djer
1SI)UL SANDIPFS %SL'T
‘€10T “IT ABIN Pa1Ep g SOURS €10T
01Z°C0L 00S°6 — OIL'TIL 6€0C ‘1 AInf d1ep onp [euy
9181 1S2ID)UI QAT 2%79°E
T10T ‘0T 12quada paiep ©D/d SAM9S T10T
06vvL - - 06VvL 920T ‘1 AInf 2)ep onp [euy
»uuﬁh uwvhuu:_ D>:00u—n—0 HX.O—N
10T ‘0T 12quia0d( PaIep Y SaUIS Z10T
$8TTE SOr9 — 0SL'8E STOT 1 Anf dep onp [euy
9181 1SIIANUL DAIOAID % €T ‘600T
‘ST IOQUIDAON PJEP VY SAHDS 600
621°0T L0 — 00T+ 8€0T ‘ST dun{ ep anp [euy ‘orer
1S3I2)UL DANIJYJD %TH'9 ‘00T
‘81 1OqUIDAON Paiep ) SIUAS 800T
LTL6Y 1158 — 8€T'8S $ 8€0T ‘ST YdIBIN 1P onp
TeulJ ‘01er 1SOIdIUI QAT %[ ['9
‘00T 01 11dV patep °g saLaS 800T
(spuesnoy) w umoys sjunouy)
S10T Pa1ny panssp v10cT uondrsaq
‘o€ dunf ‘o€ sunp
e DUy Je dUR[RY

#10T PUe G10T “0¢€ dunf
SjuauwdlelS —ﬁu:mﬁﬁh ommmm 0] SAI0N

(eruISIIA JO yiEOMUOWIIIO)) A} JO J1u) Juduodwo)) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

A-27



(panunuo)) LE

s Auoyny 2y uodn paseq wnuue 1od syutod siseq G¢ 1 03 60 woiy Surduer uiSrew e snjd Aumjew yyuow suo
yum syisodop 103 o1e1 YOFI'T Suneopy Arep oyy 03 [enba ojel & Je paSIeyod ST SOIUBAPE AUE UO 1SOIAUI ‘SULIO)
JUSLIND Ay} 1OPU[) "9JeP UOTRUIULIA) 3Y) U0 d[qeAed pue onp ore SUIPURISINO SYUNOWE [V "S[OT ‘] 10quIaod
U0 QJRUIULID) [[IM PUB €07 ‘] JOQUIIO( UO POMOUdI sem juowddide oy ‘sosodind ojerodiod [erousd
10} spuny op1aoid 0} BOLIOWY JO ueq [IIM JUSWAISE JIPAIO SUTAJOAI UOI[IWI ()O]$ B Sey Ajioyny dyL,

LT6YEVTSLT 8LLLY6'EST 19S°TOT°L6T°T 8STTOL'66E T 0€€°€89°T $ [eoL

LET06Y — — LET06Y — 0S0T — 9¥0T
€L6069°LL 901°091°01 P8E60F €Y €87 1TIHC — SY0T — 1#0C
6L0°00£°8CT S0S‘9vLTT 6LTY8LL6 S6T69L LOT — 00T — 90T
£PS°60C° 16€ S0S‘9LTT SPLLIYS9T €6T'SY8°T0T — SE0T — 1€0T
60°0LE6TS S0S‘9vLTT LOT1°101°LTT LLETTS6LT — 0£0T —920¢T
S0P 1¥5°699 885 ISH8T 1€9°9¥1°26C 981°€H6°81€ — §T0T — 120T
806°909°SS T Y61°180°8 1£5°969°L9 €8C6T8°6L — 020T
988°199°€91 PO1Y6L8 0€9°SH6°0L 790°7T6°€8 — 6102
YOI°LS6'OLT I8LTHE6 L Y66°EL LLS'619°L8 — 810
P8TTLOLLL 90789001 6€6'886°9L 6E1°S16°06 — L10T
65STE9°L81 Y61°018°01 609°LTH18 9TY'ETLE6 0£€'€89'T  § 910C

1Saxdjur 1Saxdjur 1Saxdjur 3Saxdjur 3Saxdjur 0€ dunf
'L diys19uM03WOH EIMUOW0)) SUISNOH [BIUIY puny [BIdUIL) Surpud aeax

SMO[[0] Sk

QIe 105810y} puk G1(T 1 A[Nf SUIOUSUIOD SSOUPI)qIPUT PUOQ PUE AJOU [[€ 0} PAJEOI JSIIAUI PAJBIOOSSE oY ],

0L6'TLY €96'F 967°788° 1€ YLV 6EL'SHO'T 000°0STTI1°C 00000949 1810

000°S85°01 — — 000°S8S°01 — 0S0T — 90T
TSTY6T'ITL T6V'8L6'6E] 09L0LS 6YE 000°S¥L°9ET — SYOT — 1¥0T
€L8°€10°199 — €L8CISTYT 000°00T°611 — 00T —9€0T
$90°LET999 — $90°2€8°S0€ 000°S0t"09€ — S€0T — 1€0T
000°0SST09 — 000°59€°S8T 000°SST°LIE — 0€0Z —920T
000°STL9LL 000°08T°LL 000°0L9°89€ 000°SL80EE — §20T — 120T
000°0ST°€1T 000°001°ST 000°009°€6 0000576 — 020T
00006120 000°00€°0T 000°09L16 000°0€1°06 — 610C
000008661 000°00€°0T 000°S62°16 000°50Z°88 — 810T
00001661 000°000°8C 000°565°98 000°ST1°S8 — L10T
18L°91T°'SOL 00720 1€ LLLLETTET 000°SSE8L 000°009v9%  $ 910C

redud spuoq a3eJ)owr spuoq d3eIpIowr spuoq sajou 0€ aunf
oL drySIauModWol [IEIMuOWIo) SuISNOH [BJUY  punyg [BIdUIL) Surpua xeax

ISMO[[0J SE a1k 19)Jea1dy) pue G107 ‘1 A Surduswwod (wnmwaid pue S)uNodSIp paziiowreun
JO 109130 9y} SuIpn[oxd) SSOUPIIPUl PUOq puk djou [[& 0} parear suoneSiqo juowAed [edound oyf,

#10T PUB G10T “0€ dunf

SjusWwdje)S [eroueur diseq 03 SAJON

(eruISII A JO YIROMTOWIIO)) A} JO JIup) jusuodwo) V)
ALRIOHLAY INFNdOTIATA DNISNOH VINIDYUIA

(panunuo))